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INFORMATION IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT

Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, this annual report
was prepared based on the information available to the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 or as at the date on which this annual report has
been approved by the board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) being
22 March 2022.

Subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this annual report, the following changes to the Board and
senior management of the Company have taken place on 8 April 2022:

(a) Mr. Chen Sui resigned as a non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Board and the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”);

(b) Mr. Li Yilun resigned as an executive Director and the President of the
Company (“President”);

(c) Mr. Zhang Zhiwu, who is a current executive Director, was appointed
as the Chairman of the Board, the President and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee;

(d) Mr. Chen Xinguo and Mr. Ren Liyong were appointed as non-executive
Directors; and

(e) Mr. Li Yilun resigned as an authorized representative of the Company,
upon which Mr. Zhang Zhiwu was appointed as an authorized
representative of the Company to fill the vacancy.

Please refer to pages 68 and 69 of this annual report for the biographies of
Mr. Chen Xinguo and Mr. Ren Liyong.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
published on 8 April 2022.
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Corporate Information

NaER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place

31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

15th Floor

Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED

1811
COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.cgnne.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS"*

Chairman and Non-executive Director'oe
Mr. Chen Suiee
Executive Directors"o*

Mr. Li Yilun (President)°®
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu°*

Note: Subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this annual report, certain changes to the Board and senior management of the
Company have taken place. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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Non-executive Directors'o®

Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick (Chairman)

Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Yang Xiaosheng

Members of the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Wang Minhao (Chairman)

Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Yang Xiaosheng

Members of the Nomination Committee’”

Mr. Chen Sui (Chairman)\°e
Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng

Note: Subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this annual report, certain changes to the Board and senior management of the
Company have taken place. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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Corporate Information

NaER

Members of the Investment and
Risk Management Committee

Mr. Xing Ping (former Chairman) (resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. Xia Linquan (former Chairman) (appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (Chairman) (appointed on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Yang Xiaosheng

Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Company Secretary
Mr. Lee Kin
Authorized Representatives

Mr. Li Yilun"® (with Mr. Wong Chun Cheong as his alternate)
Mr. Lee Kin

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Eversheds Sutherland
37/F, One Taikoo Place
Taikoo Place

979 King's Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the Financial

Reporting Council Ordinance
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

Note: Subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this annual report, certain changes to the Board and senior management of the

Company have taken place. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor

North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Center

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
34/F, ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road

Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
9/F, Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

China Development Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch
Suites 3307-3315

33/F, One International Finance Centre

1 Harbour View Street

Central

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13/F, Standard Chartered Bank Building

4-4A Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Corporate Information
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor

North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda
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Major Events in 2021
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Received the “Excellence Award for
Informationization of China Energy Enterprise” from
“China Information Industry Association”

REMMPEERBEIREN

Won the “Best Energy and

Resources Company” award at the
“Fifth Golden Hong Kong Stocks Annual
Awards Ceremony”
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Febzs Octios

50 MW Wuhai photovoltaic base project in Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region:

February: Received the national award of “China
Installation Works Merit Award (China Installation Star)”
from “China Installation Association”

October: Selected into the

“National Major Project Archives —Energy Volume (Part 1)”
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Mar 3z

Won the “Most Innovative Value Award

in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao

Greater Bay Area” in the first

“Navigation ‘9+2’ Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area Awards” campaign
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Announced the annual results for 2020
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Major Events in 2021
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Guangxi Branch received the honorable
title of “Regional Qutstanding

Institution for Poverty Alleviation”
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Mayss Decizs

260 MW Dangtu Photovoltaic Power Station in
Anhui Province:

May: Awarded the “2021 China Quality Electric Power

Project Award”

December: Received a national award —

the “National Quality Engineering Award”
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Major Events in 2021
2021 KS5C
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Participated in the “6th Global Offshore Wind Summit”
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Hugss

Announced the
interim results for 2021

2021 ERHAZES
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Participated in the “2021 Wind Energy Business Leaders’
Symposium”
Sl 2021 @A EEE AEXE]
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Investor Relatlons Awards
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i Won “three awards at the 7th Investor Relations
‘;. = S E p EH Awards of the Hong Kong Investor Relations

Association (HKIRA)”, namely “Best IR Company”,

The “Power Marketing Information Management and Spot “Best Annual Report”, Mr. Lee Kin, the Assistant
Intelligent Auxiliary Decision Making Platform” won the first ", President and Company Secretary of the Company,
prize of “Golden Apple Award” in the technical achievement wonythe “Best IRO” award
category for power scientific and technological achievements LB BREERABZHKRAEEE
at the “China Electricity Technology Market Association" &ﬁ%ﬁﬁ{% IEAAE | .
ENEHEREERFREERHEIRR REKBERAABIN [ REFERS
KEMPEEARMMEZHEIE 7‘3%4&5}?,% REIBNEBH R ABMERTRILLERE
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Major Events in 2021
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30 MW Chahar Right Middle Banner (Haopu) Photovoltaic

Power Station in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region won Participated in the “1st BFA G|°b?| Economic
the honorary title of “AAAA-level Unit in the Benchmarking of Development and Security Forum

Production and Operation Statistical Indicators for National ZNMMBEDNREEZRKESEREZE2HE
Solar Photovoltaic Power Stations in China in 2020” issued BEKXE

by the “China Electricity Council”
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Heciz2s

Mr. Lee Kin, the Assistant President and Company
Secretary of the Company, won the

“11th China Securities Golden Bauhinia Award:
Best Secretary of the Board of Directors of
Listed-Companies”
REBBERF AR MEFRILERE
ME+—EPEES T KR !
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Jecizs

Won three awards in the
“2021 China Financial Market Award”,
namely the “Best Listed Comp: , the
“Best Corporate Governance” and Mr. Lee Kin, the Assistant
President and Company Secretary of the Company,
won the “Best Secretary of the Board”
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TRECESAIRARNEREFABINEERAFESE
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Heci12s

Won the “Best Shareholder Relationship Award”
in the “Fifth China Excellence IR Awards Ceremony”
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Chairman’s StatementVere
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ontinuing our adherence to the basic
C principles of “Safety First, Quality Foremost
and Pursuing Excellence”, the Company implements
the work style of “Stringency, Prudence,
Meticulosity and Pragmatism” to continuously
maintain high-quality development

N\ JREER (228 — BEX—
LAQY$EJWE$§J‘§ﬁF§E%EJ
BIfFER  JBRTSEEUE

Chen Sui
FER 3 g———

Chairman T /&

Dear Honourable Shareholders, EWMNEURE

2021 was the first year of the "14th Five-Year Plan", and it was also the first 2021ER+HUAE I BHEZE H2RAE - LREBF
year for wind power and photovoltaic power generation to achieve grid parity. B ELENE—F - BT EFHABIEL —SiEEK
President Xi Jinping clearly stated the goals of peak carbon dioxide emissions 71 F I 2030FAIZEF|IEE ~ B FEN2060FFIEFIR
by 2030 and achievement of carbon neutrality by 2060, setting a new beacon x> AHEERE MM BEKEBIR L TN
for China's energy revolution and green and low-carbon transition. iz o

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021



Chairman’s Statementtere

The development prospect of new energy is broad, firm and long-term. In
2021, the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State
Council issued the “Working Guidance for Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality
in Full and Faithful Implementation of the New Development Philosophy” ({F&
RNEERER2AERNTERESHMEHREBRKRFTMIENRRY). The
Guidance requires: promoting substitutions of renewable energy resources,
vigorously develop wind, solar, biomass, marine, and geothermal energy
sources among others, and continuously increase the share of non-fossil
energy in total energy consumption. The State Council further released the
“Action Plan for Peak Carbon Emissions by 2030” ({2030 Akt iZE&1TEN
FZ)). The Plan sets out interim specific targets for achieving carbon peak
and carbon neutrality. By 2025, the share of non-fossil fuels in total energy
consumption will reach around 20%. By 2030, the share of non-fossil energy
consumption will reach around 25%. By 2030, total installed generation
capacity of wind and solar power will reach above 1,200 GW, which has
clarified new tasks for the development of wind power and photovoltaic power
generation.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The Company has continued to adhere to the basic principles of "Safety
First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence", practice the work style
of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity and Pragmatism", and pay close
attention to key links. The Company has formulated effective measures, and
strictly controlled the safety, quality and progress of project construction, to
accelerate the overall construction of projects, and go all out to accomplish
the annual commissioning target, which facilitated the Company’s sustainable
development with high quality.

In 2021, the profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted to US$184.8
million, representing an increase of 14.0% compared with last year; basic
earnings per share of the Company reached US$4.31 cents (equivalent
to HK$33.59 cents per share). As at 31 December 2021, the attributable
installed capacity of the Company’s power plants reached 8,404.6 MW,
representing a year-on-year increase of 11.3%. During the year, the new
attributable installed capacity reached 1,046.0 MW.

In 2021, in the face of the ongoing and severe pandemic, our production,
operation and maintenance system strictly implemented the Company's
various deployment requirements on pandemic prevention and control and
production and operation, strengthened external lean benchmarking and
internal equipment management, and steadily promoted pandemic prevention
and control and production safety. In 2021, the Company's power generation
reached 18,162.0 GWh, representing an increase of 31.4% compared with
13,825.2 GWh last year. The condition of production safety was stable, and
our production and operation maintained a good momentum.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company will always adhere to its corporate mission of "developing clean
energy and building a beautiful China". During the "14th Five-Year Plan" period,
the Company will continue to consolidate the good development of new energy
business, increase investment, and contribute to achieving the national "30.60"
“carbon peak and carbon neutrality” goals.

Chen Sui
Chairman

22 March 2022

Note: Mr. Chen Sui resigned as a non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this
annual report.
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President’s StatementVere

e T

ocusing on the national “30.60” dual-carbon
F goal, the Company actively deploys the “14th
Five-Year” strategic plan, and deepens our new
energy business, in order to make continuous
contributions to the mission of “developing clean
energy and building a beautiful China”

N\ B FRIOEXR (3060 E€REE » BARS
[+00h ) EEERE - FBEHFEREF
nTREBRER - BREEDEH HFESE =

Li Yilun
Z N

President 483

Dear Honourable Shareholders, B RE

In 2021, under the correct leadership of the Board of the Company and with 2021F > FERAREEENIEEBEE T E2ENE S
the concerted efforts of all staff, the Company implemented safety, quality and B T ' ZEBEREREZE TEIEES S EZERDP
environmental management and control, and demonstrated the responsibility SEEE ABRITEKT 30.60 ) EHREZ  BHRILSB
and commitment of a central enterprise in the resumption of work and +HA EERRE FEEBEMSEME  TREESR
production. The Company focused on the national “30.60” dual-carbon 4 EBE#FHFENRGFLEBNED  FEFHINERE
goal, and actively deployed the “14th Five-Year” strategic plan. Leveraging o

its own sound experience and advantages in market development, project

construction, production, operation and maintenance, etc., the Company

continued to deepen its new energy business.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021



President’s Statementhere

INDUSTRY LANDSCAPE

Under the “carbon peak and carbon neutrality” and the strategic goal of
building a new power system, there is huge room for the development of
new energy business. With the strategic transformation of traditional energy
enterprises, the market competition has become increasingly fierce. The
strategic position, development environment and market structure of new
energy have all undergone great changes. The Company maintained its
strategic focus and adhered to the high-quality and lean development route.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION
MANAGEMENT

While doing a good job of normalizing pandemic prevention and control,
the Company strengthened safety management and quality management,
continuously improved the level of equipment operation and maintenance and
contributed to the high-quality development of the Company. We recorded
1,002.0 MW new consolidated installed capacity of wind power and 47.8 MW
new consolidated installed capacity of photovoltaic power during the year. It is
expected that the growth of new operating capacity in 2022 will remain stable.

In order to fight the “2021 Electricity Price Defense War”, the Company
vigorously carried forward the work style of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity
and Pragmatism”, made concerted efforts to overcome difficulties, and
actively deployed vessel and machinery resources and equipment. The
Company scientifically and rationally arranged construction, and optimized
the management and control process. Two offshore wind power projects
were successfully completed and put into operation: Rudong H8# in Jiangsu
Province and Shengsi 5#6# in Zhejiang Province. After the wind turbine is
connected to the grid, it can save standard coal and reduce carbon dioxide
emissions, effectively helping to achieve the goals of “carbon peak and carbon
neutrality”.

The Company won a number of engineering and capital market awards
during the year: the Company continued to explore and innovate its project
construction. In 2021, the Dangtu Photovoltaic Power Station in Anhui Province
with a capacity of 260 MW received the “2021 China Quality Electric Power
Project Award” (2021FEFEE BB TE%E)and “2020-2021 National
Quality Engineering Award” (2020-2021EEZFEZKEE T24E), becoming the
first fishing-photovoltaic complementary photovoltaic power station project to
win this honor. The Company attached great importance to the field of investor
relations. In 2021, it won “three awards at the 7th Investor Relations Awards
of the Hong Kong Investor Relations Association (HKIRA)”. The Company
has established extensive, stable and effective communication channels with
investors, maintained a high level of corporate governance, and continued to
present the investment value of itself and the industry to the capital market.

China’s new energy industry has entered a new historical stage, facing new
development characteristics and new challenges. The Company’s development
front kept track of the trend of national policies and the dynamics of industry
development, focused on winning the battle of market development, and
actively explored new modes of development of traditional parity and bidding
projects, large base projects and extended business.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company will continue to overcome difficulties and work hard, strictly
abide by the basic principles of “Safety First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing
Excellence”, implement the work style of “Stringency, Prudence, Meticulosity
and Pragmatism”, and strengthen organizational leadership, in order to make
continuous contributions to the mission of “developing clean energy and
building a beautiful China”.

Li Yilun
President

22 March 2022

Note: Mr. Li Yilun resigned as an executive Director and the President on 8 April 2022. Please
refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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Distribution of Projects

IBEHD 1 E

A Wind Solar Gas-fired Cogen Coal-fired =& Qijl-fired d Hydro Biomass
Tr = ) M Gt i = 4 @ B
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Henan, China

Total Installed Capacity

Guizhou, China

Total Installed Capacity

HhE AR BEREES hESM BERES
/
™ 637 MWkE 170 Mwsks
5.7 MwikE

Guangxi, China

Total Installed Capacity

Gansu, China Total Installed Capacity :F,EIL%E it i

hEHH RS ™ 135.9 MwkE

"_1‘3‘: 889.8 MwikE é 72 MWE
101 MwkE

Jiangxi, China Total Installed Capacity

Qinghai, China Total Installed Capacity q:,lﬁlilﬁ g
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’I_D)L- 118.1 mwyr
160 MwiE
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Inner Mongolia, China
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Distribution of Projects
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Total Installed Capacity
BERAE

4.5 MwkE
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BERRAE

66.2 MWiE
294.6 MwikR
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BERAE

404.2 MwkE

10.6 mwitE
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BERAE
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Financial and Operating Highlights
HBREDRE

EBITDA REVENUE
fE R M N0y S 6 8 2 A
(US$ million) (US$ million)
o 892 o 1 895
1
Increased by 40% Increased by 47%
as compared with 2020 as compared with 2020
£t 20203810 40% Lt 2020381004 7%
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY EPS
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY SRR
I\ﬁaﬁgéﬂgﬁlﬁ%}ﬁﬂ US cents per share i . b
(US$ million) SRENW .
I. y -

Increased by 14% Increased by 14%

g . as compared with 2020 gt ¢ as compared with 2020
y £t 20201870 14% £ 20203870 14%
T ———

ATTRIBUTABLE :' POWER
INSTALLED GENERATION

CAPACITY BES
RS =T
MW JEEL

2020 2020
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Management Oiscussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

China’s power market:
Important national strategies and the “14th Five-Year Plan”

In 2021, the electricity supply and demand was generally tight in
China. According to the data published by the National Energy
Administration of the PRC (“NEA”), the installed capacity of the PRC
amounted to 2,376.9 GW throughout the year, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.9%, while electricity consumption amounted to
8,312.8 TWh, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.3%.

The accumulated grid-connected wind power capacity for 2021
reached 328.5 GW, with a year-on-year increase of 16.6%, while the
annual accumulated on-grid wind power generation amounted to
655.6 TWh, representing a year-on-year growth of 40.5%. In 2021, the
accumulated grid-connected solar power capacity recorded 306.6 GW,
with a year-on-year increase of 20.9%. The annual accumulated on-grid
solar power generation amounted to 327.0 TWh, representing a year-
on-year growth of 25.2%.

In March 2021, the “Outline of 14th Five-Year Plan for the National
Economic and Social Development and the Long-Range Objectives
Through the Year 2035 of the People’s Republic of China” ({FRZE A
ERNEBERELSENHEERESE T HERFHREFM2035F 2585
Z49FE)) was promulgated to propose the following: accelerating
the development of non-fossil fuels, insisting on both centralized and
distributed projects, scaling up wind power and photovoltaic power
generation, expediting the development of distributed power projects in
the eastern and central regions, developing offshore wind power in an
orderly manner, accelerating the construction of hydropower bases in
the southwest regions, and promoting the safe and secure construction
of coastal nuclear power plants. At the end of the “14th Five-Year Plan”
period, the proportion of non-fossil fuels in total energy consumption
will increase to around 20%.

In April 2021, President Xi Jinping delivered an important speech at
the Leaders’ Summit on Climate. President Xi Jinping emphasized
to build a community with shared life between mankind and nature,
adhere to the harmonious symbiosis of human and nature, adhere
to green development, adhere to system management, adhere to the
people-oriented philosophy, adhere to multilateralism and adhere to
the principle of common but differentiated responsibilities. China will
strive to achieving carbon peak by 2030 and carbon neutrality by
2060, which is the responsibility of China to promote the building of a
community with a shared future for mankind and an important strategic
decision made for the inherent requirement to realize the sustainable
development.

In October 2021, President Xi Jinping announced on the United
Nation’s Leaders’ Summit on “Convention on Biological Diversity” ({4
Y Z M%) that, China will release implementation plans for
carbon peak emissions in key areas and sectors as well as a series
of supporting measures. China will continue to readjust its industrial
structure and energy mix, vigorously develop renewable energy, and
make faster progress in planning and developing large wind power and
photovoltaic bases in sandy areas, rocky areas and deserts.
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Management Oiscussion and Analysis

B E A DT

Policies related to carbon peak, carbon neutrality and green
development

In October 2021, the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China (CPC) and the State Council issued the “Working Guidance for
Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality in Full and Faithful Implementation
of the New Development Philosophy” ((RIMN =B EEE2EEH
HEREBESMITFREZERKRTAMI/EMNER)), which required the
following: Accelerating the development of a clean, low-carbon, safe
and efficient energy system and strengthening the dual-controls over
energy consumption intensity and gross energy consumption volume;
Promoting substitutions of renewable energy resources, vigorously
developing wind, solar, biomass, marine, and geothermal energy
sources among others, and continuously increasing the share of non-
fossil energy in total energy consumption; Advocating both centralized
and distributed energy production, while prioritizing local development
and use of wind and solar power.

In October 2021, the State Council published the “Action Plan for
Peak Carbon Emissions by 2030” ({ 2030FE AR ZEIEITTENHE)),
which proposed the interim specific goals in respect of achieving
carbon peak and carbon neutrality. By 2025, the proportion of non-
fossil energy consumption will reach approximately 20%, while energy
consumption per unit of GDP will decrease by 13.5% as compared with
2020 level. By 2030, the proportion of non-fossil energy consumption
will reach approximately 25% and carbon dioxide emissions per unit
of GDP will drop by more than 65% as compared with 2005 level. By
2030, the total installed capacity of wind power and solar power will
reach above 1,200 GW. During the period of the “14th Five-Year Plan”
and “15th Five-Year Plan”, the newly added hydro power installed
capacity will be around 40 GW. The proportion of renewable energy
power generated by new transmission channels will not be less than
50%. By 2025, the installed capacity of new energy storage will reach
more than 30 GW. By 2030, the installed capacity scale of pumped
storage power plants will be around 120 GW and the provincial grid
will basically be equipped with peak load response capacity of over
5%.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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Management Oiscussion and Analysis

In December 2021, the Central Economic Work Conference was
held in Beijing. The Conference emphasized the need to have a
proper understanding of the country’s carbon peak and carbon
neutrality goals. Achieving the goals is intrinsic to advancing high-
quality development, which demands unwavering efforts, but it is not
possible to finish the job in one go: Adhering to the principles of
exercising nationwide planning, prioritizing conservation, leveraging the
strengths of the government and the market, coordinating efforts on
the domestic and international fronts, and guarding against risks; The
gradual phase-out of traditional energy in China should be based on
safe and reliable new energy alternatives; Based on the basic national
situation that coal is the main source of energy, strengthening the
clean and efficient use of coal, increasing the consumption capacity
of new energy, while optimizing the combination use of coal and
new energy; Firmly pursuing breakthroughs in green and low-carbon
technologies; Scientific assessment should be conducted, the newly-
added renewable energy and energy used as raw materials would be
excluded from the cap on total energy consumption, calling for an early
shift from controlling the amount and intensity of energy consumption
to controlling the amount and intensity of carbon emissions, as well as
the early establishment of an incentive and constraint mechanism for
pollution control and carbon reduction, and prevent simple cascading;
To ensure energy supply, large enterprises, especially state-owned
enterprises, should take the lead in maintaining supply and price
stability; Promoting the energy revolution and accelerating the building
of a strong energy nation.

Policies related to the development and construction of new energy
projects

2021 was the beginning year of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and the PRC
government has consecutively introduced programmatic documents,
while the development of wind power and photovoltaic power ushered
in an era of full grid parity in China, which has presented more large-
scale and intensive development trends.

In April 2021, the NEA issued the “Notice on Submitting the 14th Five-
Year Work Plan of Integration of Power Generation, Grid, Load and
Storage and Multi-energy Complementary Development” (B8 #R3%
+MA BN RBEFE—SBENLETRERIIESEZNE)),
which clearly stated that the following projects will receive strategical
supports: the multi-energy complementary projects with the annual
electricity consumption capacity of new energy not lower than 2,000
GWh; the generation, grid, load and energy storage projects with the
annual electricity consumption capacity of new energy not lower than
200 GWh and together the consumption proportion of new energy
electricity consumption not lower than 50% of the overall electricity.
The preferential leverage on the coal-fired project reserves to promote
the integration of wind power, photovoltaic power and thermal power
(with power storage) and encourage the integration of wind power,
photovoltaic power and hydro power (with power storage) as well
as the integration of wind power and photovoltaic power with power
storage, so as to bring the adjustment ability of photothermal power
stations and power storage facilities with thermal energy storage into
full play.
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In May 2021, the NEA promulgated the “Notice on Matters Related
to the Development and Construction of Wind and Photovoltaic
Power in 2021” ({RR2021ERE AL EFMAEEREMEE
RUIBAD)), which specifies the establishment of guaranteed grid
connection, market-based grid connection and other diversified
protection mechanism for grid connection. In particular, guaranteed
grid connection is mainly applicable for project reserves, the grid
connection scale of which is not less than 90 GW. Projects subject to
guaranteed grid connection are centrally organized by the provincial
energy authorities through competitive allocation. Other projects which
are still intended for grid connection may be connected to the grid
by grid companies after fulfilling the grid connection conditions with
flexible resources, such as additional development (by means of self-
construction, joint establishment and sharing, purchase of services and
other market-oriented ways) of new pumped-storage, solar power with
thermal energy storage, peak load regulation of thermal power, new
energy storage and adjustable load.

Policies related to new energy tariff

In June 2021, the National Development and Reform Commission of
the PRC (“NDRC”) promulgated the “Notice on Matters related to New
Energy On-Grid Tariff Policy in 2021” ({B8#2021FMEER A8 EE
B AEMSIERNES)), pursuant to which, newly filed centralized
photovoltaic power plants, industrial and commercial distributed
photovoltaic projects and newly approved onshore wind power projects
will no longer be subsidized by the central government starting from 1
August 2021 and grid parity will be realized.

Policies related to energy storage and grid-connected consumption

In July 2021, the NDRC and the NEA issued the “Guiding Opinions
on Accelerating the Development of New Energy Storage” (RER*
IR S I B EREE BRVIEE Z R )), which explicitly stated that,
by 2025, new energy storage will transform from the initial stage
of commercialization to large-scale development and the market
environment and business model will be basically mature, and the
installed capacity will reach over 30 GW. By 2030, new energy storage
will achieve comprehensive market-driven development, the standard
systems, market mechanisms and business model will be mature and
sound, which will achieve in-depth integration and development of
all aspects of the power system and enable the installed capacity to
basically meet the corresponding demands of new power system. New
energy storage will become one of the key supports for carbon peak
and carbon neutrality in the energy sector.
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Management Oiscussion and Analysis

In July 2021, the NDRC and the NEA published the “Notice on
Encouraging Renewable Energy Power Generation Enterprises to Build
or Purchase Peak Load Capacity to Increase Grid Connection Scale”
(ARSI BEEREECXBENBEERIEE NI MHFAR
HIEHN)), pursuant to which the “market-based grid connection”
policy has been formally implemented to encourage power generation
enterprises to enhance the grid connection scale of installed capacity
for renewable energy through self-construction or purchase of peak
load capacity.

In August 2021, the NEA published the “Medium and Long Term
Development Plan of Pumped-storage (2021-2035)" ({($hi7/kEEERE
HRE R &l (2021-20354F) ), which proposed the basic principles
of ecological priority, harmonious coexistence; regional coordination,
reasonable deployment; maturity first, advance reserve; adapting to
local conditions and innovative development. Pursuant to the Plan, by
2025, the total production scale of pumped storage will double that
of the “13th Five-Year Plan” period and reach over 62 GW. By 2030,
the total production scale of pumped storage will double that of the
“14th Five-Year Plan” period and reach around 120 GW. By 2035, a
modernized industry of pumped storage with advanced technologies,
high-quality management and strong international competitiveness,
which can meet the development needs of a high proportion of large-
scale new energy, will cultivate and establish a number of large-scale
enterprises engaging in pumped storage.

Policies related to offshore wind power

In June 2021, NDRC promulgated the “Notice on Matters Related to
New Energy On-grid Tariff Policy in 2021” (B8 2021 EHBER L4
EERREMEBEMNEEL)) which specified that from 2021 onwards,
the on-grid tariff for newly approved/(filed) offshore wind power
projects shall be set by the local provincial pricing authorities and
be determined through competitive allocation when the projects are
qualified, and when the on-grid tariff is higher than local benchmark
tariff of coal-fired power, the amount within the scope of the local
benchmark price shall be settled by the power grid enterprises. In
addition, the Notice encourages the implementation of offshore wind
power supporting policies in different local areas.

In June 2021, the “Implementation Plan for Promoting the Orderly
Development of Offshore Wind Power and the Sustainable
Development of Related Industries” ({88 FREE FRIEME
BEXDIFELEREMNEM A ZE)) was promulgated in Guangdong
Province. Pursuant to the Plan, the cumulative installed capacity of
offshore wind power projects put into operation in Guangdong Province
will reach 4 GW by the end of 2021, and is aimed to reach 18 GW by
the end of 2025. In addition, for province-managed offshore projects
that were approved before the end of 2018 and will be grid-connected
with full capacity from 2022 to 2024, subsidies of RMB1,500,
RMB1,000 and RMB500 per kW will be provided in the respective
year. No subsidies will be provided for projects connected to the grid
starting from 2025.
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In November 2021, the Zhejiang Development and Reform
Commission issued the “Implementation Opinions on Promoting the
High-quality Development of New Energy in Zhejiang Province (Revised
Draft)” (EAREEMIEFERSEELRENERER (BB,
proposing to vigorously promote the “multiplying project for wind and
solar power” and steadily promote offshore wind power grid parity. In
accordance with the principle of “gradual cease and encouragement
of advancement”, offshore wind power on-grid tariffs will be set on
a yearly basis, and financial and fiscal support will be provided to
support province-managed offshore projects to gradually achieve
grid parity. From 2022 to 2025, for the projects to be supported
(determined through competitive allocation), the total installed capacity
will not exceed 500 MW, 1,000 MW, 1,500 MW and 1,000 MW
respectively.

It is expected that the national offshore wind power will achieve full
parity by the end of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, in order to ensure
the sustainable development of the industry, and before that local
supporting policies will be introduced by different local areas
according to the circumstances.

Korean power market:

As the Korean power market is undergoing a transformation of energy
structure, it is expected that there would be an increase in the use of
renewable energy and more natural gas power plants in the future. As
the operation of new power plants would intensify the competition in
the power market, the profitability of Korean gas-fired power generation
companies was hindered.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s portfolio of assets comprises wind, solar, gas-fired, coal-
fired, oil-fired, hydro, cogen, fuel cell and biomass projects, which
are in operation in the PRC and Korea power markets. The Group’s
business in the PRC covers 19 provinces, two autonomous regions
and a municipality with a wide geographical coverage and diversified
business scope. As of 31 December 2021, the operations in the
PRC and Korea accounted for approximately 74.2% and 25.8% of the
Group’s attributable installed capacity of 8,404.6 MW, respectively.
Clean and renewable energy projects (namely, wind, solar, gas-
fired, hydro, fuel cell and biomass projects) accounted for 81.4% of
the Group’s attributable installed capacity; and conventional energy
projects (namely, coal-fired, oil-fired and cogen projects) accounted for
18.6% of the Group’s attributable installed capacity.

The following table sets out items selected by us from the results of
the Group (by fuel type):

PRC
Coal-fired,
Cogen and
Korea Gas-fired
projects projects
RERIE
HEBER
US$ million BEET BEER MRER
For the year ended HZE2021F12831H
31 December 2021 LEE
Revenue WA 840.1 141.7
Operating expenses "SRy (787.9) (137.3)
Operating profit R 52.2 4.4
Profit for the year FEREF 24.1 (16.7)
Profit attributable to FABERREREMGER
equity shareholders
of the Company 241 (22.0)
PRC
Coal-fired,
Cogen and
Korea Gas-fired
projects projects
FEIAIE -
HEHERK
US$ million BEET BEEE MREE
For the year ended HE2020512831H
31 December 2020 HFE
Revenue WA 596.3 121.4
Operating expenses RS (534.3) (106.0)
Operating profit &R 62.0 15.4
Profit for the year FEREF 33.0 68.0
Profit attributable to LN i el
equity shareholders
of the Company 33.0 66.2

PRC
Hydro
projects

HEKE
BH

31.2
(18.6)
12.6
14.8

14.0

PRC
Hydro
projects

HEKE
B5H

30.9
(17.5)
13.4
1.7

11.0

2021 EERE
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e AEE

AEBNEEAGEEUNTEERERE AT
BHRE KB RR - RIE R KE B
BHME -MEEOIREYMELZEEE  ~5&F
EHENEEIMIOBEEN MEBEAEKR—
BEED HESKEZ £BHEEZS T -HE
2021 12831H FEIKRBREAD NG EAER
R AR ES8,404.6KFLMT74.2%525.8%° &
BRAIBEERERS BPRE - XBE-RE
KE-MHEMNREYEIER) hAEEERLE
WA EMNS1.4%; BHARIEBEE BMRIE R K
HREHEBEE) RO DERETE118.6%°

TREIARMELEENEETRENRE
(iRt D 48)

PRC PRC
Wind Solar
projects projects  Corporate Total
FERE HEKEGE
EH EH ¥ st
499.5 140.2 42.0 1,694.7
(204.5) (70.0) (56.5) (1,274.8)
295.0 70.2 (14.5) 419.9
215.8 40.6 (76.9) 201.7
210.2 35.4 (76.9) 184.8
PRC PRC
Wind Solar
projects projects Corporate Total
TERE FEKXREE
JEH J5H i s
265.9 104.8 30.6 1,149.9
(116.8) (45.1) (42.7) (862.4)
149.1 59.7 (12.1) 2875
95.9 28.3 (69.3) 167.6
92.9 28.3 (69.3) 162.1

| HEEENERERERAE

25



Korea Projects

The utilization hours of our Korea gas-fired plants increased from
4,320 hours to 4,621 hours in 2021, which was mainly due to an
increase in the load of power grid dispatch in 2021 and an overhaul
undergone in 2020.

Net profit decreased from US$33.0 million to US$24.1 million, which
was mainly attributable to lower gross margin in gas-fired plants.

PRC Coal-fired, Cogen and Gas-fired
Projects

The substantial drop in profit for the year from US$68.0 million to loss
of US$16.7 million was mainly attributable to the one-off gain on the
disposal of Shanghai Meiya Jingiao Energy Co., Ltd. (the “Jinqiao JV”)
amounted to US$18.1 million in 2020 as well as the surge in market
coal price in the second half of 2021, which led to a substantial
decrease in profit of our associates by US$66.9 million.

PRC Wind Projects

In 2021, the Group’s newly commissioned attributable installed
capacity of wind projects amounted to 888.3 MW. The increase
in revenue was mainly attributable to (1) contribution from newly
commissioned wind projects; (2) better wind resources which led to
the increase in average utilization hours from 2,009 hours to 2,383
hours as well as the increase in power generation. Overall, the
operating profit soared to US$295.0 million.

PRC Solar Projects

In 2021, the Group’s newly commissioned attributable installed
capacity of solar projects amounted to 48.2 MW. The increase
in revenue was mainly attributable to (1) contribution from newly
commissioned solar projects; (2) better solar resources which led to
the increase in average utilization hours from 1,348 hours to 1,440
hours as well as the increase in power generation. The profit increased
from US$28.3 million in 2020 to US$40.6 million in 2021.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

Management Oiscussion and Analysis

(S =EECEE A

FREIER

20214 BER R MBI A/ NFFE 4,320/ FF g
MZE4,621/N\E> FTERNERER2021FHER
R B I AN KR 2020F T RIEFTE o

FAHEHEIBEBETRLEM4ABEEETT
EHRMARBREFZ TR

FREIANE  BAEB Gk R A RUIE
=]

FREFHE68.0EEETABFRERIE16.7
HEET TEE2HN20200FHELEETS
BRERERAE ((EBEERE)) NW—I1EUK
F18AEEET R2021E THEEHIHIE SR
FERR MBS QATER KEE 166958
ESEiE

P B 1

20214 » ANEE[F H i ﬁlﬁaﬁz“ﬁif%@gﬁ%
888.3JKF o WA M EZEH()R B HIE =
HENER QR HEREKE i%:&z%’ﬁuﬁﬁd\
B E2,009/\BE 12 =2 383/ VB L Fy 4 3% 55 8 11
e EEME  KEHRMNEZFE295.08EETo

FEXFEEEER

2021  AEEMIE KIGAETEEERERAE
%48 2K FL o WA IEIN EZ A (1)1 K5 AE
HENER QABEERRE  BRFHFH
FR/NBFE 1,348/ \BFHE 51,440/ VB LU R 4B 35
=M AT H2020FMW28.3FEETIEME
2021 K406 BB ETT o



Installed Capacity

The attributable installed capacity of the Group’s power assets as of

Management Oiscussion and Analysis

31 December 2021 and 2020 by fuel type are set out as follows:

Clean and renewable energy portfolio

Wind
Solar
Gas-fired
Hydro
Biomass

Subtotal

Conventional energy portfolio

Coal-fired
Oil-fired
Cogen

Subtotal

Total attributable installed capacity

3,8494 +——————
(45.8%)

iyt 2021

1,655.0
(19.7%) \

94.1

(1.1%)

B E s mEA DT

BHEE
KEEFRB %éfi'.;: ER2021F K20205F125
STHMNEREMARSRIMEEL 2B W
T
As at 31 December
®12H831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
(mw) (MW)
(JER) CKkE)
BRERABERERES
RE 3,849.4 2,961.1
KA 1,136.8 1,088.6
IR 1,655.0 1,655.0
KE 94.1 137.3
e 109.5 -
INEE 6,844.8 5,842.0
BRERES
MRIE 989.8 1,138.6
Japis 507.0 507.0
HMEHE 63.0 63.0
/INEE 1,559.8 1,708.6
MEDRRKEE 8,404.6 7,550.6

109.5
(1.3%)

\—- 63.0
(0.8%)
—- 507.0
(6.0%)

989.8
(11.8%)

Total %%,{ DT B.‘I 04.8B vwus=

Clean and renewable energy portfolio

ARRABEERES
+ JER o+ B

N Gasired 4

(@, Biomass
O EME

Hydro
KT

6,844.8 MWIEE (81.4%)

5,842.0 MWIKE (77.4%)

2021
2020

2,961.1 ]
(39.2%)

1,088.6 .
(14.4%) 63.0
2020 yw%
\
507.0
1,655.0 «— (6.7%)
(21.9%) 1,138.6
(15.1%)
137.3
(1.9%)

Total fﬁ% EJF ZSEDB MWIKE

Conventional energy portfolio

SRRERAES

Coal-fired Oil-fired ==
e L .

1,559.8 MWJEEL (18.6%)
Cogen

1,708.6 MWYKE, (22.6%) RBHE ‘%
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In 2021, the newly added consolidated installed capacity of the
Group was 1,159.3 MW. In particular, the newly added consolidated
installed capacity of wind power was 1,002.0 MW, the newly added
consolidated installed capacity of solar power was 47.8 MW and the
newly added consolidated installed capacity of biomass power was
109.5 MW.

In 2021, the Group steadily promoted the development of its wind
power business. The newly added consolidated installed capacity
was mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 307.5 MW in Jiangsu
Province, (2) 231.2 MW in Zhejiang Province, (3) 100.0 MW in
Heilongjiang Province, (4) 90.4 MW in Henan Province, (5) 70.0 MW
in Hunan Province, (6) 68.1 MW in Qinghai Province, (7) 52.8 MW in
Jiangxi Province, (8) 46.8 MW in Gansu Province and (9) 35.2 MW in
Anhui Province.

In 2021, the Group’s two offshore wind power projects, i.e. Rudong
H8# project in Jiangsu Province (with a consolidated installed capacity
of 300 MW) and Shengsi 5# and 6# projects in Zhejiang Province
(with a consolidated installed capacity of 281.25 MW), were connected
to the grid in full capacity as planned.

In 2021, the Group further strengthened the development of its solar
power business. The newly added consolidated installed capacity
was mainly distributed by region as follows: (1) 30.0 MW in Guizhou
Province, (2) 14.0 MW in Gansu Province and (3) 3.8 MW in Hunan
Province.

In addition, the Group commenced commercial operation of the 109.5
MW Daesan biomass project in Korea in the first half of 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the consolidated installed capacity of the
Group reached 7,745.3 MW.

In 2021, the newly added attributable installed capacity of the Group
was 1,046.0 MW. In particular, the newly added attributable installed
capacity of wind power was 888.3 MW, the newly added attributable
installed capacity of solar power was 48.2 MW and the newly added
attributable installed capacity of biomass power was 109.5 MW.

In the first half of 2021, the attributable installed capacity of the coal-
fired projects of the Group decreased by 148.8 MW, as the Group’s
Nanyang General Light coal-fired project in Henan Province entered
into an asset transfer agreement with a third party and completed the
relevant asset transfer. In the second half of 2021, the attributable
installed capacity of the hydro projects of the Group decreased by
43.2 MW, as the cooperation of Group’s Zuojiang hydro project in the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region with a local partner ended and
the hydro power station was officially handed over to the local partner
for operation and management.
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As at 31 December 2021, the attributable installed capacity of the
Group reached 8,404.6 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of
11.3%. In particular, the attributable installed capacity of wind power
amounted to 3,849.4 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of
888.3 MW or 30.0%; whereas the attributable installed capacity of
solar power amounted to 1,136.8 MW, representing a year-on-year
increase of 48.2 MW or 4.4% . The wind power and solar power
accounted for 59.3% of the Group’s attributable installed capacity.

The Company has been adhering to the principle of high-quality
development and expedited project construction. It is expected that the
growth of new operating capacity in 2022 will remain steady.

Safety Management

During the development process, the Company has always insisted on
taking President Xi Jinping’s important statement on safety production
and the thought of ecological civilization as the fundamental
guidelines, fully recognized that safety is our top priority, insisting that
the people and life be paramount, adhering to the basic principles
of “Safety First, Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, and
incorporating the work style focusing on “Stringency, Prudence,
Meticulosity and Pragmatism” into our corporate safety culture and
continuously cultivating it. In 2021, the Company’s overall safety,
quality and environmental control was stable but progressive, the
safe production trend was generally under control, the safety culture
of organizations at all levels and the safety awareness of employees
were enhanced on a continuous basis, which facilitated the continuous
enhancement of a culture of transparency.

Supervising the implementation of responsibilities: The Company
combined the latest requirements of the Safety Production Law with
the full establishment of a safety production responsibility system
for all employees, and formed a safety responsibility list covering all
positions with the purpose of “One Position, One List”. Staff member
of each unit would be comprehensively evaluated in respect of their
performance in safety, quality and environment based on the daily
points, performance-based interviews and performance results, and
completed the supervision over senior, mid-level and basic-level
management leaders regarding their safety, quality and environment
performance.

Strengthened standardized construction: The Company has attached
great importance to the standardized construction of safety, quality and
environmental matters, implemented a special supervision mechanism
for standardization, comprehensively revised the safety, quality and
environmental standardization assessment standards, established a
standardized action list, system list, record list and account list, sorted
out the required actions for standardized construction, and guided the
sites for the standardized construction.

2021 FERE |
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Establishment of dual-prevention mechanism: The Company has
further improved its safety risk grading and control mechanism and
the mechanism for detection and management of hidden risks. In
accordance with the characteristics of the new energy industry, the
Company has compiled internal risk assessment standards and
conducted quantitative and graded safety risk assessment and early
warning for each unit on a monthly basis, so as to increase the
intensity of attention and supervision. The Company has also formed
a safety checklist database to guide basic units to carry out safety
inspections and hidden risk detection.

Focusing on the three-year action plan: The Company has established
a three-year action plan in relation to administrative measures to
clarify work objectives, summarize, evaluate and report on the work
mechanism, dynamically supplement and adjust the list of hidden
issues and the system list, continuously increase resource and capital
investments, and set up a work promotion and award incentive
mechanism for the three-year action plan to focus on solving important
and difficult safety production issues.

Adhering strictly to epidemic prevention and control: Bearing in mind
its role as a state-owned enterprise and its highest political standing,
the Company strengthened the operation of a prevention guidance
mechanism dedicated for the COVID-19 outbreak, formed an epidemic
prevention system featuring diversified, recurring and long-term multi-
disease prevention and civil-military integration, and adhered to the
tight, speedy and strict prevention and control standards on a long-
term basis.

Project Construction

In the face of multiple challenges such as short construction period,
tight supply, and recurrent outbreaks, the Company’s engineering army
has always adhered to the basic principles of “Safety First, Quality
Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, promoted the progress of project
construction in an orderly manner, and made every effort to win the
battle of putting offshore and onshore projects into operation. First, to
promote process supervision continuously and improve the progress
of project construction. Second, to strengthen the refined management
and control of the whole process continuously, and for the cost
control at the leading level in the industry. Third, to comprehensively
strengthen overall planning, to optimize organizational management
continuously, to lock in vessel and machinery resources in a timely
manner, to strictly control key links in order to win the battle of putting
offshore wind power projects into operation, to achieve industry
leadership and facilitate the continuous high-quality development of the
Company.
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Onshore Development of Preliminary
Projects

In 2021, in the face of wind power and photovoltaic power achieving
full grid-parity and the first year of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, as well
as the increased difficulty in project development caused by policy
changes in the new era, the Company strictly controlled the quality
of project development, ensured high-quality resource reserves,
and actively participated in the application of guaranteed projects
and market-oriented projects in various provinces. The Company
independently planned projects according to local conditions, focused
on key areas, and formed a development strategy of “one policy for
one province” and “one policy for one project”.

In 2022, the Company will pay close attention to the new energy
policies of the country and various regions, accurately grasp the
market situation, adhere to the priority of efficiency, technology
leadership and innovation drive, focus on the development of
high-quality projects, and actively promote the application of new
technologies and new models. The Company will adhere to open
cooperation with three major alliances of “strategy, technology and
industry” to form a development community. The Company will adhere
to the pilot program first, actively integrate with the national strategy of
“rural revitalization”, and develop rooftop distributed photovoltaic and
decentralized wind power businesses throughout the county, which
will make greater contributions to the realization of carbon peak and
carbon neutrality.

Offshore Wind Power

In 2021, the major focus of the PRC offshore wind power industry was
the centralized construction of parity projects, with an additional annual
capacity of 16.9 GW for grid-connected offshore wind power projects.
With the local policies in relation to offshore wind power during “14th
Five-Year Plan” became gradually clearer, it is expected that each
offshore-related province will carry out a new round of offshore wind
power project approval from 2022 onwards.

The Company has maintained steady development of offshore wind
power business, and have planned in advance and make reasonable
deployment with reference to national policies and the Company’s
overall strategies such that the Company can make every effort to
complete its goals. In 2021, the Company’s Rudong H8# project in
Jiangsu Province and Shengsi 5# and 6# projects in Zhejiang Province
were connected to the grid in full capacity as planned.
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Power Generation

The power generation (GWh) of the projects of the Group are set out
as follows:

PRC wind projects FEEEEE

PRC solar projects FEXGEEE
PRC cogen and gas-fired projects FRE 2A B B E S A LT
PRC hydro projects FEKEEE
Korea projects EEHIEE

Total st

Throughout 2021, the Group’s production, operation and maintenance
activities focused on lean operation and operation quality improvement,
and further promoted a three-year campaign of special rectification
of production safety, equipment health management and information
empowerment, focusing on key tasks such as safety assurance, talent
cultivation, technical supervision, quality and efficiency improvement
and digital transformation to provide strong protection for stable
power supply. As of 31 December 2021, the electricity generated
by the Group’s consolidated power generation projects amounted to
18,162.0 GWh, representing an increase of 31.4% from 13,825.2 GWh
as compared with that of last year. The increase in power generation
was mainly due to the contribution from newly commissioned wind and
solar projects and from the increase in power generation of the existing
wind and solar projects. The electricity generated by wind power
projects and solar power projects reached 7,624.3 GWh and 1,590.1
GWh, representing growth rates of 71.2% and 16.7%, respectively.

The power generation from PRC hydro projects reached 759.5 GWh,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.3%, mainly due to the end
of the cooperation between the Group’s Zuojiang hydro project in
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and the local partner. In October
2021, the hydro power station was officially handed over to the local
partner for operation and management, resulting in a decrease in
power generation from PRC hydro projects in 2021.

The power generation from Korea projects reached 7,769.9 GWh,
mainly from gas-fired and biomass projects, representing a year-on-
year increase of 15.9%. The main reason for the increase of power
generation was that the gas-fired project experienced an increase in
the load of power grid dispatch in 2021 and underwent an overhaul
in 2020, resulting in an increase of power generation of the Korea
projects in 2021.

The total steam sold by the Group amounted to 3,299,000 tonnes,
representing a slight decrease of 1.6% as compared with 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December

HE128318LLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
7,624.3 4,452.4
1,590.1 1,362.4
418.2 430.8
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7,769.9 6,703.9
18,162.0 13,825.2
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The following table sets out the average utilization hour applicable to
our projects for the Group:

Average utilization hour by fuel type™

PRC Wind Projects®
PRC Solar Projects®
PRC Coal-fired Projects®
PRC Cogen Projects®
PRC Hydro Projects®

Korea Gas-fired Projects!”

Notes:

M

@)

(5)

)

FEEBEE®
PEIKGEEB®
FEAEEE®
PEIMEHEEES
hEIKEEB®

BHEMRER

Average utilization hour is the gross electricity generated in a specified period
divided by the average installed capacity in the same period.

Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2021 for the PRC
wind projects in major regions such as Gansu Province, Henan Province
and Shandong Province were 2,043 hours, 2,456 hours and 2,276 hours,
respectively. Average utilization hours for the PRC wind power projects
increased mainly due to better overall wind resources which led to increase in
the total volume of electricity generation.

Average utilization hours for the year ended 31 December 2021 for the PRC
solar projects in major regions such as Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region,
Anhui Province, Guizhou Province and Qinghai Province were 1,712 hours,
1,273 hours, 961 hours and 1,676 hours, respectively. Average utilization
hours for the PRC solar power projects increased mainly due to better
overall solar resources which led to increase in the total volume of electricity
generation.

Average utilization hour for the PRC coal-fired projects increased in 2021 due
to increase in power generation as the operations of the associates in Hubei
Province continued to recover from the impact of COVID-19 pandemic in
2020.

Average utilization hour for the PRC cogen projects decreased in 2021 due
to decrease in local demand, which led to decrease in total volume of power
generation.

Average utilization hour for the PRC hydro projects decreased in 2021 mainly
due to the end of cooperation of a hydro project with a local partner in Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region during the year which caused a decrease in
power generation.

QOur Korea gas-fired power projects had higher utilization hour in 2021 mainly
due to the higher electricity generation of Yulchon | Power Project and Yulchon
Il Power Project as a result of an increase in the load of power grid dispatch in
2021 and an overhaul undergone in 2020.

TR AEENIEE EAN TN BN

BMAEERE 2B TR AN

For the year ended 31 December

2021 EERE

HE12A31HILLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
2,383 2,009
1,440 1,348
4,729 4,252
5,037 5,685
3,923 4,500
4,621 4,320

FIERM ARSI E R ELENEEERL
ZHBHNTHEREE-

B ZE2021F 128318 LEFEE FERAEBIEER
REHRE - ITEERLUREEIERENT
BRI BNEED B 52,043/ 2,456/\BF K
2,276/\B5 o P EI B I8 B 0 FHH B/ EF g
Mo EEZHRRAEE RERS M T EREE

BEEM-

HE2021F1283HEEE  IRARH
AR ZHE ENEREEESEETER
HHWPEABEES FHEABNED RS
1,712/0BF~ 1,273/~ 961/ VB K2 1,6767))
B o FRE ARG AETE B B F 59 F) B/ RFIE 0
FTERRABEESREBATEREREE
#Eae

PERIRER B BTN A/NER2021F AP
B0 - Th BE L5 # 30 H pEEE A B 12020
FEHREMRARTEZETFRINVEEET
EMEBERME -

PEEHEEE TSR BNER20214F
B TFE HERATFREAD  BREE

BE T

REIKEBIEER2021FEF IR BN AR
TR IZARFRNEAEAMEAE AR -4
EMSFEANKEEESFER SRHE

iRl

AEBMBERRENEBEE R2021FF] B/NEF
Wi EBHMR2021FENEBREAEEETIZM
F2020F ETABERREN—HENEE &
BN_HENEENEEEEM.
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The table below sets out the weighted average tariffs (inclusive of
value-added tax (“VAT”)) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Weighted average tariff (inclusive of VAT)"

Unit

B
PRC Wind Projects RMB per kWh
FEEEIEE BTEBARE
PRC Solar Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIXPZREIER® BTEBARE
PRC Coal-fired Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIMARIEE® BTEBARE
PRC Cogen Projects®® RMB per kWh
REIEAE i EEE W BTEBARE
PRC Hydro Projects® RMB per kWh
FEIKEBIEE® BTEBARE
Korea Gas-fired Projects® KRW per kWh
BEMRIER® STRF®T

Weighted average tariff-steam (inclusive of VAT)

INEEFIGERE —Z&S (FEER)

PRC Cogen Projects” RMB per ton

FREZBHAEER" FWARE

Notes:

(1) The weighted average tariffs are affected not only by the change in the tariff for
each project but also the change in net power generation for each project.

(2) The weighted average tariff of our PRC solar projects decreased in 2021
mainly due to lower tariff of newly commissioned solar projects.

(3) The weighted average tariffs for our PRC coal-fired and PRC cogen projects
remained stable in 2021.

(4) The weighted average tariff for our PRC cogen projects excludes steam tariff.

(5) The weighted average tariff of our PRC hydro projects remained stable in
2021.

(6) The weighted average tariff for Korea gas-fired projects includes the tariff for
the 25.4 MW fuel cell projects owned by Yulchon | Power Project. The increase
in weighted average tariff for our Korea gas-fired projects was in line with the
increase in Korean gas price.

(7) The increase in weighted average tariff of steam in 2021 was in line with the

increase in PRC coal price.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

TREBIAERET TXEABEAREEN S
B K dE BN IE BB AN I T EE (S8 ER
(MEERL)) :

MEFHEE (FEER) O

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B318LLEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
0.54 0.51
0.66 0.71
0.44 0.43
0.45 0.47
0.30 0.28
116.50 93.17
227.55 196.85

MEFHEBEFRREZERENEELHT
B TREEEENFLEENEHTE-

PEKRGAERBMETIIEER2021F T
o TBARFERGEEENEBERE

FEIRIE R PE AR EHEEENINEFESE
BR2021EHRFIRE

TEAEHEESNNEFHEEROER
SR o

FEKEEENMNETEEENR2021F 4

BEMREENNEFHEELERN—H
BNEBEAN25.4AKEMEEMIEENS
B-BEAMREENNETHEELA A
BEXMABERE EABENS-

ERBMETHERR2021F 7 BdE
IRRABM LRABR -
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The following table sets out the weighted average standard coal and
gas prices (inclusive of VAT) applicable to the projects in the PRC and
Korea for the Group for the periods indicated below:

Unit

B
PRC weighted average RMB per ton

standard coal price"®

FRE N4 TR 2E IR E AR 0@ FPARE
Korea weighted average gas price"® KRW per Nm?®
BEMNEFHRAREER® FRRET T KETT
Notes:

M

@)

The weighted average standard coal and the weighted average gas prices are
weighted based on the consumption of gas or coal in each applicable period.

The PRC weighted average standard coal price in 2021 increased drastically
compared to 2020 due to a surge in market coal price.

Our Korea weighted average gas price in 2021 increased compared to 2020
due to the increase in the prices known as the Japanese Crude Cocktail,
which are calculated with reference to the average prices of crude oil imported
into Japan and are an important determinant of natural gas prices in Korean
markets. Yulchon | Power Project’s power purchase agreement allows us to
pass on the fuel cost fluctuations of the tariff to our customers in accordance
with the laws.

Revenue and segment information

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

(1)
(2)

(3)

Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of electricity;

Power plants in Korea — Generation and supply of electricity;
and

Management companies — Provision of management services
to power plants operated by CGN and its subsidiaries.

B E s mEA DT

TRBIET XA ABERN AEEETE
REENEENMETRERERRARER

(ZBER) :
For the year ended 31 December
HE128310LLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
1,226.9 756.1
566.1 438.5
Wizt :
(1) IR EE R METHRARBRTZ

RPESBERABRARNIEEOHFEMET

(2) 2021 R R E N TR EEELE2020
FEEIE IR B TS EE R PTE

(3) R2021F MW BEMEFHXRARER
B2020F LA AR B AR AEORE
wEFA BRAEBRSZEODEBRERANEREBF
HERSTESY  ZBEABREHTIBXAR
BENETERAETERR - EN—HEHEEN
B8 B R D 5T KA BB AL AR
BEEFES

WA R 73 B8 E
AEBREUTZETLRHE
(1) PENEE-ZEREHLE

(2) BENEBR-EBREIME &

(3) EBBAT-AREKRHNEADEE
B B R SR IR AR o
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

M'F’%itc?zi&ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁz!&%@H&)\Ez%”A

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

reportable segments: DT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F128318 L FE
Power plants Power plants Management
in the PRC in Korea companies Total
A = #Y BB R BEMNERK BEAT Fy
Us$’000 us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET T 3&5T FET FET
Segment revenue — external 73 BB UL A —FhEB 812,121 840,126 42,411 1,694,658
Segment results DEBEELE 266,761 30,476 2,020 299,257
Unallocated other income ROEEMUTA 48
Unallocated operating expenses k%) FCAS & B & (556)
Unallocated finance costs KOECHABEER (25,700)
Share of results of associates L HE AT 4 (37,551)
Profit before taxation R F5 Bi A 235,498
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F12A31HILEE
Power plants Power plants Management
in the PRC in Korea companies Total
F B Y BB A E2 I 1Y BB AR BENE] st
us$’000 USs$’000 Us$’000 Us$’'000
FETT FET FET FET
Segment revenue - external 7 EBULA —HhEB 526,685 596,327 26,880 1,149,892
Segment results I EBZELR 161,285 45,467 1,280 208,032
Unallocated other income FOEEMUTA 48
Unallocated operating expenses k7 ECAS & B (3,976)
Unallocated finance costs RAOECHEER (28,278)
Share of results of associates E{HH= AT 4B 29,342
Profit before taxation BR AR Al e Al 205,168

Segment revenue for power plants in the PRC increased by 54.2%,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in power generation and
the newly commissioned wind and solar projects

Segment revenue for power plants in Korea increased by 40.9%, which
was mainly due to an increase in the load of power grid dispatch in
2021 and an overhaul undergone in 2020.

The Group provides management services to certain subsidiaries of
CGN starting from May 2014. The increase in segment revenue from
the management companies by 57.8% was mainly because of increase
in operating expenses incurred in provision of management services
in 2021.

Annual Report 2021

FEBEERNDFRALINS4.2% B I ER
REBEEMERMRENRERKGREEREEMR
o

BEM B BU AN I40.9% B EEZRP
2021 FEM BB E S EIE MU R2020FF 1 4H
HEITRIEFIE

AEBMB2014F5ARBFEZNE D WEAL
BIRHEEERT REEERIND BUTAE
N57.8% T EBEHPR2021FIREEERBESE
RS EERIEMAE -
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Segment results for power plants in the PRC increased significantly by
65.4%, which was mainly contributed by the newly commissioned wind
and solar projects and better wind and solar resources during the year.

Segment results for power plants in Korea decreased by 33.0%, which
was mainly due to lower gross margin in gas-fired plants.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable segments:

Segment assets SEEE
Power plants in the PRC 3 B9 B B
Power plants in Korea g8 [ B9 5 R
Management companies [=EEiNST
Total segment assets DEEEEE
Interests in associates REE AR NS
Unallocated KD

- Right-of-use assets —fFREEE

- Others — =
Consolidated assets REEE
Segment liabilities SEEE
Power plants in the PRC B B9 E B
Power plants in Korea S E BB R
Management companies BIENT
Total segment liabilities DEPE BT
Unallocated Pl

- Bank borrowings —RTTEE

- Loans from fellow subsidiaries

—REBRNBRARDNER

- Lease liabilities —HEAa®E
- Others —HAth
Consolidated liabilities REBE

The increase in both segment assets and liabilities for power plants in
the PRC in 2021 was mainly due to heavy investment in purchases of
property, plant and equipment for a number of subsidiaries.

The decrease in both segment assets and liabilities for power plants in
Korea in 2021 was mainly due to exchange loss on property, plant and
equipment and repayment of bank borrowings.

B E s mEA DT

PR ER D BEEARIBIEINGES.4% JhEE
HRMRERBMAGREZEERD  UKFRN
RENREERKGEER

BEEBRD A EEMN33.0% T2EHN
MR EFNZRE -

UTRBEAIERDBEDINEIEREERER
PAR/I

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
7,006,114 5,209,023
1,477,402 1,532,511
4,754 4,156
8,488,270 6,745,690
149,238 206,083
3,381 1,441
32,769 23,318
8,673,658 6,976,532
5,526,998 3,944,793
894,997 926,266
958 645
6,422,953 4,871,704
100,000 100,000
700,000 700,000
3,381 1,552
12,128 5,895
7,238,462 5,679,151

Reo21 & FEEEHMN O BEEKREEIE
M BEZHRRSETWERADETRERE
BEYE BMERREMRR-

R2021F BEEEMNDBEEREEIER
Mo BEBERYE -BERRBERGERE
BIRTTHEERR-

2021 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR

37



38

Management Oiscussion and Analysis

B E A DT

Scientific and Technological Innovation

The Company has attached great importance to scientific and
technological innovation, in 2021, it focused on the directions of digital
intelligent operation and maintenance engineering, core technology
innovation breakthroughs, information technology support, among
others, and insisted on the core position of technological innovation,
led the high-quality development of new energy with technological
innovation, assisting the construction of a new power system, and
contributing to the realization of the “dual-carbon” strategic goal.

Deepen the application of intelligent operation and maintenance
platform, empowering the rapid development of new energy business:

The Company’s four centers, namely the centralized control center,
early warning center, data center and safety center, have been
fully rolled out, helping to transform the production, operation
and maintenance business intelligently through standardization,
informatization, centralization, specialization and smart operation.
Upon the completion of the informatization empowerment: to construct
and improve the platform modules of power marketing, financial
management, commercial procurement, audit and early warning,
legal compliance and operation management, helping the Company
continuously improve its digitalization level.

Focusing on key problems breakthrough and driving innovative
development of production, operation and maintenance:

The Company has closely integrated technical innovation with on-
site problem solving, comprehensively strengthened the deployment
of technological innovation, vigorously and orderly promoted the
innovation system mechanism, gathered advantageous resources, and
achievements were made in intelligent operation and maintenance of
offshore wind power, reducing tripping of collector lines, and improving
the photovoltaic efficiency, etc., and steadily improved the health
management level of new energy equipment driven by technological
innovation.

Promote the integration project of advanced technology of offshore
wind power to enhance the key capability of operation and
maintenance of offshore wind power:

The Company vigorously promoted the construction of an intelligent
operation platform for offshore wind power, integrating meteorological
and maritime factors, etc., focusing on improving the accuracy of
offshore wind power forecasts, reducing the number of invalid maritime
operations, and effectively utilizing typhoons to enhance the power
generation capacity of wind farms. Since its launch, the system has
effectively reduced construction, operation and maintenance costs and
increased power generation revenue.

In January 2021, the Company received the “Excellence Award for
Informationization of China Energy Enterprise” (FEIfEREEER
1= A FEL) from “China Information Industry Association”. The
Company will continue to promote the innovation-driven strategic
project, focusing on technological innovation and informational support
to achieve high-quality sustainable development.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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Social Responsibility

In 2021, the Company stood on a new starting point of effectively
connecting the consolidation and expansion of the results of poverty
alleviation as well as rural revitalization. The Company went all out
and set off again and continued to strive hard in the new journey
of rural revitalization. The Guangxi branch of the Company received
the honorable title of “Regional Outstanding Institution for Poverty
Alleviation” (2 & R B W ER S 3 £ 88) of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region.

In 2021, the Company prevented more than ten rounds of sudden
pandemic challenges systematically and upheld the goals of “zero
internal infection and zero internal spread”, which has made active
contributions to the anti-pandemic efforts of China. Facing the
extremely heavy rainfall in the Henan region, the Company deployed
in a unified manner and promptly responded, which guaranteed the
electricity supply in the affected areas. At the same time, coupled with
the local actual situations, the Company’s projects actively carried
out various types of consolation, educational assistance and science
promotion activities.

Exchange of Ideas with Industrial Peers

In 2021, the Company participated in a number of conferences in
relation to power industry, in which the Company had discussion and
analysis with representatives from industry authorities and experts
over the development of the industry and hot issues that were widely
concerned by various sectors of the industry.

In July 2021, the Company participated in the “6th Global Offshore
Wind Summit” in Nanning, China. With the theme of “Deepening
Innovation and Multi-Energy Integration — Offshore Wind Power Helps
Achieve Carbon Neutrality” CR1CEIHT > ZEERE—8 LR BB IR H
MBZEEIR), the conference focused on in-depth discussion of certain
industrial hot topics such as the path for offshore wind power to help
achieve carbon neutrality, the means to reduce cost of electricity under
the price parity, carry out strategic development planning and conduct
technological innovation and inter-industry cooperation, etc.

In September 2021, the “2021 Wind Energy Business Leaders’
Symposium” was held in Beijing, China, and the Company participated
in the discussion session. The symposium focused on how the wind
power industry can seize the historical opportunity period brought by
the “dual-carbon” strategy. The issues such as rising non-technical
costs, vicious competition, price fluctuations in the industry chain,
ecological and environmental protection, as well as consumption
access, etc., were communicated and discussed.

2021 FERE |

B E s mEA DT

TEEE
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In October 2021, the “14th CWP” (China Wind Power) was held
in Beijing, China, with the theme of “Carbon Neutrality - New
Opportunities for Wind Power Development” (Bx M —E BRI
1#38) . The Company was invited to participate in its opening ceremony
and the summit forum therein. The conference forum discussed the
construction of a new type of power system, which requires both
vigorous development of wind power and the mutual support and
integrated utilization of multiple energy sources, having joint efforts
from the power generation side, the power grid side and the consumer
side.

In October 2021, the “1st BFA Global Economic Development and
Security Forum” was held in Changsha, China, and the Company
attended the “Promoting Global Ecological Security through Carbon
Neutrality” sub-forum session and participated in the discussion,
which focused on “energy as the main battlefield under the dual-
carbon target”, and systematically elaborated on how to build a
new power system with new energy as the mainstay, and how to
transform the development approach from resource-dependent to
technology-dependent. China’s proposed “dual-carbon” target is
of great significance to the global response to climate change and
maintenance of ecological security, and the development of green
and low-carbon energy has become a common choice for the global
response to climate change.

In the context of the “dual-carbon goal”, the new energy sector will
embrace huge development opportunities, and the development of
the industry has taken a big step into the fast lane. The Company has
demonstrated its responsibility as a state-owned enterprise and will
steadily maintain its strategic determination to vigorously develop new
energy and grasp the opportunities in the wind power and photovoltaic
sectors.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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Brand Promotion: Recognitions and Awards

The Company has adhered to the basic principles of “Safety First,
Quality Foremost and Pursuing Excellence”, continued to focus on
the new energy market, and firmly moved toward the development
direction led by the “dual-carbon” goal to promote the country’s green
development.

The Company has always attached great importance to the field
of investor relations. In January 2021, the Company won the “Best
Energy and Resources Company” award at the “Fifth Golden Hong
Kong Stocks Annual Awards Ceremony” ((E A E&BIREEBIERE
#1), demonstrating the high recognition of the Company’s construction
and development achievements in the new energy field by the Hong
Kong capital market. In March 2021, the Company won the “Most
Innovative Value Award in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area” (BB BEAEEREAIFHEEASE)in the first “Navigation
‘9+2’ Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area Awards” ($8ffii
‘9+2 B 3B A (& #E TH) campaign, which signified that the Company
continued to receive market attention and recognition for its value
contribution to the new energy sector in the Greater Bay Area and
helped the Company further enhance its brand influence.

The Company has long valued the positive interactions with investors.
In September 2021, the Company won 2 awards: the “Best IR
Company” and “Best Annual Report” awards at the prize-awarding
ceremony of the “7th Investor Relations Awards of the Hong Kong
Investor Relations Association (HKIRA)”. In December 2021, the
Company won the “Best Shareholder Relationship Award” at the “2022
Investor Relations Innovation Summit for Listed Companies and the
Fifth China Excellence IR Awards Ceremony” jointly organized by
“Roadshow China” and its brand “Excellence IR”.

The long-term development of an enterprise is inseparable from an
experienced management team. In 2021, Mr. Lee Kin, the Company’s
Assistant President and Company Secretary, won 3 awards: the “Best
Investor Relations Officer”, “Best Secretary of Board of Directors
of Listed Companies” and “Best Secretary of the Board” awards at
the “7th Investor Relations Awards of the HKIRA”, the “11th China
Securities Golden Bauhinia Award” and “2021 China Financial Market
Award”, respectively.

The Company has unified its strategic deployment, further enhanced
the corporate transparency, and achieved remarkable results in
corporate governance with the unremitting efforts of all employees. In
the context of “dual-carbon”, the Company has continued to improve
its corporate governance capabilities with a work style of “Stringency,
Prudence, Meticulosity and Pragmatism”, and deepen its core business
of new energy. In December 2021, the Company won the “Best Listed
Company” and “Best Corporate Governance” awards in the “2021
China Financial Market Award” campaign, further demonstrating the
Company’s sustainable development in business operations and
corporate governance has been highly recognized by the capital
market.

2021 FERE |
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In terms of project construction, in February 2021, the Company’s
Wuhai photovoltaic base project in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
with a capacity of 50 MW received the national award of “China
Installation Works Merit Award (China Installation Star)” (FREZ 4L T
REERE (hEZEZE2))from “China Installation Association” (F1[E
ZHEE), which is the highest honor in the field of construction of
installation works in China and fully reflects the Company’s pursuit for
strict quality control and striving for excellence in project construction.
In October 2021, the project was successfully selected into the
“National Major Project Archives-Energy Volume (Part 1)”.

Meanwhile, the Company adhered to China’s power engineering
quality goals such as “effective management, innovative technologies,
energy conservation and emission reduction”. In May 2021, the Dangtu
Photovoltaic Power Station in Anhui Province with a capacity of 260
MW received the “2021 China Quality Electric Power Project Award”
(2021 EEHREENEEIFRH), the highest honor in recognition
of the quality in China’s electric power construction industry, which
represents the advanced level of its kind in the corresponding period.
In December 2021, the project once again won the national award -
“National Quality Engineering Award”.

In November 2021, the Chahar Right Middle Banner (Haopu)
Photovoltaic Power Station in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
with a capacity of 30 MW was awarded the honorary title of “AAAA-
level Unit in the Benchmarking of Production and Operation Statistical
Indicators for National Solar Photovoltaic Power Stations in China in
2020” issued by the “China Electricity Council”. The power station is
recognised by virtue of its excellent performance in terms of power
generation indicators, energy consumption indicators and equipment
operation levels.

In the future, the Company will continue to implement the strategy of
strengthening the country by quality, earnestly carry forward the spirit
of national excellence, set a good example of high-quality projects,
continue to promote the application of innovative technologies, so
as to contribute to the high-quality development of the new energy
industry.

In September 2021, the Company’s “Power Marketing Information
Management and Spot Intelligent Auxiliary Decision Making Platform”
won the first prize of “Golden Apple Award” in the technical
achievement category for power scientific and technological
achievements at the “China Electricity Technology Market Association”.
Since the platform was officially launched and put into operation in
December 2020, it has been rapidly integrated into the Company’s
power marketing in terms of data-driven, efficiency improvement,
scientific decision-making, and comprehensive management and
control, and has become the basic guarantee for the progress in power
marketing.

In the future, the Company will reduce the workload of front-line
business personnel in power marketing and increase revenue from
marketing business through digital means, and provide strong support
for the Company’s long-term, high-quality and healthy development.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

In 2021, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$1,694.7 million,
representing an increase of 47.4% compared with last year. The
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amounted
to US$184.8 million, representing an increase of US$22.7 million or
14.0% as compared with last year.

In 2021, the profit of the Group amounted to US$201.7 million,
representing an increase of US$34.1 million or 20.3% as compared
with US$167.6 million of last year.

Revenue

In 2021, the revenue of the Group amounted to US$1,694.7 million,
representing an increase of 47.4% compared with US$1,149.9 million
of last year. The revenue derived from wind and solar projects in the
PRC amounted to US$639.7 million, representing an increase of 72.6%
as compared with US$370.7 million of last year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in power generation and the newly
commissioned installed capacity.

The revenue derived from Korea amounted to US$840.1 million,
representing an increase of 40.9% as compared with US$596.3 million
of last year. Such increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the
higher weighted average tariff of Yulchon | & Il Power Projects as a
result of the higher gas price in Korea.

Operating Expenses

In 2021, the operating expenses of the Group amounted to
US$1,274.8 million, representing an increase of 47.8% compared with
US$862.4 million of last year. The increase in operating expenses
was mainly due to substantial increase in gas prices and gas costs
of our Yulchon | & Il Power Projects. In addition, the commencement
of operation of the new wind and solar projects has resulted in the
increase of depreciation and staff costs.
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The breakdown of operating expenses is analyzed as below:

Operating expenses:
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Repair and maintenance

Staff costs

Recognition/(reversal) of loss allow

HERXZ:
W B RAR K
NEFEHL
ME- BB RREITE

HIERRE
BT
ance FER/(B[E) FEH K&

of trade and other receivables and HittEWRIBR &R

contract assets
Others (Note)

Total operating expenses

Note:

Operation support expenses

Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water
Other maintenance cost

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Transportation and entertainment expenses
Qutsourcing expenses

Tools and consumables

Consultancy fees

Insurance expenses

Other taxes, surcharges and duties
Miscellaneous operating expenses
Expense relating to short-term leases
Office expenses

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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RERZRAMAETUT -
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 USs$’000
28T FET
771,190 492,510
265,029 193,031
37,684 30,447
96,680 85,835
20,292 (99)
83,869 60,701
1,274,744 862,425
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$°000
E FET
14,712 2,638
11,685 9,153
10,512 3,822
7,161 13,533
7,107 2,721
6,992 4,039
5,303 4,309
5,142 6,180
4,480 3,516
3,678 3,324
3,139 4,428
2,216 1,635
1,742 1,403
83,869 60,701
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Operating Profit

In 2021, the operating profit, which is equal to revenue minus
operating expenses, of the Group amounted to US$419.9 million,
representing an increase of US$132.4 million or 46.1% compared with
US$287.5 million of last year. The increase in operating profit was
mainly caused by the increase in power generation of our existing wind
and solar projects and the contribution from newly commissioned wind
and solar projects.

Other Income

Other income mainly represented income on sales of generating rights,
technical service income and government grants. In 2021, the other
income of the Group amounted to US$41.3 million, representing an
increase of US$15.0 million or 57.0% compared with US$26.3 million
of last year.

Finance Costs

In 2021, the finance costs of the Group amounted to US$188.2 million,
representing an increase of US$43.2 million or 29.8% compared with
US$145.0 million of last year. The increase in finance costs was mainly
attributable to the increase in weighted average balances of bank
borrowings and loans from fellow subsidiaries.

Share of Results of Associates

In 2021, the share of losses of associates amounted to US$37.6
million, representing a substantial decrease of US$66.9 million
compared with the share of profits of associates of US$29.3 million of
last year. The drastic decrease in profits of the associates was mainly
affected by the surge in market coal prices during the year.

Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary

In May 2020, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in the
Jingiao JV, representing 60% of the total equity interest in the Jingiao
JV, through a public tender process of Shanghai United Assets
and Equity Exchange (E/B¥& EMIZZF)at a consideration of
RMB155.8 million (equivalent to US$22.0 million). The disposal was
completed in May 2020, when the Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in the Jingiao JV and recognised a gain on disposal of
US$18.1 million in 2020.

Income Tax Expenses

In 2021, the income tax expenses of the Group amounted to US$33.8
million, representing a decrease of US$3.7 million or 9.9% compared
with US$37.5 million of last year.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased slightly from
US$398.9 million as at 31 December 2020 to US$375.0 million as at
31 December 2021, which has been kept at a stable level overall.

Net Debt/Equity Ratio

The Group’s net debt/equity ratio increased from 3.61 as at 31
December 2020 to 4.10 as at 31 December 2021, which was due
to the increase in net debt (which equals to total debt less available
cash) as a result of increase in bank borrowings and loans from fellow
subsidiaries.

Dividend

At the Board meeting held on 22 March 2022, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2021 of 0.86 US cents per Share (equivalent to 6.72 HK
cents per Share), totalling approximately US$37.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$288.2 million), which is calculated based on
4,290,824,000 Shares in issue on 22 March 2022. The payout ratio of
the proposed dividend is 20% (equivalent to 20% of profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the financial
year of 2021 as dividends).
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Earnings per Share

Earnings per share, basic and diluted -
calculated based on the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the year

Earnings per share, basic and diluted -
calculated based on the number of
ordinary shares outstanding at year end

Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share (profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share

Number of ordinary shares outstanding
at year end

Shkai
BEARREE - URFE
HERNMETOHEAE

Shkaf
BEARREE— UFERET
EHNEBRNMBEE
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Year ended 31 December
HE12HA31HILLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
US cents US cents
e/ ES1]
4.31 3.78
4.31 3.78

Year ended 31 December

HE12AIHLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
184,762 162,087
’000 ‘000
TR FR
4,290,824 4,290,824
4,290,824 4,290,824
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. B2 +
Trade Receivables B 5 EUWER X
As at 31 December
#12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables - contracts with customers BN —E R &K 760,992 430,976
Less: allowance for credit losses B EERBEE (16,521) (703)
744,471 430,273
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance UTFHEINREPREEZEGH (R ARR
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the HEES) 29N ESRBERFBSEERR
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates. BERIRE DI

As at 31 December

#12H31H

2021 2020

20215 20204

Us$’000 USs$’000

28T FET

0 - 60 days 0&E60H 221,325 151,034

61 - 90 days 61290H 30,168 12,617

91 - 180 days 91&E180H 88,368 39,961

Over 180 days 180H A 404,610 226,661

744,471 430,273
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables balance R2021FE12831H  ZEEBNE ZEWER
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$209.3 million EROEEEHEBE N REMRB NIRRT
(2020: US$135.2 million) from the sales of electricity and other EA209.3HEET (20205 ( 1352808 %=
services, which are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. 7o) WFEWEE R EE AR E HHAEET30

Z90 KA (T ©
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$535.2 million
(2020: US$295.1 million) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on the
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff of Renewable
Energy ((AIB4A&REREBEMMMEEESEERINE)). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.
In prior years, expected credit loss rates of these receivables were
assessed to be minimal, as these receivables were from state-owned
entities with sound credit ratings and the aging profile was within
the Group’s normal operating cycle. However, during the year, the
management has noted a significant slowdown of settlement of tariff
income receivables by certain government authorities. As a result,
the management has reassessed the related credit risk based on the
historical settlement records, latest aging profile of those receivables
and forward looking information that is available without undue cost
and effort as at 31 December 2021, and the expected credit losses
of US$15.7 million and US$4.7 million were recognized in respect of
trade receivables and contract assets respectively for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

Contract Assets

Tariff income from sales of renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses

W EEEREA

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales of
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff
Subsidy List (the “List”) by the relevant government authorities. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the relevant
right becomes unconditional, upon the registration of the Group’s
respective operating power plants in the List.
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As at 31 December

®12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
TF3ET FET
191,453 146,637
(4,718) -
186,735 146,637

BREEEMDFRENMAEXERHETE
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Trade Payables

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61E90H
Over 90 days 90H Lk

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 22 days (2020:
26 days) for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are
settled within the credit period.

Financial Position

Non-current assets increased from US$5,741.6 million as at 31
December 2020 to US$7,014.2 million as at 31 December 2021,
which was mainly due to the additions of property, plant and
equipment during the year.

Current assets increased from US$1,235.0 million as at 31 December
2020 to US$1,659.4 million as at 31 December 2021, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables and prepayments.

Current liabilities increased from US$2,039.4 million as at 31
December 2020 to US$2,805.1 million as at 31 December 2021,
which was mainly due to the increase in loans from fellow subsidiaries.

Non-current liabilities increased from US$3,639.7 million as at 31
December 2020 to US$4,433.3 million as at 31 December 2021,
which was mainly due to the increase in bank borrowings.
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As at 31 December

"®12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$°000
127,066 58,490
318 1,679
2,121 10,535
129,505 70,704
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- 15
Goodwill meE
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
cosT s
At 1 January B1B1H 178,744 167,236
Exchange differences EEREL 4,164 11,508
At 31 December ’12831H 182,908 178,744
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RtRERBE
At 1 January M1B1H (9,503) -
Impairment losses recognized in R ANRERIREEE
profit or loss (4,335) (8,995)
Exchange differences E 7 = 2R (272) (508)
(14,110) (9,503)
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December ®12B31H 168,798 169,241

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”)

or group of cash-generating units as follow:

EEEHEBNREEERMZH

BRI

FEOEEUTREELEN ((REELE

fii)) SRR EEEMAER

2021 2020
20214 20204
US$’000 US$'000
FET FET
Wind Energy Subsidiaries BEEMHEAT

(as defined below) (Note) (BEER T Hz2) 122,956 120,954

Solar Energy Subsidiaries KIZEEM B AT
(as defined below) (Note) (FER T (H32) 44,351 46,810
Multiple units without significant goodwill WHEBEBAHENZEE 1,491 1,477
168,798 169,241
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Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy Limited acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management which cover operation periods ranging from 8 to 24 years. The cash
flow projections are discounted using discount rate ranged from 10.00% to 11.52%
(2020: from 8.73% to 10.17%). Other key assumption for the value in use calculations
relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which is determined based on the
installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy
Subsidiaries and management’s expectations for the market development. The estimated
annual average growth rates in electricity generation volume ranging from -9.6% to 7.4%
(2020: -3.0% to 8.1%).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, due to a general increase in discount rates
adopted in the projected cash flows and a decrease in the operation periods as the
time elapsed, impairment losses of US$0.8 million and US$3.5 million were recorded
in “Other gains and losses” in relation to certain CGUs of the Group’s Wind Energy
Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively. Two cash generating units,
Angiu Taipingshan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (ﬁ:ﬁi($UJﬂE%EBE AF))and CGN Solar
Energy (Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd. (FEZABREE (K&B) B ARAR)
have been reduced to their recoverable amounts of US$44.3 million and US$187.3
million respectively and adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculations of
recoverable amounts would result in further impairment losses.

A reduction in annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume of 5% will
result in additional impairment losses of US$15.5 million and US$7.1 million to the CGUs
of the Group’s Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively. An
increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in additional impairment losses of US$5.8
million and US$4.3 million to the CGUs of the Group’s Wind Energy Subsidiaries and
Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
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Bank Borrowings

The Group’s total bank borrowings increased from US$3,610.8 million
as at 31 December 2020 to US$4,245.9 million as at 31 December

2021. Details of bank borrowings are as follows:

Secured
Unsecured

The maturity profile of bank borrowings
is as follows:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years
Over 5 years

Rt
IR

B E s mEA DT

RITEE
AEBNRIBITHEEH2020F12831HH
3,610.8EBETBME2021F12831HH
4245 9FBETRITEENFHBOT:

As at 31 December

IRITIEENEIEE RO T

—FR

—EN HEFBBmE
WEL HERBBEE
RENF

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group
entities that include RMB, USD and KRW. The bank borrowings of
the Group carry interest rates which range from 1.41% to 4.66% (31
December 2020: 1.47% to 4.90%) per annum during the year ended
31 December 2021. The analysis of bank borrowings with fixed interest

rate and variable interest rate is analysed below:

Fixed rate
Variable rate

BhilES
FEFE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had committed unutilized banking

facilities of US$2,445.9 million.

#®12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
&7 FET
3,188,682 2,979,540
1,057,209 631,304
4,245,891 3,610,844
763,503 721,579
399,027 323,538
1,191,136 951,658
1,892,225 1,614,069
3,482,388 2,889,265
4,245,891 3,610,844

RBREHANAAERTEEUSEESENY
EEEEHE BIEARE - ExkBT -AEEH
RTEEREZE2021F12831BILEEENER
KN F1.41%E4.66% (20205128318 : 1.47%
F£4.90%) o MEEF ERFEFEF BHIRTT
BELRINT :

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
820,021 990,805
3,425,870 2,620,039
4,245,891 3,610,844

R2021F 128318 AEBERERANIRITE X
HEEEHEEA2,445.9BBFETTe

2021 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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Loans from Fellow Subsidiaries and the

Ultimate Holding Company

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts represent:

KERRMERE R&EER
RENEM

R2021FE12831H » ZERIBIE ©

2021 2020
20215 2020 F
Notes Us$’000 USs$’000
iok:3 F3ET FET
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERARWNBABINER
- due within 1 year: — T ERNEIER
CGN Finance Co., Ltd. (“CGN Finance”) FEZUHEERSELT
(TR EZE 7)) i(a) 172,530 179,313
CGN Finance R EZ I i(b) 1,810 -
CGN Wind Energy Co., Ltd. FEZREBRAE
("CGN Wind Energy”) (ThEZEE)) ji 988,127 91,955
CGNPC Huasheng FEZERKLERRAE
Investment Limited (T EZER))
(“CGNPC Huasheng”) fi - 250,000
1,162,467 521,268
Loan from the ultimate KEREERABDNER
holding company —F1FEREER
— due within 1 year:
CGN HEZ iv - 295,790
Loan from fellow subsidiaries KERRMBABDNER
- due after 1 year: — 1 ERTER
CGN Finance R EZ I i(c) 7,852 6,753
CGN Finance B i(d) 133,284 76,729
CGN Finance R EZ I ite) 15,685 -
CGNPC Huasheng AL EERR jii 250,000 -
China Clean Energy RS REERE %
Development Limited BIRAF
(“China Clean Energy”) (THRERZRER) v 450,000 450,000
856,821 533,482
Loan from the ultimate KEREERABDINER
holding company —FERBTER
— due after 1 year:
CGN REZ iv = 122,607
Notes. Viog=3
(i) Loan from CGN Finance of RMB1,100.0 million (equivalent to US$172.5 (i)(a) REPEZHBENERARE,100.08E T
million) (2020: RMB1,170.0 million (equivalent to US$179.3 million)) is (MBER172.6B&EE7T) (2020% 1 AR
unsecured, interest bearing at 3.45% per annum and repayable in 2022. 1,170.0B8 87t MEER179.388%m)) 5
SRR R ERE3.45% 5t B R BER20224F
Higo
(i)(b) Loan from CGN Finance of RMB11.5 million (equivalent to US$1.8 million) (i)(b) REFPEZVHENERARBI155ET (8

(2020: nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.21% per annum and repayable in

2022.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2021
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Management Oiscussion and Analysis

(i)(c) Loan from CGN Finance of RMB50.1 million (equivalent to US$7.9 million)
(2020: RMB44.1 million (equivalent to US$6.8 million)) is unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.21% per annum and repayable in 2035.

(i)(d) Loan from CGN Finance of RMB849.8 million (equivalent to US$133.3 million)
(2020: RMB500.7 million (equivalent to US$76.7 million)) is unsecured,
interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced by the PRC National
Interbank Funding Center minus 0.39% per annum and repayable in 2040.

(i)e) Loan from CGN Finance of RMB100.0 million (equivalent to US$15.7 million)
(2020: nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced
by the PRC National Interbank Funding Center minus 0.66% per annum and
repayable in 2037.

(ii) Loans from CGN Wind Energy of RMB1,000.0 million (equivalent to US$156.8
million) (2020: nil) interest bearing at 3.25% per annum, RMB1,100.0 million
(equivalent to US$172.5 million) (2020: nil) interest bearing at 3.45% per
annum, RMB4,200.0 million (equivalent to US$658.8 million) (2020: nil)
interest bearing at 3.50% per annum are unsecured and repayable in 2022.

(iii) Loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250.0 million (2020: US$250.0 million)
is unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months London Interbank Offered Rate plus
1.30% per annum and repayable in 2024.

(iv) Loans from CGN of RMB1,930.0 million (equivalent to US$295.8 million) and
RMB800.0 million (equivalent to US$122.6 million) in 2020 were fully repaid
during the year.

(v) Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450.0 million (2020: US$450.0 million)
is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% per annum and repayable in 2025.

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditure decreased by US$124.3 million to
US$1,198.8 million in 2021 from US$1,323.1 million in 2020.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Pledged Assets

The Group pledged certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, trade receivables, contract assets and bank deposits for credit
facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the total
book value of the pledged assets amounted to US$2,202.6 million
(2020: US$1,815.0 million).

Significant Investments

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no significant
investments held by the Group.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by
the Group.
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Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2021.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had about 2,033 full-time
employees, with the majority based in China. The Group provides its
employees with salaries and bonuses, as well as employee benefits,
including retirement schemes, medical and life insurance schemes.

Employees located in China are covered by the mandatory social
security schemes required by local practice and regulations of the
PRC, which are essentially defined contribution schemes. The Group
is required by the PRC law to contribute a certain percentage of the
average salaries of the employees to various schemes in accordance
with the respective regulatory requirements of each city. The PRC
government is directly responsible for the payment of the benefits to
these employees.

In Korea, the Group is required by law to contribute 4.5% of the
employees’ monthly average salaries for the national pension, 3.43%
for national health insurance (11.52% of the national health insurance
contribution for long term care insurance), 1.05% for unemployment
insurance, 1.06% (Seoul Office)/0.803% (Yulchon)/0.803%(Daesan) for
the industrial accident compensation insurance and 0.06% for a wage
claim guarantee fund.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a mandatory provident fund
scheme established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Employees
contribute 5.0% of their relevant income to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and the Group contributes 10.0% of each employee’s
monthly base salary.

The remuneration of senior management is determined by making
reference to the performance of individuals and the group and market
trends. The emoluments of senior management (excluding directors)
for the year end 31 December 2021 were within the following bands:

EARENESEERNREK

st &)

PRI AREFTINESSIN > 1R2021F128310
TEAtMEMEARENEAREENTE -

B & B FrBNER R

R2021F128318 > AEENEZHEE ALY
2,033 REDERTHE ~EEDHESR
HHFMRTCAUREERT > BIEEAE 8
BRANERETE -

RPENEERITEE MBI RERRE
RaflttERESE (BR LS REHR
B) RE-REERRE AEBARBESHT
BYES B AR E [ AR 51 8l 1F 4% R B 8 7 39 5 Bl
AETHDLAENHR DTEBRFEEEED
ZEREEXTEA -

FERE AEBRRBEZABEHDERFEEHE
BYHBF45%NWER3.43%ABEARRER
S (EREEBEFRBHANI1.5295 RHEER
%) N 1.05% A KREMRE1.06% (BEHMER)
,/0.803% (ZEH) ,/0.803% (A LL) % L ¥ E 582
BRI R0.06%A TEREBREES

HERB AEESRTRIEEBEAHH4485E
EEMEABE A EEHIR IR AB S
gloREBEBMAMEAB B EHEMARBYK
A5.0%HHEF MAEERRBREESANER
B #H10.0%EH R

EREEBNMEN2EBARSERRE
UERMmBEBABEE -#ZE2021F12831HIEE
B aREERE (FOEES) NHMNELTE
B :

No. of senior
management

SREERBAH

Less than HK$500,001

(Equivalent to US$64,001)
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

(Equivalent to US$64,001 to US$129,000)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

(Equivalent to US$129,001 to US$193,000)
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

(Equivalent to US$193,001 to US$257,000)
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

(Equivalent to US$257,001 to US$322,000)
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

(Equivalent to US$322,001 to US$386,000)

Total

‘D FA500,001 8 75

(tHE 164,001 7T)
500,001/ 75 £ 1,000,000 75

(fHE71°64,00135 7T £ 129,000 7T)
1,000,00138 75 21,500,000 75

(FHE7129,0013E 7T E193,000% 7T)
1,500,001 70 22,000,000 75

(FBE72193,001E T E257,000E 7T)
2,000,001 75 %E 2,500,000 7T

(1B E752257,001% 5t E322,000% 7T)
2,500,001 523,000,000 75

(1B E1°322,0013% 7T £ 386,000 7T)

"B st
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Environmental Policies and Performance

Rudong H8# offshore wind power project (300 MW)
in Jiangsu Province
STERE W EHe+/E FAEER (300JKF)

PRC

Wind and Solar Projects

In order to protect and continuously improve the living environment
and ecological environment, the Company ensures good management
of wastewater, exhaust gas, solid wastes and hazardous wastes in
production and operation activities, so as to achieve environmental
protection to the greatest extent. In accordance with the requirements
of environment-related laws and regulations such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Water and
Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, and in
line with the instructions from President Xi Jinping on ecology, the
Company attached great importance to the prevention and control
of pollution of the ecological environment and conducts monthly
inspections on potential environmental hazards. The Company has
also had waste quota in place, controlled key pollutants and strictly
implemented environmental and water protection measures for wind
and solar projects, which are designed, constructed and put into use
at the same time as the main projects. Through analysis, identification
and screening on each level of important environmental elements
of wind and solar projects, power farms and power stations, the
Company has adopted protective measures for the possible adverse
environmental impacts. Effective environmental protection plans and
countermeasures are formulated for each of the Company’s regional
wind and solar projects according to their nature, scale and location to
ensure that all environmental protection work is carried out smoothly
and that the supply of green energy is in harmony with the natural
environment.

2021 EERE

IRIBER R RE

A

Shengsi 5# and 6# offshore wind power project (281.25 MW)

in Zhejiang Province

T E s 648 EREIER (281.25JKF)

R

EBRAGHEEE
ARENFENSERRIERERIRE T
FEGERHTEK ER ERERYNGER
BEYEE RAREMEIIRRBRESN &
AERB(PEARHMBIRBREE)  (PE
ARHEAMEKEREE) FREBREE AR
EXRCBHEEBATFEIFERXARBRNR
Ern SEERERRIESRBALIF 8BH
REBRETHE BERIERYAKR HE
RESRMPEITIES BRISEERE  KIBEEE
RKREEEH RERTRERARRS R
T RRKRAER - BBZERZRED M BB
HERE -KGEREE HULEZRBRER
A ¥ °J BEAE A YA FIR IR &2 BIREAUIR S HE T o
NEBBRFEAE  KGEBREHREE RE-
2 I TE B VIR IR RAE T A B E A 0 B
RERRBRETFIENHE SH#EEE
BERMHAG B B PR IR IBARA B8 o
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Hydro Projects

The hydro projects of the Company strictly comply with the
environmental protection requirements of the local government.
Being a renewable and clean energy resource, hydro projects almost
discharge no pollutant. The requirements of the local government on
hydro projects concern waste disposal, noise control, flow control and
ecological protection.

Our requirements on waste disposal are implemented according to
GB8978-1996 standard, we have achieved grade one standard in
wastewater disposal with all indices up to standard. In respect of our
requirements on noise control, they are implemented according to
GBZ/T189.8-2007 “Work Place Physical Agents Measurement, Part
VIIl: Noise KTEBFMIERZRE5E8E D | RS ))”, GBZ2.2-
2007 “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the
Workplace, Part Il:Physical Agents (T{E3BFFE ERER ¥ HFEE
[RH&I 2889 © #EEEZE))” and Provision 20 of Order No.47 of State
Administration of Work Safety, as well as the relevant requirements
set out in the Laws on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases ((BZJ® A7), all monitoring results are of the required
standard, and there are no external complaints arising from noise
emission. In respect of the flow control requirements for environmental
protection, they are implemented according to the water resources
distribution plan “One Station One Strategy” of local water authority.
There were no accidents caused by power generation flow change
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Thermal Projects (coal-fired, oil-fired, gas-fired including cogen)
The environmental protection systems and facilities of the Company’s
coal-fired and gas-fired power projects complied with applicable
national and local environmental protection regulations. Environmental
management in all of the Company’s operating project companies
met the relevant international standards and have been accredited
with 1ISO14001 (environmental management system) certification.
In addition, the Company’s coal-fired and gas-fired power projects
have their own environmental protection office and staff responsible
for monitoring and operating its environmental protection equipment.
Other than the “Continuous Emission Monitoring system (CEMS)”,
another “Remote Emissions Monitoring Systems (REMS)” are also
equipped in all coal-fired and gas-fired projects to continuously
monitor power projects emissions at the relevant project companies.
The Company has continued to invest substantially in energy saving
and environmental upgrading facilities at the projects to comply with
the regulations and emissions reduction. By the end of 2015, all de-
sulfurization, de-nitration and particulate matter removal facilities have
been installed in coal-fired projects and put into service as planned.
By the end of 2017, the coal-fired power plants in operation (Nantong
in Jiangsu and Huangshi in Hubei) have all completed the “Ultra low
emission” technical improvement to further reduce the emission of
NOx, SO as well as dust, and have been receiving the environmental
tariff rebate from the Government. The Company is of the view that the
Company is not in material breach of any applicable environmental
laws or regulations as at 31 December 2021.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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Air emissions of all existing thermal power projects in the PRC have
met the more stringent latest national emissions regulation, which
became effective on 1 January 2012. According to the PRC Air
Pollution Prevention Law ({(F#EARHMBERKRTEFEAE)), a
penalty of up to RMB1,000,000 is levied for non-compliance. The
environmental laws and regulations also impose fines on enterprises
which violate such laws, regulations or decrees and provide for other
sanctions including the possible closure of any power projects which
fail to rectify activities that cause environmental damage. As at 31
December 2021, the Company had not received any sanctions to
cease operation or rectification to environmental damages.

Korea

The Company is committed to the establishment of good standards
of environmental protection and management practices. The
environmental policies and facilities of the Company’s power projects
in Korea are in compliance with the applicable national and local
environmental protection regulations in Korea. The Company’s power
projects in Korea have their own environmental protection offices
and staffs responsible for monitoring and operating its environmental
protection equipment. Environmental monitoring system required by the
applicable national and local environmental protection regulations are
equipped in the Company’s power projects in Korea. Environmental
management in our operating project companies is meeting the
relevant international standards and have been accredited with
ISO14001 (environmental management system) certification.

In addition, the Company’s power projects in Korea have passed the
relevant supervisory inspections on air emission levels and effluent
water quality by the local government. We are of the view that we are
not in material breach of applicable environmental laws or regulations
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Our primary customers are the electricity offtakers for our projects. Our
primary suppliers are the fuel providers for our projects. Our largest
customer is Korea Power Exchange (“KPX”) and our largest supplier is
Korea Gas Corporation (“KOGAS”).

KPX is a non-profit, neutral and independent organization in South
Korea’'s power industry. KPX ensures the reliability of power supply
by coordinating the flow of electricity in all regions of South Korea.
To secure future power reliability, KPX runs a sophisticated national
planning process for generation and transmission expansion by active
cooperation and coordination with the Korea government. KPX has
become our largest customer since the combined cycle of Yulchon
Il Power Project commenced operations and we have maintained a
business relationship with KPX since 2009.

KOGAS is an independent third party supplier of gas for Yulchon
| Power Project, Yulchon | Fuel Cell Projects and Yulchon Il Power
Project in Korea. KOGAS is a publicly listed company on the Korean
Exchange that engages in the production and distribution of gas in
Korea. KOGAS was incorporated by the Korean government in 1983
and is the sole wholesale supplier of natural gas in Korea.

2021 FERE |
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Other Update on the Properties in the PRC with
Title Defects

The construction work for the main structure of the project relating to
machinery room and ancillary facilities of Mianyang Sanjiang Meiya
Hydropower Company Limited (435 = 15 /KB A BRAE)) has been
completed and the project’s second renovation and design has been
approved, pending implementation of procurement process.

RISK FACTORS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risks Relating to the Industry

Our power projects are located in the PRC and Korea, both of which
have undergone, and may continue to undergo, regulatory changes.
Governmental regulations affect all aspects of our power project
operations, including the amount and timing of electricity generation,
the setting of tariffs, compliance with power grid controls, dispatch
directives and environmental protection. Regulatory changes in the
PRC and Korea can affect, among other things, dispatch policies,
clean and renewable energy and environmental compliance policies
and tariffs, and may result in a change of tariff setting procedures or
mandatory installation of costly equipment and technologies to reduce
environmental pollutants.

Further, the solar power projects are highly dependent on solar
illumination conditions, and the wind power projects are dependent
particularly on wind conditions. Extreme wind or weather conditions
could lead to downtime of the wind power projects. Solar illumination
conditions and wind conditions vary across seasons and locations,
and could be unpredictable and are out of our control.
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Management Oiscussion and Analysis

Risk Relating to Fuel Cost

The non-renewable energy power projects of the Group require
supplies of coal, oil and gas as fuel. Fuel costs represent a significant
portion of our operating expenses and the operating expenses of our
associates. The extent to which our profit is ultimately affected by the
cost of fuel depends on our ability to pass through fuel costs to our
customers as set out under the relevant regulatory guidelines and
the terms of our power purchase agreement for a particular project,
as we currently do not take any measures to hedge our exposure to
fuel price fluctuations. Our fuel costs are also affected by the volume
of electricity generated because the coal consumption rate of coal-
fired and cogen power projects decreases when we generate more
electricity as a result of economies of scale. In the PRC, government
tariff regulations limit our ability to pass through changes in fuel
costs. In Korea, while our Yulchon | Power Project is able to pass
through our exposure to fuel price fluctuations through fuel cost pass
through provisions in the tariff formula, our Yulchon Il Power Project
and Daesan | Power Project receive payments based on the system
marginal price, which is influenced by market demand and supply, and
may not fully reflect the power plants’ respective fuel price fluctuations.
Our diversified generation portfolio enables us to diversify the risks
that we would face to utilize a single resource for electricity generation.
In particular, our exposure to several fuel types mitigates risks such as
price increases in or the availability of any particular fuel source.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations
in interest rates on our debt with floating interest rates based on
market prevailing rates. We undertake debt obligations to support
asset acquisition and general corporate purposes including capital
expenditures and working capital needs. Certain amount of our
indebtedness is calculated in accordance with floating interest rate
or interest rate that are subject to adjustment by our lenders. We
periodically review the ratio of debt with floating interest rates to debt
with fixed rates, taking into account the potential impact on our profit,
interest coverage and cash flows.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The functional currency of the Company is US dollars, and our
reportable profit is affected by fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. We collect most of our revenue from our projects in
Renminbi and Korean Won, some of which are converted into foreign
currencies to (1) purchase foreign-made equipment and parts for repair
and maintenance; (2) make investments in certain joint ventures or
acquire interests from other companies; (3) pay out dividends to the
shareholders of our project companies; and (4) repay our outstanding
debt. By managing and monitoring the risks of foreign currency, we
ensure that appropriate measures are adopted effectively in a timely
manner.
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

PROSPECTS

The Company will continue to enhance its works in four major areas,
namely the safety, quality and environment management, business
integrity, legal and compliance management, and prevention and
control of major risks. In 2022, while high-quality development will
remain as the Company’s top priority, we will focus on exploring and
cultivating incremental business, taking multiple measures and making
continuous enhancement, cultivating its existing assets. The Company
will also keep on strengthening and enhancing its traditional business
to ensure that it maintains a leading role in the industry.

1.

Strive to strengthening the construction of ideological style
under the high quality management of and guidance from the
CPC party, with an aim to create a good enterprise culture that
fosters practical work, entrepreneurship and accountability at
all levels:

Firstly, to roll out the ideological style construction at all levels
and take up the responsibility of development. Secondly, to
improve our system and mechanism in order to build a team of
high-quality professional talent. Thirdly, to strengthen the base
level of the party’s organizational structure with an aim to build
a strong backup power. Fourthly, to rectify issues found during
inspection in an effective and efficient manner.

To boost development through reformation and seek
breakthroughs with innovation by furthering our reformation
and technological innovation, so as to fuel up the Company’s
high-quality development:

Reformation can ignite power and help solving the issues
encountered during development. Firstly, to accomplish every
task set out in our three-year action plan. Secondly, to intensify
the reformation of regional companies. Thirdly, to strengthen
differentiated salary assessment and incentive. Fourthly, to
optimize the management and control model.

At the same time, the Company will continue to strengthen
scientific and technological innovation capabilities, bringing up
new momentums for the Company.

Focus on winning the battle of project commissioning,
implementing strict control over project progress, quality and
cost:

To carry out strict control over the progress, quality and cost
of the projects to maintain the leading position in the industry;
to fully coordinate resources to ensure the completion and
delivery of the existing projects.

Annual Report 2021

RKRE

FABDFRAMEFREREE RELE -5ES
REE-ERRBHEOARE- 202256 &R
AMRUSEEERAE—E% ETAHER
REBREBXER > ZHLE  FESUE B
MEFEEEE THEENREASREREND
R A B RIFITHEBLMAL

1. FhenBEEREN FEMBRBRME
RiER EERFAE -EEFANR
FEER:

—E2EMNRBRFRER TF%EE
B, —RREBRAEA TEeRE
FEEATBM; Z—RIMBREREEER
BROHEBRMAESFR, IESEE
EEKRERER

2. BN AR EMB Al Uk (2%
BB R AR EEEE
EAREE S

TEBBREREE BRERETH
BEREE - —RRE T8 PO
BEER;, CBEMABE AR NEN
E Z@MAZEZECHINZZEE ; O
REREEEXEL-

B HERERKRAMESD BRH
BB
3. FNIRMIEKRERRR BRETRRE

E-EBMEE:

BEIREE -EBMNEE RETE
BEBED -2HHAER REESARE
BRI o



Management Oiscussion and Analysis
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4. Focus on winning the battle of market development, and
actively explore new modes of development of traditional
parity and bidding projects, large base projects and extended
business:

In terms of innovative regular project development mode,
firstly, to grasp the market opportunities, carry out concurrent
development of wind power and photovoltaic power, and
continuously optimize our business structure; secondly, to
give full play to the advantages of CGN Group’s internal
synergy; thirdly, to further deepen strategic cooperation to
achieve complementary advantages and win-win cooperation.
At the same time, to optimize the allocation of resources,
promote large market synergy within CGN Group, promote
linkages with nuclear technology, energy conservation and
environmental protection industries, and further coordinate,
guide and assist regional companies in striving for projects.
In terms of extended business development, to accelerate
the development of integrated smart energy and independent
energy storage projects, wind and solar power distribution and
storage projects, etc.

5. Focusing on winning the battle of lean management,
seeking breakthroughs and benefits in lean operations and
maintenance, power marketing, and cost-saving and revenue-
generating:

Guided by the high-quality development indicator system, the
Company will strengthen multi-dimensional benchmarking
management and comprehensively improve its operating
efficiency. In terms of lean operation and maintenance, firstly,
to strengthen the benchmarking management; secondly,
to strengthen the equipment quality management; thirdly,
to continuously improve the operation and maintenance
management capabilities of offshore wind power; fourthly, to
continuously enhance the Company’s central business through
informatization. In terms of power marketing, according to the
general idea of integration of generation and marketing as well
as value preservation and appreciation, the value of value-
added service regarding power marketing will be effectively
explored and released: first, based on customer demand,
to vigorously develop the end market, excavate deeply of
electricity customers; second, to do well of coordinating the
businesses in relation to purchase and sale of electricity,
value-added services, as well as green electricity and green
certificates; third, to continuously improve the electricity
marketing system and strengthen the Company’s standardized
system of transaction management. In terms of cost-saving and
revenue-generating, to strictly implement cost reduction and
efficiency measures.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

No important event or transaction affecting the Group and which is required
to be disclosed by the Company to its Shareholders has taken place after 31
December 2021.
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Note:

=2

Apart from the biographies of the Directors and senior management of the Company as at the date of this report (22 March 2022), this section also includes the
biographies of the additional non-executive Directors who were appointed subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this annual report.

PREEARRE AN (2022F3722H) ARAEERECEFENBESN AT EER2022F3822 & R AFRTNFANREERAITABZAES
EREEINERITEENBE

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ERERIFPITES

(1)

Mr. CHEN Sui"®
R 3% o

Mr. CHEN Sui (Ff%¥), aged 57, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director. Mr. Chen has been a
Director and the Chairman since 3 January 2014. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director on 26 January 2015 and was further re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 July 2016. He is principally responsible for overall corporate strategies planning
and business development of the Group. Mr. Chen also serves as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Currently, he is the chairman of CGN
Wind Energy Limited (FREZEEAIE/AE]) (“CGN Wind Energy”). Mr. Chen serves as the non-
employee representative supervisor of the supervisory committee and chairman of the supervisory
4 committee of CGN Power Co., Ltd. (FEIEZBIRMDBRAE]) (a company listed on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Stock Code: 1816) (“CGN Power”) with
i effect from 24 May 2017, the assistant president of China General Nuclear Power Corporation (4

BEZEBEBRAFT) (“CGN”) with effect from 23 January 2018. He has been the chairman of the
trade union of CGN since 10 October 2018, a director representing ordinary employees of CGN
since 22 October 2018, and the secretary of the board of CGN since April 2021. Mr. Chen was the chairman of CGN Nuclear
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (FEZZFEMTERERMHDBIRAE) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 000881) from 30 July 2018 to 8 October 2018. He resigned as a director of CGN Europe Energy Co., Ltd. (&
LB BETR/AE]) on 16 April 2018 and ceased to act as the chairman of CGN Energy Service Co., Ltd. (P EIZEifEE X B
BR/AT) on 29 June 2021. Mr. Chen has over 30 years of experience in strategic planning, renewable energy development,
construction, operation management and energy conservation management. He has previously served as an assistant to the
head of infrastructure planning division of the planning department of CGN, deputy general manager and manager of new energy
development department of CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd. (FEZAERFHEBREEAT), general manager of CGN
Wind Energy. Prior to joining CGN, Mr. Chen worked as project manager and department manager of the business enterprise
department of China Energy Conservation Investment Corporation (FEI&IFE#& & A F]), general manager of Beijing Guotou
Energy Conservation Company (35 5 Bl #% §785 /2 5]) under China Energy Conservation Investment Corporation. Mr. Chen received
the qualification of Senior Engineer from the Senior Specialized Technical Services Qualification Committee for China Energy
Conservation Investment Corporation (FEIEifEIR B A B SR B XM FHETEZLZEF) in December 2000. Mr. Chen obtained
a Bachelor Degree in Engineering with a concentration in liquid rocket engine from National University of Defense Technology (&
B R E R 17 A E2) in July 1987 and a Master Degree in Management Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (3838 3®
AZ)in November 1996.

FRZFSE 57 FRBRIFRITES -MRAEEB2014F 1 A3HEEAESERER K F2015F 1826 HRFANTESHETRNITE
o WR2016F 7B 12BHBABERFHITES RIZEEAEENER P EHRRIREBEE - RALETHAERRARERLE
Eg ((REZEY) IR -RAFTEECTEZAETERAS (MEZRAE)) 2EFR - MESTEB2017F5824HEREETEE
ZENRNMEBERAR REEBMEXZMARAR BRI L2 A8 RMASK: 1816) (PEZKEN)) NESZIFB T RKRE
EREFEIFE B2018F1H23RREEFREAEZERERAR (ThEX)) QKEEIE - KIFE2018F 108 10 H BB EFEZ
e TEFF> H2018F 108220 EETFEZNB T EE RN 2021 F4ARBEXTEXREEGNE MAENR2018F7H308E
2018F10AsHEIE B AR EAZRMERRKRHBRAD GORIIFSZZMETZRE BMHAH 1 000881) BEBEE - KiL20184F
AB16HBEREZEUNERABEF LN 2021F6 8298 A BREFEZHEELXEREBRATNESFSR MELNEBBRE
BEERHE ER ECEEBERHAECSEFBRRBIAELR HEEEIPEZTHMERZ B BRI BEERIIE - PEZE
FREARETASRECIER M RMEENCE PEZRBECE - MAPEZI MAESRTPEMERLEATRCELRH
HEKERIPIEE  PEEHERE QRS REREE AT AL AL R2000F 128 BEFHEELE R B =R EE RN
HELZEGEREMIRMER MITER1987TF7TEEEAMB2RMASER TR (REBANFEERELE) 220> Wit19965F
MAE LERBALERTS (BEEIREXE) B2

Note: Mr. Chen Sui resigned as a non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 April 2022. Please

refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MEARPITES

(2)

Mr. LI Yiluno®
ETM LT

Mr. LI Yilun GETR &) , aged 49, the President and an executive Director. Mr. Li joined the Company
in January 2015 and served as the senior vice president. He is also currently serving as a member
of Party Standing Committee and deputy general manager of CGN, and an executive director and
general manager of CGN Wind Energy. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li held several positions in
Inner Mongolia Wind Power Corporation (R & EEBA ) from July 1997 to June 2006, including
operation inspector, supervisor and deputy head of infrastructure department, and head of production
and technical department, as well as plant manager of wind power plant in Huitengxile (Y& £ %5 %5 &
BEM) . He was the deputy director of Huanghai Wind Power Preparatory Office of Suzhou Nuclear
Power Research Institute (& )NZ T 2T A FRA &) from June 2006 to April 2007. From April 2007
to March 2012, he served several positions in CGN Wind Power Company Limited (FR &% & /78
BEAE/AE) (“CGN Wind Power”) including deputy general manager of the Eastern China Branch,
acting general manager of Jilin Branch, general manager of the Northeast China Branch and the
assistant to the general manager of CGN Wind Power. Since March 2012, Mr. Li has been working in CGN Wind Energy. He
was the deputy general manager from March 2012 to January 2015 and he was the deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee from January 2015 to January 2018, and he has been the general manager since January 2015. Mr. Li obtained a
Bachelor Degree in Engineering majoring in Power System and Automation from China Agricultural University ({0 2 3 K 22)
in July 1997, and a Master Degree in Engineering majoring in Safety Technology and Engineering from Chinese University of
Mining and Technology (FEIFEZ K 22) in August 2005. Mr. Li holds profession qualification as a senior engineer in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

ERMMAEE 49 BRERATER -ELENR2015F1AMARATDEESRA LR HRHTETPEZNEZESR  F/RK
B URTERREZ ATEERELCE - MARATF » EHLER1997E7TAE2006FE6 A HBERSTHABE AT TR BB E
AREESHAEMPVETHREE - EERFENITE - ERIBE UREEBHRAEBHMEE ; 7 20065F68 £2007F48 » F4k
HEEEHNATHERERAT S EABERENE 1T, H2007F4B8 E2012638  BREREZANEBERAT ((hEZRA D
BE)) IR SABETERSATELLE SMOATRELIE RN A TEKIEN T EZ R 3 BALIEHIE ; 5201243
Bt ERENRPEZREMER  1R2012F38 F20154 18 BB TRIRKIE R2015F1 B E2018F 1A HBEEAERBISZR I
F2015F 1 B ESETELIE - FREFITETRESTHEEASEHEMAEEHLEENTEL L2 MR 20055F88
EETEREASZEEMATREENTRBTS2M - FAEEEPEARENE ((PE)) SR IRMINEEER

Note: Mr. Li Yilun resigned as an executive Director and the President on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
MtaE . ERRELEENR2022F488HRIENTESERBH -F2HRERE 1B
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

#

(3)

O —

TE=

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu'®
RERBE

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3R &), aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 January 2020.
Currently, he is the executive director of CGN Wind Energy. Mr. Zhang joined the Company as a
senior vice president in December 2019. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhang worked in the
Salary and Welfare Department of the Ministry of Personnel from June 1995 to October 1998. He
has successively served as a cadre member of the General Office and the deputy principal staff
member of the Allowance Office. He took a temporary position and received training in the Economic
and Trade Commission of Daxing County, Beijing bR AKEELEZ) from May 1997 to May
1998; Mr. Zhang served as the deputy principal staff member of the General Welfare Office of the
Salary, Welfare and Retirement Department of the Ministry of Personnel (A3 &8 T & @F) & BB Ik
B4R & %@FER) from October 1998 to November 1999, and served as the principal staff member
of the fourth division of enterprise department of the Enterprise Leaders Administrative Bureau
(Department of Personnel) of the Ministry of Personnel (ASEEHEEBEAEEERF (NEF) b
PO EZ) from November 1999 to December 1999. He served as a section-level cadre member of the fourth division, the institution
human resource division, and the third division of the State-owned Enterprises Working Committee Organization Department (1
R T H4AAER) from December 1999 to June 2003. From June 2003 to November 2010, Mr. Zhang worked in the second
bureau of the Enterprise Leaders Administrative Bureau of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council (BEREEELEEEIEZE P XEEASEIETR), and successively served as the principal staff
member of the sixth division, and positions such as assistant investigator, associate investigator, and investigator of the sixth
division. He took a temporary position and received training in FAW Group Corporation (FRE % — 58 £ E /A 5) from October
2005 to October 2006. From November 2010 to January 2012, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager of the human
resources department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (TEIERIZBERERAT) (former name of
CGN), and was in charge of the overall work. From January 2012 to December 2019, Mr. Zhang served as the director of the
department of party affairs (renamed as the party team working division from January 2017 to June 2018) of CGN. From March
2012 to December 2019, he served as the direct deputy secretary of the Party Committee of CGN. Mr. Zhang graduated with a
Bachelor Degree in industrial engineering management from the University of Science and Technology Beijing (1t RA&H A E) in
June 1992, a Master Degree in labor economics from the Beijing University of Economics (AE R A&L& 2 [5%) in June 1995, and a
Doctorate Degree in national economics from the Guanghua School of Management, Peking University (J5 5 A 22 ZE B I8 £ )
in July 2000.

RERAE 5250 R2020F 1 22 AR EERATES - REBTHEEPEZRBZRITES - RALN2019F128MAEKAF
BESHREIERE - MARAB ZAH SRIAENR1995F6 B8 E1998F 108 HIBMEASB IERAGATH SABEEGREESRT UK
ERERRIEERE > R1997F58 1998 F5 AT R AB MR C TS H IR ; B1998F 108 E1999F 11 B IR > SR EE
MAEHIERMNEABBAAGESBAERFTERE > W1999F11BE1999F 12 HIBEASHNEEEEABEER (NE7)
BEMETAER B 7E1999F 128 E2003F 68 WERREET ZAB MR - WA AFTEUR=ZRER KRR KL2003F6 B E
2010F 1B RALEREBGCE A EELEEELZ 8 XASANEEE_ R SREERETERE - NEMERH
E-BIFAEME UKAAEEHA 122005F108 £2006F 108 IFAETEE —EEERABHBERIKE2010F 118 £20125F1
B REENRFPEERZEEESRAR (REZZAME EFANEREELE (EFIE ~R2012FE18E2019F 128 EHREX
BET(FE (201718 £2018F6 B MPIE LA RAT M) £E > T2012F38 E2019F 128 HBAETEZEBREREIERK  5RE
ER1992F 6 BESIERAFABTETREERSB T B4 fM1995F6 B BRI R ARG S H LML 21 WHit2000F78#
BUERABAEEESZRERKSES2IE L 20

Note: Mr. Zhang Zhiwu, who is a current executive Director, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President and the chairman of the Nomination

Committee on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
Mz BRERTEERERALLEEN2022F488HEZEAEZTEIF RARRLEEEIF F2HAERE IR
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

JE#

(4)

TEF

Mr. WANG Hongxin
EFRMmEE

Mr. WANG Hongxin (EZ=H), aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director, the chairman of
the investment and risk management committee of the Company (the “IRM Committee”), a member
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 24 December 2021. Mr. Wang was
a non-executive director of the Company from 16 August 2017 to 26 June 2018. Mr. Wang served
as deputy director (presiding overall operation) of the Supervisory Department in CGN and CGN
Power since September 2015 and was re-designated as deputy general manager (presiding overall
operation) of the legal affairs department in CGN and CGN Power in June 2017. Mr. Wang served
as general manager of the legal affairs department in CGN and CGN Power between December
2018 and November 2021. He has been serving as an employee representative supervisor of CGN
Power since June 2015. Mr. Wang has been appointed as supervisor of CGN Wind Energy since 20
March 2020. Mr. Wang has more than 30 years of experience in the areas of energy, legal and audit
supervision. He successively served in different departments of China Guangdong Nuclear Power
Group Co., Ltd. (FEIEERZEEEHRAF) (former name of CGN) as deputy head of the rules and procedures management
office of the audit department; deputy head and head of the discipline monitoring branch of the Party team working division/
supervision office; head of the Party development working branch; special duty director of the legal affairs department; assistant
to general manager of the legal affairs department in CGN; and deputy general manager of the legal affairs department
and deputy director (presiding overall operation) of the Supervisory Department of CGN Power. Mr. Wang holds PRC Legal
Professional Qualification, Corporate Legal Counsel Practice Qualification Certificate and Corporate Lawyer Practice Qualification
Certificate. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Engineering Degree in nuclear reactor engineering from the Department of
Engineering of Tsinghua University (5 A22) in July 1986 and Postgraduate Degree in Engineering Thermophysics from Tianjin
University (K72 AX£) in 1989.

ERMAEE 58 2021 F 12824 EZEAFATES AN AXLEHAREELZES ((REG)) TE ARBAEZEZET
(TBZZEEG)) RERARADFWEZES ((FMNEEE)) WE- I?ﬁiﬁézowfﬁsﬁ16E|i2018¢6)%26E|ﬁHF'§}%TIZMEEEWE
HITEE - EREB2015FI/REEFTEZATEZENINERPBEFE (EFIME) > LR2017F6BBAEATEZKPEIZE
B A REHRMRELIE (EFTHE) - ELER2018FE 128 E2021FE 1B BEETEZATERE N EZREHIBLIE K BE2015
FeAR—BEAPEZENNB TAKRE S - B2020F38208E FAEHEPEZRABEETHB - TAERER EZRZURE
AERSEBAELR - NY AR EITEEREZBERERAR (PEZZARE St REEEEER BHETEN EXR
EFEBERRRER EEMERIFFREER - AESHEBER  TEZLIEEHEHALCENE UKFPEZE N EEEHEIRE
RIBMERMPEEE (EFIE - TAEEETEAEREER CEZEZEMNNEERBER QD EMPAEELES  TAER
19086 FE7HEBEARLEE MREHIREE) B4+E80 TM98OFE R ZALBBE (ITREAYBRE) IAEREERK-
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(5)

Mr. CHEN Xinguo°®
3R i B S5 £

Mr. CHEN Xinguo, aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022. Mr. Chen
successively served as a staff member, a deputy chief staff member and a chief staff member of the
Education Division, a chief staff member of the Finance Division and the deputy chief of the Finance
Division (in charge of the overall work) of the Xinjiang Autonomous Region Economic Commission
(FEEAEKEELZE D) from August 1985 to April 1998, and he took a temporary position
as the deputy director in the Economic Commission of Hami, Xinjiang G¥r 58 P4 25 & 48 Z%) from
January 1994 to June 1995. From April 1998 to January 2003, Mr. Chen successively served as the
head of the Finance Division and the head of the Foreign Economics Division of the Economic and
Trade Commission of Xinjiang Autonomous Region (Fii2 B A E &L B Z). He served as the deputy
secretary of the Communist Party Committee and director general of the Urumqi Trade Development
Bureau (Grain Bureau) (REAEHEZ#REF (I BF)), the deputy secretary and director of the
Communist Party Committee of the National Development and Reform Commission ({Z 2 4H, and
the secretary and deputy director of the Communist Party Committee of the Supply and Marketing Cooperative Society ({8 &
fE%t) from January 2003 to May 2012, and he concurrently served as the deputy secretary and director of the Communist Party
Committee of Wuchang Development and Reform Commission (55 & & 2{Z) from December 2008 to August 2011. From May
2012 to February 2022, Mr. Chen successively served as the deputy general manager (in charge of the overall work), deputy
secretary of the Communist Party Committee, secretary of the Communist Party Committee and general manager of the Xinjiang
Branch of China General Nuclear Power Corporation (FEEZEEARA B #&E A E)). He has served as a director of China
Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (FEZ T2 HBR/AF)), CGN Nuclear Technology Development Co., Ltd. (77 B #% #% 557 iy 2%
ERRMDABRAT) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000881)) and CGN Environmental Protection
Industry Co., Ltd. (FEZIBREXER/AT]) since February 2022. He has over 30 years of experience in finance. Mr. Chen
graduated from the School of Finance and Economics of Xinjiang University of Finance and Economics (i 58 B 48 K 22 B 4 22 [7)
in August 1985, majoring in industrial economics.

PRITE S > 5858 1R2022F 48 H E R T AIERMITEFE - MRIALEN1985F8H E 1998 F4F i B L BIETE N EBER ABKE
ZEGYARAB AFERE ETANE MESRETENE MHRERERER (ZFIME) » LN1994F1 8 E19955F
68 BRI FE 2 A B i B S T BI T F (BB o A 1998F 48 F2003FE 1 AN AR IV EOS ARKEEZH S
MEERRIMEEER -HMN2003F 1B E201 26 ABETREABETEZZRER (BEH) BHAIER AR BXETE
AHEIEZE T UREEAEHEZZRREITE TR2008F 128 E2011F8 AR RIER SR NESEABEZLKR T £
BRAEER2012F58 E2022F 2 A ARG A B AT HEZEEBRABMBYARRIRKE (EFILIF) - EZRIER B
SR MR IE o022 2 BREETTEZTIRERAR FEZZEMBERROHEBRAR (—RVFINEFEEZZFALETHA
B)) (BR1D1LSE 1 000881) R EZIRREXERATES - FNMBER A EBEASOFLE BAEN1985F88 BXENIE
BHS KRB B T REERE

Note: Mr. Chen Xinguo was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report..
Mzt BB A BR2022F 488 EEERFNITES FL2RAFERE1H -
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SSREESEERE

Mr. REN Liyong'“*
ENBKE

Mr. REN Liyong, aged 59, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022. Mr. Ren
worked as a technician at the Environmental Monitoring Center of Jinzhou City, Liaoning Province
(EELHIEMNHIEEERI A 0) from August 1984 to March 1988, and he served as the workshop
director and deputy director of Liaoning Jinzhou Chemical Industrial Plant GEZ$8 )N 15 L&) from
April 1988 to November 1989. He acted as the deputy general manager of the Jinzhou Office of the
Technology Company of China Instrument Import and Export Corporation (PEESEHOATR
T A B ER M E ER) from December 1989 to November 1991, and he worked as a merchandiser of
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Industry & Trade Development Co., Ltd. (E % GFII) TEBREARAT) from
December 1991 to December 1994. Mr. Ren served as the deputy manager of Shanghai Shengda
Investment Company Limited (/8B ZREBRAE) from January 1995 to November 1996. He
served as the investment manager of the asset management department of China Southern Securities
Co., Ltd. (@5 ESHEMR/AT]) from December 1996 to March 2001. Mr. Ren acted as the senior
investment manager of Huade Asset Management Co., Ltd. GEEE EEIE A R/A5)) from April to October 2001. From November
2001 to January 2015, he successively served as the assistant to the general manager and the deputy general manager of Daya
Bay Nuclear Power Finance Co., Ltd. (KZEEZ BB AR E1E/A ) (renamed as CGN Finance Co., Lid. (FEZFEEREE
‘AT])in April 2010) (concurrently served as the general counsel from October 2009 to December 2012; and concurrently served
as general manager of the legal department from October 2009 to March 2010). From January 2015 to March 2021, Mr. Ren
successively served as the secretary of the disciplinary committee and the deputy general manager of CGN Capital Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (PEZEARIZERRARE/AT]). Mr. Ren successively has served as a director of CGN Nuclear Technology Development Co.,
Lid. (PEZIZLMTEERIRD B RAF) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000881)), CGN Wind
Energy, and CGN Environmental Protection Industry Co., Ltd. (q:'J;%?f%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁl‘E@ﬂ)since March 2021, and he has been
a director of Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd. (Kin &% BESEIE AR /AT) and Guangdong
Nuclear Power Joint Venture Company, Limited (BERZE & & B BRAF) since September 2021. Mr. Ren has over 30 years of
experience in management. Mr. Ren obtained a Bachelor Degree in chemical engineering from Dalian University of Technology
(REIETAE)in July 1984, and a Postgraduate Degree in industrial economics from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics (BRIERFAE A ) in June 2001.

Eﬁ%?ﬁi:sgﬁ s jR2022F 4 B8 E S EAIENITES - F L EMN1984F8 8 E1988F3 A I G EERELBINTIRIEE

BIARLEME ) 1988 F48 E1989F 11 BN A EERMNE TREBMEEREBE K E1989F123 £1991F11 3 H
F'%%EEP!@%%LHjD@ﬁ&ﬁ’&?fﬁ)\l?ﬁ#%@%m 40 ARIB L 1991128 £1994F 12 A BAREE R 2 (FY) I8 HES
RABEHEE EEER1995F1HE1996F 11 BBET L EREREERABEKIE -FE1996F 128 £2001F38#
Eﬁ'&iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&’z}i%fé”éﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁé@i FERER2001F4BZE10 B ETEREESEERATEMRBELSE BN
200111 B E2015F1 B BABIEA AT EZENKERETABRII0F4EFLATEZVBFEERET AT EK
EENE R BIAB K IE (FR2009F 108 201240128 FRT4BAREER] ; 7R2009F 108 E2010F38 R AR EHBLELIER) ofE4k
ERR2015F 1A E2021F3R i BB BEFPERERNERERABALEZEL MAIELKIE - B2021F3F 1R  EREHME
Etﬂﬁﬂﬂi‘zmé*@ﬂy{%ﬁﬁﬁﬂi<—a A“ﬂl;ﬁ%s&%ﬁﬁtﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ) (&A% 000881) \FEZREE-FEZIRREEXS
[RATMES TR0 1B B EE AR AR E R E AR SR A I REERBEAE AR ATNES ERENEES
@%ﬁ%@soimﬁo&%iﬁﬁgaz@?ﬂ%ﬁ%iﬁikﬁiﬁbﬁiiﬁi B4+ 28 WHR2001F6 B E R K KEMEEEZLRK
BHETHIREER-

Note: Mr. Ren Liyong was appointed as a non-executive Director on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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SSREESEGRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BIUFATES

(7)  Mr. WANG Minhao
EEE

Mr. WANG Minhao (EER ), aged 63, has been an independent non-executive Director since 26
June 2018. Mr. Wang also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee. He participated in the design of the Longyangxia and Daxia Hydropower
Stations and served as the vice president of Northwest Engineering Corporation (7815 838138 51 Fx)
in 1993. He was the deputy general manager of China Hydropower Engineering Consulting Group
Co. (MEIKBERIEEAT), and the deputy general manager of China Water Conservancy &
Hydropower Consulting Co., Ltd. (FEI7KF]7KE T 25485 BR/A &) from March 2000 to September
2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an University of Technology (78 Z I T K &2) (formerly known as
Shaanxi Institute of Mechanical Engineering (BRFE1#22B5%)) of Hydraulic Engineering and obtain
a Master Degree in Engineering from Xi’an University of Technology (F8<2¥2 T AK2)in April 2003.
He was a registered structural engineer. Mr. Wang was retired on 25 February 2019 and ceased to
act as deputy general manager and a member of Party Standing Committee of Power Construction
Corporation of China (FEIENEZER (B&15) BRAE)in March 2019; ceased to act as the
chairman and the legal representative of the Powerchina Water Environment Governance Co., Ltd (R B E/KIBIEABRMTA R A
T)on 16 May 2019.

FTRERE 6365 H2018E6H26 A EEEBIERNTES  EAENTHEFHNEE T T FRIELEETHE - HESEEEZER
AR B UEBI R 5t > BER 1993 FE & (E PR IL BB R 51 B BIPR & © R 2000438 E2011E98 » G ENE/KBREMER AT EERE
KB RPEKFKETRREANERATDEIAELEIE  TREZSENERIE T AZ (5118 P78 14 4 2 b) 7}<I;i;¥’1t#2003¢4ﬁ
EAZET RSB TIREBLI2 - MATMEREM TAENR2019F2825HENR R2019E38 FABEITTEABHERER (RN B
RARBIMCEREZEE ; R2019F58 16 ABEATEEKREAERMARABNEEEREIERRK

(8) Mr. YANG Xiaosheng
BRESLE

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng (151X 4E), aged 69, has been an independent non-executive Director since
26 June 2018. Mr. Yang also serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the IRM Committee. Mr. Yang is currently the president of
Chinese Wind Energy Equipment Association (FEIZX Mg RAERE D E). He is currently an
|ndependent non-executive director of Shandong Laiwu Jinlei Wind Power Technology Co., Ltd. (LLIEE

KESFRERBREIRNDAEMR/AST) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
300443). Mr. Yang resigned as an independent non-executive director of Titan Wind Energy (Suzhou)
Co,. Ltd. CRIEJE 55 @’F)’H) & H B BE/AT)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 002531), Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (i@ BRI MHAEAT)
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2208) in May and June 2019 respectively.
He has previously served as a deputy director of the energy and electricity generation sub-
department of the Ministry of Energy (BE/RZS 2 E B REELER), a deputy general manager and
chief engineer of China Fulin Windpower Development Corp. (FEIRFHEEARSA5)and a chief
engineer of Longyuan Power Group Limited (BE/RE& 1&EE/AE)) from May 1988 to January 2007.
From June 2007 to April 2012, he served several positions in China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited (B8R /15
E %D B BR/A ) including the chief engineer, manager of the development department, technical development department and
safety production department, a director of preparatory office of wind energy research centre, technical information department,
renewable energy research and development centre and Jiangsu Longyuan Offshore Wind Power Project. He also served as a
committee member of the Beijing Direct Committee of the Chinese Community Party Longyuan Power Group Company (FR£EE/R
B E /A F) from July 2006 to December 2010. Mr. Yang was the general manager of the Suzhou Longyuan Bailu Wind Power
Vocational Technology Training Center Co., Ltd. (Bf M #2 8 B B R EH =& M7 E N F 0B R AR from July 2007 to April 2012.
Mr. Yang graduated from Wuhan Polytechnic University (% T 2F%) of Electronic Engineering in January 1982 and obtained a
Postgraduate Degree in Electricity from China Agricultural University (b R 2 2% T2 KX 2) in October 1986.

BIREKLE 6955 B2018F6 B 26 B EEBUFATEE BELENTLIERZES FTHEES RLZESREZEME -
BRERATHEEU R EAEREI T EEE - HERALERESTABSRERNPERAE MFRINESERZMEHTZA
B IRMASE : 300443) 2B IERITEE - BAEEDHN2019FE 8 R6FBIXRIERAE EM) RMHBRAE (RFRIIFHRZFT
EHZAT RMBAT 002531)&¥ﬁ%m$ﬂw§zﬁrﬁﬁ/\ (EW%“?ELFEZ@? BRADACSR - 2208) 2B IFHITESTRE |
R1988F 58 E2007F 1 BN EEE RBEEIMEREEEIER THERRAEHEATDIAKERETRMKLERE
NEBRTE T azoo7¢6)ﬂizo12£ﬁ4ﬁw&%fé%ﬁgﬁﬁéffﬁﬁ%lﬁyf BIRATAETRZEN FIEEE BRI E22
FEDCEREABHERL FEMEEH - IBEEBEMARERETOURTIEHERE R BBEBEERE XTI - HINNR2006F78E
20108128 REFHERENEE AN EREBLZEG R ERN2007E7AE201 248 FAHMNERAER SR E R M
FLOERAGBKIE - BAEMIIFIARENRETEMREFIRZ U196 F10B BRI REETRRASENEEMRE

B
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SSREESEERE

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick
RFIELRE

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick (RFIE), aged 63, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 17 September 2014. Mr. Leung also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee and
appointed as a member of IRM Committee on 22 January 2020. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
professional and industrial experience in management, corporate governance, corporate finance,
banking and accounting. Mr. Leung resigned as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee and nomination committee of China Logistics Property Holdings
Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1589) on 1 March 2022. He was
previously an executive director, chief finance officer and company secretary of Skyworth Digital
Holdings Limited (“Skyworth”) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 751). In his
almost nine years of services in Skyworth, he was mainly responsible for the company’s successful
resumption of trading of its shares and strengthening of its internal controls, accounting system,
corporate governance and investor relations management. In 2011 and 2013, Skyworth was awarded
by Asia Money as the Best Managed Medium Cap Company in China of 2011 and by Forbes as
Asia’s Fabulous 50 of 2013, respectively. Furthermore, Mr. Leung accumulated 14 years’ working
experience in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. He left Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in June 1999 as a principal of corporate finance. Mr.
Leung obtained a Bachelor Degree of Science in Business Administration (major in Accounting) from the University of The East in
the Philippines in November 1981. He became an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in April 1997 and has been its fellow member since October 2013. Also, he has been a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 1996. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
since April 1999 and has been its fellow member since November 2015. In addition, he has been a founding member of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association since November 2015.

Mr. Leung was previously a non-executive director of Richly Field China Development Limited (“Richly Field”) (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 313), which was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability. He joined Richly Field as an independent non-executive director on 2 May 2003 and was appointed as an
executive director on 3 March 2004. He was re-designated as a non-executive director on 1 May 2005 and he resigned from the
directorship on 4 March 2006. Since his resignation as a non-executive director of Richly Field on 4 March 2006, Mr. Leung has
no involvement in any matters relating to Richly Field. During Mr. Leung’s tenure of directorship with Richly Field, Richly Field
and its then subsidiaries were engaged in the building construction and maintenance industry including building work, design
and construction and building maintenance in Hong Kong. As disclosed in the public announcements made by Richly Field, a
winding up petition was served on it on 30 June 2006 by a public accounting firm for an unpaid service fee of approximately
HK$593,000. On 18 December 2006, the winding up petition for Richly Field was heard in the High Court of Hong Kong and
winding up order was made against Richly Field. On 29 May 2007, the High Court of Hong Kong made an order to appoint joint
and several liquidators and committee of inspection of Richly Field. The winding up order against Richly Field was permanently
stayed effective on 23 July 2008 and the joint and several liquidators were discharged with effect from 23 July 2008.

RFIESRE 636 B014F9A17THEEERB LI TEST RAENTEAERZETEIERN2020F 1 A22BEZEAKRETE MR
Bo R ABBIFEERTENEE - RAEA LEME - RITEGHER - RAECR2022F3B1HHEFTEYREEE
BRERAE (MBI EHNAE RSASE: 1589) 2 BIUFRTEETURBEZZEERRLZEEM B - HENRBIEHBIERE
RAE) (TRI4E)) (R EmZAR BRORK 751 BERTES BRVBERLINS EREENRASRB AN ENE
B RETEEEZRARRERNER  MAEARNE S 2R CxEA RESHGEEAE BIEDHE201 1 FETMNE KA T
BET20MFFEREEEFNERE RE2013F ERMHIHEEA I 2013F R AMEREEMEFEFT R+ oL RELER
B RS ST RE T 4EN TERR - ME1999F6 S EBE-AEM A TR BZITNEERMETE - REERN
1981 F 11 BESFFRERAASZIBHEERNSZE T (FEFHS) B RAEEMI7TFI4IARATBETMAEEE > WEH2013F
10AEERAEEFREE - HIAN1996F12ARAZEEEHMABTEE - HEI1IF4IBENATEE S REEZLEEE > WH2015
FIBHAEEREE B IR 2015FE 1 BMAT BB IFNTESHENATESE -

REELARBTHERERAD (MEHTE)) (REIFAEHZAE  BHORE:313) (RHSHEFMRLIINERERFSE
NEREERE) WIERNTES KN 2003F5B2HMAMBYEABUIFNITESE > WiK2004F3B3HEZEAANITES 0
2005F 5B 1HBEAIERNITEE ) MR 2006F3R4HMIEHEETRBE - BR A EN2006F3F4HBEMAHREZIEHITES %R
HIEESESHAATEZIASEE RRALEETHETRESHE RATEREER 2B AR T ENREREREFREN
¥ OREAEFIR R AERMEFRE-REVRETETIENASHRIEE > R2006F6830H > — KRGt MITR B HFBERX
H#9593,000 B TIREEORHTRFEEBEEFE - N2006F128 180 BB E BN ETRAZELERH  THHRETR
EL BB R2007E5 8290 ERSE EARBELHHETHZILABRENEBARRIEEZES - HUXHATHEHZBEES
R2008F7H23HKAHME » HE @RS A BB > B2008F78 238 EEM -
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SSREESEGRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

(1)

(2)

(3)

Mr. LI Yilun (ZEIR{R) Vo 7
ERfE kLT

Mr. LI Yilun (7R 1{&) is the President. See “President and Executive Director” in this annual report for details of Mr. Li’s biography.
ERMREEARE EREZEREE BRE2EAFRMMEERNITES -

Note 1:  Mr. Li Yilun resigned as an executive Director and the President on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
MtEET . ERHEEER2022F488HRIENTEETREH -F2HARNERE1E-

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu GREE) Ve ?
A o S

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu (3R E ) is a senior vice president of the Company. See “Executive Director” in this annual report for details of
Mr. Zhang’s biography.

RERAEREALNDSRBEBER - REEZEREFEFSHAERPITES I —5-

Note 2:  Mr. Zhang Zhiwu, who is a current executive Director, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
itz BRARTESRERTECN2022F488HEZEREEZS IR LERELEZEETF F2HUAFRE1E-

Mr. LI Jing (ZEi#)
EELE

Mr. LI Jing (F1\), aged 56, is currently the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in January
2015. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li served in the design division of nitrogenous fertiliser factory of Nanning Chemical
Industry Co., Ltd. (E1E2Q B PER) from July 1987 to February 1992; manager office of the engineering department of Lingao
Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. from February 1992 to June 1994; the production department of Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint
Venture Co., Ltd. from July 1994 to March 2003; and the maintenance department of Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations and
Management Co., Ltd from March 2003 to August 2004. From September 2004 to May 2010, he held several positions in the
commissioning department of China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd., including the head of commissioning division for
nuclear islands, manager assistant and head of commissioning division for nuclear islands, manager assistant and director of
the commissioning manager office. From May 2010 to June 2011, he was the deputy general manager of safety and engineering
management department of CGN and from June 2011 to May 2014, he was the deputy general manager and general manager
of safety and information management department of CGN. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager of safety and quality
assurance department of CGN from January 2013 to January 2015, and concurrently as deputy general manager of safety
and quality assurance department of CGN Power since May 2014. From January 2015 to January 2016, Mr. Li served as chief
safety officer of CGN Meiya Power Holdings Co., Limited. From January 2016 to January 2018, he served as the chief safety
officer of the Company. Mr. Li served as the member of the party committee and Deputy General Manager of the Company from
January 2018, and served as the member of the Party Committee of CGN Wind Energy from November 2019. Mr. Li obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering majoring in chemical engineering from Nanjing College of Chemical Engineering (F@ R1E T2
%) in July 1987, and a Master Degree in Engineering majoring in industrial engineering from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology (FE L A E8) in February 2001. Mr. Li holds professional qualification as a senior engineer.

FIELE 565 RIETA R RIAERKIE - ZRER2015F1BMAERRT c RMAKXAT A > ZHRENR1987FE7B £1992F 24 #ifE
EEEABREMESTRMER ; 1019925 28 E1994F6 B E R IZEB R AR LIRS KB EAH 5 721994578 £2003F38 i/
ETERRESEEMRAT EEINER ; H2003E38 E2004E8 S RE AT EREESTREETAEMRATMIEMER ; 120045
9B E2010FAEFEZIREERABFAALTH  SARECZEATEREE CENERZEAAERE  CHEMEBEFR AL
B AET(E; R2010F5 8 E2011F6 A AP EZEZ A TREEENRIALERN2011F6 8 E2014F5AEEFERZZ2HEEF
EEERIEKERAEERT ; R2013E1BE2015E 1B EFTEZZ2ERMBNBIMEKEE T E2014E5 8 ERETEZE
T2 ERIEIARLIE ; R2015F1BE2016F 1B IEAFPHAEZERBENIERERAT LT 2425 ; 2016 F1 B E2018F1BEEAA
B2 RBEE -R2018FE1AESEFEAATEEZEZE  BBEKE TH2019F 11 BESHAETERREEEEE - =R EM1987E7
AESERIEIZSRCBTREXNTIEBE LB TH2001F 28BS ETREABTETREXNIRELEM TEESHK
T2 EEER

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021



(4)

(5)

Biographies of Oirectors and Senior Management

SSREESEERE

Mr. LIU Luping (25 )
ZIRFLEE

Mr. LIU Luping (B|B& ), aged 58, is currently the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Liu joined the Company in
January 2014 and served as the senior vice president and the chief engineer of the Company. Currently, he is principally
responsible for the works in the department of conventional energy management, national solar thermal research & development
center, design management and technology and economy department technology committee of the Company. He is also in
charge of certain regional branches of the Company. Mr. Liu has over 36 years of experience in technological research and
design, construction management and investment management in the renewable energy sectors including hydraulic-and-hydro
power, wind power, solar energy. Prior to that, Mr. Liu worked at Hydrochina Corporation Zhongnan Engineering Corporation (57
[l 7k 25 B8 R £2 B 0 g 0B 58 5T R 28 B5%) over 29 years, where he started as a Technician in July 1984 and his last role held was
vice director. Mr. Liu obtained the Senior Engineer (/2 4k T #2£M) qualification from Zhongnan Engineering Corporation of the
Ministry of Electric Industry of the PRC (FHEE /] T 2 ZF R m #8IZR 51 B35 F%) in December 1994 and the Senior Economist
(S 4R 47 EM) qualification from Zhongnan Engineering Corporation (BZR & /72 5 0 & B8 5% 5t AT ZTh%) in December 1998,
the State Registered Supervision Engineer (B 5% &t 832 T2 £M) qualification from the Ministry of Personnel and the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC (FEE A R MBI A SZZAMELZEF) in May 1998, the Professor Level Senior Engineer (iR 5 4k T 12
Bf) qualification from Hydrochina Corporation (Bl 8 Ti2EERIE B A 5)) in December 2003 and the Senior Project Manager
(5 4R 18 B B IBEM) qualification from Occupational Skills Testing Authority of the Ministry of Labour and Social Security (45 8140
T ERFE IR R AEEEE A0 in July 2006. He has also won several Provincial Science and Technology Progress Awards (&
ZRAR AR 3 %) . Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor Degree in Solid Mechanics from Central Institute of Technology (ZEF T 22 [5)
(currently known as Huazhong University of Science and Technology (FEFRIE AE)) in July 1984 and an EMBA Degree from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology in December 2008.

IR TR E > 585  IRIEER AT ARG Z R EN2014F1BMARRE BREXARASREEHLATIRM REE

B ABGAREREES BRERKGEREBHEFR L RAEEEARECHUAMEZIF BR2EETEEAND A
Ble B EBEAEICFRFIKE AE - KIGESABELERAENARG BREERKREETETFEE -T2 AT 258
AR AR B R £ [ R B R R St IR e P (R BB 829 > U1984F 7B MMA M ARME  MERB USRI k& 2L ER
1994 F 12 EPEKX BN THEPEY AR ARIRER SR ITIEMER > RIt1998F 125 E R E A F /iRl
R EE SR EMEN > 721998 Fs AP A E MR R ERBERTIMEIETZMER > 2003F 128 EHEKET
BREEAEBABNERBBERSMIIZNN 2006 F7BESHNEERESBEREETTORESHREEEEMERL 2
FRZIEREBEMBIES R B ER1984F7TAEEN TS RAERRR KRS BRERNSESE LS 20085F
12ABERRBEAPERSREEAB IEHEREMBARE L 21

Mr. LIU Chao (ZI#8)
2R E

Mr. LIU Chao (2I#8), aged 45, was appointed as the chief accountant of the Company in January 2018. He joined the Company
in August 2016 and served as the general manager of finance department. Mr. Liu is currently serving as the chief accountant of
CGN Wind Energy. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu was the cost accountant of finance department of Xuzhou Wei Yang Food
Co., Ltd. (RN 4B B RERAT) from July 1998 to August 2000. From May 2003 to August 2005, Mr. Liu served as the project
manager of the audit department of Shinewing Certified Public Accountants (S:x RA & st EHEF5FR) . From September 2005
to March 2010, Mr. Liu was the manager of the finance and audit department of China United Tally Co., Ltd. (PEIEEHRE A
&]). From March 2010 to April 2012, he was the deputy general manager of the finance department of China Wind Power Group
Limited (TEEBEBEER/AT). Mr. Liu served as deputy manager and general manager of the finance department of CGN
Wind Energy from May 2012 to June 2015, and he has been the chief accountant of CGN Wind Energy since June 2015. Mr. Liu
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Economic majoring in Business Administration from Anhui University of Science and Technology
(ZHIETAE) in June 1998, and a Master Degree in Economic majoring in Economics and Finance from Beijing Information
Science and Technology University (36 515 B &£ A E) in May 20083. Mr. Liu holds professional qualifications as Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC, and he is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA).

2B E 458 2018 F 1 B EEEA KA AT L GHE » B 2016F8AMARAT BN FELLAALIR RS IR ATEZEASE
BEEE e RMAAR AR > B EF1998FE 7B E2000F8 B R HEBRMMEIBZERBRATM B LM AT 5t H2003FE58E
2005488 » AL ENE RPN SN EFEA BB B BERLIE2005F98 F2010F3F IR HAEERTHIEEHERADYTE
Bt S HERIE - H2010F38 22012548  RA AR EEB B R AR IME BRI LIRS 122012658 E20155F68 > 4t
ERTEZABSAEBIECHBSIECIERBKIERG -m2015E6 B HATEZEENBE T T B LER1998F6 B EER
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Mr. XU Shun (£ )IE)
®IESRE

Mr. XU Shun (4&JE), aged 50, joined the Company in December 2021 as secretary of the disciplinary committee. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Xu worked in the progress planning section of the engineering control division of the engineering department
of Lingao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (38212 EEE/AF)) from August 1995 to March 2003; from then until March 2004, Mr. Xu
worked in the planning and investment control division of the engineering department of Lingdong Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. (585
ZEAIRAT) (in preparation). In March 2004, Mr. Xu joined China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (FEZ T2 BRAF),
where he held various positions. He served as the engineer in the planning division of the planning and contract department of
China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (F &% T 25 fR‘A &) from March to November 2004, an engineer of the secretariat
of the general management department from November 2004 to June 2005, the secretary-general of the secretariat of the
general management department from June 2005 to April 2006, the deputy director of the general manager’s office of the
general management department from April 2006 to March 2008, and the director of the general manager’s office of the general
management department from March to April 2008. Mr. Xu served as the head of the secretariat of the general office of China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Co., Ltd. (FTEE&RZBEEAFE A E) (former name of CGN) from April 2008 to August
2011 and the assistant manager of the general management department (presiding over the work) of Xianning Nuclear Power
Co., Ltd. (REZBEHRA T from August 2011 to May 2013. In May 2013, Mr. Xu returned to China Nuclear Power Engineering
Co., Ltd. (FEXTIEZAEBR/AF)and held various positions until July 2018, including working in the management department
from May to August 2013, serving as the assistant manager of the project management department from August to December
2013, serving as the deputy manager of the project management department from December 2013 to May 2014, serving as
the assistant to the general manager of the Romanian project from May to September 2014, serving as the assistant director of
the commissioning center from September 2014 to May 2016, and serving as the director of the general manager’s office from
May 2016 to August 2017. Thereafter, Mr. Xu served as the director of the general manager’s office of GNI from August 2017 to
September 2019 and the secretary of the disciplinary committee of CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited (R El& %
BE TR B PR R B PR /A F) from September 2019 to December 2021, respectively. Mr. Xu Shun obtained a bachelor’s degree from
Sichuan Union University (F9)1|B& KE2)in 1995 and a master’'s degree in engineering from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (ZEH R} H A2 in December 2006.

RIBSAE > 505% R2021F 128 MARABIEEALAEZEL MARAT R RITEN1995F88 E2003F3/ N BIZERIR
REI IR IREEHEEEAER T, MEE2004F3ABREENRERZEBRAR (B) IENHE REEEHIEILE.
BICER2004FE3AMAFEZTREER AR BHEEEAEBNM - FR2004F38 ZE11BREFTEZIRERATFEER
EBET 2R TA26M ; 2004F11 B £2005F6 B HEGE EIESWEE L1260 ; 2005F6 8 £2006F48 HELR A B IR MBEMW
EF1T;2006F 48 E2008F 3 HELGAEESELEBMAER M, RNR2008F3B E48 HIEA S TEPELERAET
o REEN2008F48 E2011ESANRFPREERZEEEERAR (PEZZAMRE EIMABMERER ; R2011F88E
2013FES AN EIZEERATIETFEEENLENIE (EFTIE) 2013FE8RAEERTEZIRERRAT  EELRE
EIE2018F7H ; BIEN2013E5 8 E8 AN BIEE TIE ; 2013FE88 E128 HFIEE BB SAIRRNIE ; 2013F 128 F£2014
FSAHTIEEESEINEKIE ; 2014F5 B EOFHIRER TR HBEALIERNIE ; 2014F98 E2016FE58 H(EHAHA 0 EEED
2 ; K2016F58 E2017F8 A HERKIBMAE EF - HB  RAEN2017F88 E2019F98 K2019F 98 E2021F 128 17
BAARGNIHERARERAEFTERTEEZERERIERBR AR HELEZER - RIBSLER1995FESM)IHEARRE
AR B E 2006 F 128 BB ERRBARBTEBLIZE-
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Mr. LI Guangming (ZE¥FA)
EHBELE

Mr. LI Guangming (Z=3¢B8), aged 45, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company and the general party branch secretary
and general manager of CGN New Energy South China Branch. Mr. Li is a member of the Communist Party of China and senior
engineer. Mr. Li obtained the bachelor’s degree from Sichuan University in 2000, majoring in power system and automation. Mr.
Li joined the Company in August 2016. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Li was the project manager of the substation branch
(BT D /AT of Jilin Power Transmission and Transformation Engineering Company (S #& =& E T2 A 7)) from July 2000
to January 2010. He served as the assistant to the general manager in general manager office of the northeast branch of CGN
Wind Power from January 2010 to May 2012. From May 2012 to February 2013, Mr. Li was an assistant to the general manager
in general manager office of the Jilin branch (F# %2 5)) of CGN Wind Power, and acted as the deputy regional engineering
director (Greater Northern China Region) (L2 @15 2488 (KEJL&@)) of engineering department of CGN Wind Power from
February 2013 to January 2014. From January 2014 to February 2015, he was the regional engineering director (Northern China
Region) (L2 & 154885 (F21L1&) ) of engineering department of CGN Wind Power, the deputy general manager (presiding over
the work) of the Northern China Branch of CGN Wind Power and the regional director for Northern China of the engineering
department of CGN Wind Power from March 2015 to August 2016. He was the general manager of the Shanxi Branch (LLF& 2 A
51) and Hebei Branch GAId5) /A &) of CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen) Company Limited (FREZFAERIEE CEII) B
FR/A 5]) from August 2016 to October 2016, the general manager of Shanxi Branch (LLUPE4 A ]) and Hebei Branch GAIIE 2 A
&]) of CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen) Company Limited and its regional director for Northern China from October 2016
to June 2018. Mr. Li was the deputy general manager (presiding over the work) of Engineering Department of the Company from
June 2018 to May 2019. He was the Party Branch Secretary (23 #82£:2) and General Manager of the Engineering Department
of the Company from May 2019 to December 2020. He has been the deputy general manager of the Company since December
2020.

EHBELE 455 REAA AR R ERTEZNMEREED AR BEYEL B T4 ATEREEEEE - HASHRT
FREMBAR o =R ET2000F BRI ABRBABRANBE FERENAAAEBEFEEE =L ENR2016F8BMAETAT  RMAZL
NBE R ELRER2000FE7TAE2010FE 1 A EASMEREETREATEES A BEELE - HR2010E18 E2012E58 B EFE
ZRANBERILDABEKIBILBLLIEENIE ; R2012FE58 E2013FE 28 BETBEZA B S MO A B BB AALLIERIE ; 722013
FoAR01M4F1AATEZAEIREXENIREEHELE (KFEILE) ; R2014F1AE2015F 2B BEETEZREIRE X
TREHESE (FEILE) ; R2015FE38 E2016FE8F AT EZABEILDATENELE (FR I RIESENELEBHEE P
201688 E2016F 10 EEFEZMERIRE CFRY) BERABWLAD A A ATMRKE ; 2016108 £2018F6F EE
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Mr. QI Fang (Z5 1)
BT E

Mr. QI Fang (E55%), aged 38, joined the Company in August 2016 and is currently the Deputy General Manager of the
Company. From July 2008 to January 2010, Mr. Qi worked as a power dispatcher in the Three Gorges Cascade Dispatching
Communication Center (= #8383 0)) of China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd. (FEIEIEB RN ABRAE]). From January
2010 to August 2010, he was the overseas project director of the international cooperation department of China Three Gorges
Corporation (FEEI=ZIEEE/AF]). In September 2010, Mr. Qi joined CGN Wind Energy (1 E1ZE ), where he held various
positions. He was the head and specialist of the power market and marketing division from September 2010 to December
2011, the deputy director of the power marketing division from December 2011 to November 2013, the assistant to the general
manager of the investment and development department from November 2013 to August 2015, the deputy general manager of
the investment development center (presiding over the work) from September 2015 to April 2016, and the head of the Sichuan
Branch of CGN Wind Energy (FREE%ZE E) from April 2016 to August 2016. Mr. Qi joined the Company in August 2016 as
the deputy general manager of Sichuan Branch until April 2018. Thereafter, Mr. Qi has held important positions in different
departments of the Company. He served as the deputy general manager of the merger and acquisition department from April to
October 2018, the deputy general manager of the market development department (presiding over the work) from October 2018
to December 2019, the general manager of the power marketing department from December 2019 to January 2022, and the
deputy general manager of the Company from January 2022 to present. Mr. Qi Fang studied at Sichuan University (F9)1| X&) for
a bachelor degree in electrical engineering and automation from September 2001 to July 2005, and obtained a master degree
from North China Electric Power University (ZE152E 77K 22)in April 2008.

R Se A > 385% 0 2016 F 8B MM AR B » IRIEE AR B BIARAZIE  f22008F78 E£2010F1 3 » ?E“SE%EAEPIE;IEEhHw}E
BATZHEABEROVEETEHAEE 2010F 1B E2010F88  HATRAEI=ZREB R SIEKESIEREINEEETE
2010498 » %‘?EEJJDJ\EPJ?W}‘L% BRI IEAERERIc2010F98 E2011F 128  RABHTIEREHETE \,\;2011
F12AE2013F 11BAENTHEHEERER ; 2013F118E2015F88 HIE K E L R ELIERIE ; 2015F98 F2016
FARABERRPAOEELE (T T K2016F48 E2016F88 HEFEZABERATIIIDATEEA HBLRER
20168 B MARRBERED) D ABRIAEKIEE2018F4F c H B BBAEN KRB AR IPIETEE AL 1220185F48
FI0E HEREHBEIRIAEKIE; 2018F 108 £2019F 128 HEMIZFRE I RIABLKIE (EF:FT1F) ; 20195F128 E2022F18
HEE T E I ARLIE ; &2022$1E SHERAB BN AELE o BRI ER2001FIF E2005F7H R IIAE2EBERIER
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Mr. DING Yeliang (T E)
TERLE

Mr. DING Yeliang (T 2 R), aged 46, joined the Company in January 2022 as the deputy general manager of the Company. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Ding worked as an assistant engineer of dispatching center in Qinghai Electric Power Company from
July 1998 to September 2001. From September 2001 to July 2003, he was a staff member of the Power Division of the State
Economic and Trade Commission of Qinghai Province; from July 2003 to September 2003, he was a deputy chief staff member
of the Power Division of the State Economic and Trade Commission of Qinghai Province. Thereafter, Mr. Ding also held various
positions in the Qinghai Provincial Government from September 2003 to January 2014. He served as the deputy chief staff
member of the Industrial Circulation Division of the General Office from September 2003 to July 2006, the chief staff member of
the Industrial Circulation Division of the General Office from July 2006 to September 2009, the Deputy Director of the General
Office of the General Office from September 2009 to April 2010, the Deputy Director of the Fifth Division of the Secretariat of the
General Office from April 2010 to June 2013, and the Deputy Director of the Inspection Office from June 2013 to January 2014.
From January 2014 to January 2022, Mr. Ding held various positions in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council (“SASAC of the State Council”). He served as the director-level secretary of the General Office
of the SASAC of the State Council (Party Committee Office) from January 2014 to April 2017, the director-level secretary of the
General Office of the SASAC of the State Council (Party Committee General Office) from April 2017 to January 2019, the director
of the Safety and Environmental Protection Division of the General Bureau of the SASAC of the State Council from January
2019 to August 2019, and the director of the Safety and Environmental Protection Division and a first-level investigator of the
Science and Technology Innovation and Social Responsibility Bureau of the SASAC of the State Council from August 2019 to
January 2022. From September 1994 to July 1998, Mr. Ding studied at Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering,
majoring in power system and automation; and from September 2004 to January 2007, he studied on-the-job at the Party School
of Qinghai Provincial Committee of the Communist Party of China, majoring in economic management. He also obtained a
master’s degree from China University of Geosciences in June 2018.

TERKE 465 2022F 1 BNMALRAT  HEXRATRNAELIB NARAT AT T AHER1998FE7E E2001FE9F BN S
BEBHABDEEAED LB IRM -R2001FIFE2003FE7H KA EEARKEESZETENERE ; 200357
BZE2003F08AF SEARKEEZLZETENEIFTEIRE BEE > THENR2003FIB E2014F 1B TN S S E BUTIE
ERFEEAL°2003F 9B E2006F7A AWM ABE T X MBRERE FERE ; 2006578 E2009F 908 A M AB T = nBER EER
B 2009F 98 E201084A A M A BLAERRIER ; 2010F48 £2013F6 A M A BME KRR R ; 22013568 &
0141 B ABREREM -2014F1FE2022F818 TRENNREKEEEEEEEEEZE T ((ABERREZR)) #F
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Mr. LU Hao (FE3%)
BERE

Mr. LU Hao (E7%), aged 58, is the chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Lu joined the Company in September 2020. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Lu was an engineer of Inner Mongolia Electric Power Survey and Design Institute (R 5 &5 2 /7878
5% 5t B%) from July 1987 to November 1995, the deputy director and director of the engineering department of Inner Mongolia
Wind Power Generation Company (A5 & B /18 EAF)) from December 1995 to November 2000, the project manager of
Inner Mongolia Ultra High Voltage Power Supply Bureau (A5 &5 8= BR £ B /&) from December 2000 to June 2001, the deputy
manager of the international branch (B[& %3 /A &]) of Beijing Guodian North China Power Engineering Co. Ltd. Jt REIEZFEILE
I ITEBRAE)from July 2001 to September 2004, the general manager of Inner Mongolia Jingneng Wind Power Company
Limited (R H REERBEAEIRAT), a subsidiary of Beijing Energy Investment Limited (35 RAEJRIE B &£ B /A F]) from September
2004 to August 2006, the director of CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd. (REZAEJREIZE A E S E/AF)) from August 2006 to
April 2007, the assistant to the general manager in general manager office of CGN Wind Power from April 2007 to May 2013,
the assistant (rank 12th) to the general manager in general manager office of CGN Wind Power from May 2013 to June 2015,
the member of the party committee and secretary (rank 12th) of the disciplinary committee of the general manager office of CGN
Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. from June 2015 to December 2016, the provisional member of the party committee and
secretary of the disciplinary committee of the general manager office of CGN Nuclear Technology Application Co., Ltd (FEiZ 1%
FHTFER A E/A ) from December 2016 to February 2017, the member of the party committee and secretary of the disciplinary
committee of the general manager office of CGN Nuclear Technology Development Co., Ltd. (P BEZZFEME RN ERAT)
from February 2017 to September 2020. Mr. Lu obtained his bachelor’s degree from Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical
Engineering (ECEKFIE I AZE) in 1987,

BERE 585 EEART LR ITIRNM  BIALENR2020F98 MAEXRE RIMARATR  BAENR1987TF7TEBE1995F118 %A
ASEHE AR T2 ; 119955128 E2000F 1B EEARASZHRANEB AR LREBWEFEMEE ; 20005128 F2001
FRANSFLBEEHEREBRLE ; H2001E7B E2004F 98 EFILREBEILENIRERATABR D AT BILIE ; 122004
FIBE2006F8A AR RREEBELMBATHREREBAERATELKIE ; R2006F88 E2007F 4B EE P EZERFDEE
BREEABRE ; R2007F48 E2013F58 AP EZE N EBRLCIEHELEIIE ; R2013F58 £2015F6 FIEEFEZE T
BEAKIBERE AT ALKIERIRE 1284 ; 201568 E2016F 128 AT ERAIGEHEARADRKERESEERLETE
50 (B12HAR) ; R2016F 128 E2017F2A AT EZEZEMERERADAKERGRRELZZERMCEZER ; R2017F28 %2020
FIORBETEZZEMERERDSBRATAKENELRE ML R EL BAEMIBTERMEREKFENRBARR B LB

Mr. ZHENG Haiming (Z8;8F8)
mRERRLE

Mr. ZHENG Haiming (8F78E8), aged 46, is the chief safety officer of the Company. Mr. Zheng joined the Company in August
2013. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zheng was a technician, shift leader, engineer and deputy officer of Yuanbaoshan Power
Plant (7T E LLE &) from July 1996 to May 2005. From May 2005 to April 2009, he was the director and director of marketing
and development department of the Inner Mongolia Branch (P95 &%) /A &) of State Grid XinYuan Co. Ltd. (BB RBRAE),
he served as the chief engineer of the State Wind and Light Storage Demonstration Project (Bl %R & Yt {1~ 83 T 42) of State Grid
Xinyuan Holdings Co. Ltd. (E#43#RIZTERRERAT) from April 2009 to April 2011, the deputy general manager and general
manager of Liaoning Branch (FBZ 43 /A ) of CGN Wind Energy from April 2011 to August 2013, the general manager of Inner
Mongolia Branch of the Company from August 2013 to April 2021; the Deputy General Manager of the Company from December
2020 to December 2021; and was appointed as the chief safety officer of the Company since December 2021. Mr. Zheng
obtained a bachelor’s degree of electrical engineering and automation from Northeast Electric Power University (B85 8 /7 K E)
in July 1996, and received the qualification of senior engineer. Mr. Zheng has experience in production and operating of new
energy and company management.

ERGRRACE c 4655 IRET A AT L RAREE c WAL NR2013ESAMARAE RMAARAB R > BAER19965E7H E2005E58 1
TELUEHMEERME MR -ESTRM B ZEH ; 1R2005FE58 E2009F 48 AP RZERERATASTHL AT EETL
FEESEAT MBI ETR ; WHt2009F4B E2011F4B EEBH R ER B R A B THE R E Y M Ti24E T 112011
FARE2013FE8AETEREERED A D FE AR QLI KBRS ; N2013FE88E2021F48E AT ARE 5D ASMEEL
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Mr. CHEN Shengli (BB #)
BRESF) %

Mr. CHEN Shengli (BRf57F]), aged 49, is currently the assistant general manager, the general manager of human resources
department, and the secretary of the party branch of the Company, mainly in charge of the human resources department of
the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Company in September 2017. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chen worked in Guangdong
Nuclear Power Joint Venture Co., Ltd. (BERZEBEESEHRAE]) from July 1992 to March 2004, and worked in Daya Bay Nuclear
Power Operations and Management Co., Ltd. (KEEEZBEEEIERFRAE)from March 2004 to November 2006. From
November 2006 to December 2014, he served serval positions in China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. (P EZ T2 E R
‘A7), including director and deputy director (in charge of overall operation) of human resources department/policy and planning
department, director of department of party affairs/organization division, director of human resources and logistic support
department/organisation and staff development, assistant manager of human resources department and director of organization
and staff development department, and deputy manager of human resources department. Mr. Chen served as deputy general
manager and deputy general engineer of CGN Huizhou Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (FREZEMNIZEARAE)from December
2014 to November 2016, and served as general manager and director of CGN Yangxi Nuclear Power Co., Ltd (FEi% PR FEI%E
B BR/AF)) from December 2016 to September 2017. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor Degree of Administration from Sun Yat-Sen
University in December 2003.

RS A > 4958 MBET AR ELENE  N\NERPRLCEMNELRED ) TEHELSATANE R o BRAEER2017FE98
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EESS T8

Mr. LONG Yingbin (BEFE3R)
BEFEIR &

Mr. LONG Yingbin (BEFEJRX), aged 51, is currently the assistant general manager of the Company. Mr. Long joined the Company
in November 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Long was a student and monitor of satellite communication major of
Communication Engineering Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (/8 & 15 B T2 A 2) from September
1989 to July 1993. He was a post-graduate student and deputy monitor of master of military informatics major of Information
Science Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (B2 E 5 B T2 A2 from July 1993 to January 1996.
He served as assistant engineer of science and technology equipment department, staff officer of the headquarter training,
and engineer in Unit 61785 of the General Staff Department (42226178528 [X) from January 1996 to September 2003. From
September 2003 to December 2008, he served as deputy director of general office, principal staff member, member of party
branch organization committee and youth committee, secretary of league branch, and member of the first official league
committee in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council (E#BEEEERES
BEEHET), and from January 2009 to October 2016, he served as director of general office of Foreign Affairs Bureau and
member of party publicity branch in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
(AHrEEEELEBEIEEZEE). Mr. Long served as member of the party committee and deputy general manager of China
Eastern Airlines Beijing Branch (88 A fiiZ= 15 9 /A F) from November 2013 to May 2015, and was in charge of operating profits,
finance planning, result reviewing, strategy developing and management training and so on. From May 2014 to May 2016, he
was elected by Civil Aviation Administration of China to join the Aviation Management EMBA Case Study, which was co-organized
by Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management (B ZEALE £P%), Ecole des Ponts ParisTech (% BIE 1L B& 45 K
Z)and Ecole Nationale de I'Aviation Civil CABIEIZ R FAMMZEKZ), and obtained the EMBA Degree from Business School
of Ecole des Ponts ParisTech. He was the director of general office and a member of party branch organization committee of
the international cooperation bureau in the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
(EHrEEEELEEEIEZLZET)from October 2016 to November 2018. Mr. Long obtained a Master Degree of Military
Informatics from Information Science Department of the PLA Information Engineering University (B2 E 5 8 T2 K2)in July
1996, and an EMBA Degree from Business School of Ecole des Ponts ParisTech in May 2016.

BEFESR o > 515k RIET A A ELIENIE - BE L E N 2018FE11BNMAERRE  RIIAER QB A BELE N 19895F 98 199347
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EEEEZE RN EFRGeEER EXMABE AR AL IBFTAESENEGEIRAREENEREEER
BIELTHRAERM KP2016E58 BB ABE KRB A2 E Z2TEMBAR]
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Mr. LEE Kin (Z{&)
FREE

Mr. LEE Kin (), aged 49, joined the Company on 1 June 2007 as the controller. He has been the company secretary of the
Company since 26 January 2015. He has experience in public accounting and several industries including energy, media and
ports. He has over 20 years of experience in areas of accounting, internal control, financing, investor relations and corporate
strategy. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor Degree in Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994, Master of
Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in 2004 and Master of Corporate Governance (with
distinction) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2013. Mr. Lee holds PRC Legal Professional Qualification and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA), the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute ((HKCGI), formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries (HKICS)) and the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (ICSA)) in the United Kingdom, a member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) and
a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) respectively. He is currently a Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee
member, the Secretary General for the Association of Hong Kong Accounting Advisors, a council member and the chairman of
Audit Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University, and a council member of ACCA. He is the former chairman of the ACCA -
Hong Kong branch (2015-16).

AR 4955 0 R2007E6 8 1HMA R AT B4 B2015F 1826 B RIBEEAATNATME - BN EHRSETE (8
BB - EBERED) EAGRE BRI NPT RE REERARCERBESA20ENEER - FAE19MEETED
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Mr. XU Jiapeng (55 &= Ifg)
FEREE

Mr. XU Jiapeng (5F5/8), aged 47, is currently the general counsel of the Company. Mr. Xu jointed the Company in January
2015. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu served as secretary/judge’s assistant of China Association of Judges in Supreme
People’s Court from July 1997 to June 2002, served as lawyer of Capital Markets Department of Jia Yuan Law Offices Gln=:
T RERENEFEFR) from July 2002 to June 2003, and also served as lawyer of General Affairs Department of Beijing S&P
Law Firm QbR M AR EMEFFT) from July 2003 to September 2005. From September 2005 to January 2010, he worked as
deputy general manager of Legal Department in Hanergy Holding Group Limited CEBEIERREE A E/A ) . From January 2010
to January 2014, he successively served as senior legal officer, legal management manager and director of legal affairs office
in CGN Wind Power, and later from January 2014 to January 2015, he served as deputy general manger of Legal Department.
Mr. Xu served as temporary person-in-charge of Legal (in charge of overall operation) Department of the Company from January
2015 to July 2017; he served as the general manager of Legal Department of the Company from July 2017 to October 2019;
served as the general counsel and the general manager of Legal Department of the Company from October 2019 to January
2021. Mr. Xu currently is the general counsel of the Company from January 2021. Mr. Xu obtained a Bachelor Degree of
International Economic Law from China University of Political Science and Law (FREIBUEARZ) in 1997, and a Master Degree of
Civil Law and Commercial Law from Peking University (16 52K &2)in 2004. Mr. Xu is a qualified lawyer.
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Report of the Oirectors

The directors (the “Directors”) of the CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the
generation and supply of electricity, construction and operation of power
stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and Korea.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report, which forms part of this
report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in this annual report.

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommends that
0.86 US cents (equivalent to 6.72 HK cents) per share of the Company
be distributed as final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 24 May 2022 (the “2022
AGM”), is expected to be paid on Tuesday, 21 June 2022 to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 10 June 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend the 2022 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 19 May
2022 to Tuesday, 24 May 2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for attending and
voting at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 18 May 2022.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
8 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at the
above address for registration by not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 June
2022.
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SRS

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on pages 267 to 268. The summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) are subject to the rights, privileges
and restrictions set forth in the memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) and are not subject to any pre-emptive or
similar rights under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda or pursuant to the
Bye-laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 35(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 142 to 143, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as of 31 December 2021 was approximately
US$79.1 million.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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Report of the Oirectors

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Below is a summary of the policy:

1. The profit distribution policy of the Company aims to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders as well as the sustainable development of the
Company, ensure the continuity and stability of profit distribution policy
in compliance with relevant requirements of laws, regulations and bye-
laws of the Company.

2. The payment and amount of dividends will depend on the specific
operation results of the Company, general financial position, cash flow
position, future operating and capital needs, amount of distributable
profit, restrictions under loan covenants, tax considerations, general
economic conditions, applicable laws and regulations as well as other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

3. The declaration of final dividend shall be recommended to
Shareholders by the Board based on the above situations, and will be
implemented after being voted and approved in general meeting of the
Company.

4. The declaration, payment and amount of interim dividend shall be
determined by the Board and implemented based on the above
situations from time to time.

LARGEST CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 62% of the Group’s total revenue and the Group’s
largest customer for the year accounted for approximately 33% of the Group’s
total revenue. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
99% of the Group’s total purchases, while the largest supplier for the year
accounted for approximately 79% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)) or any of the Shareholders who owns more than 5% of
the Company’s number of issued Shares has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors since 1 January 2021 and up to the date of this annual report
(being 22 March 2022) were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Suj Nere 7
Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Yilun (President) Nee !
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu "ot ?

Non-executive Directors: "oe’

Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Under the Bye-laws, the existing Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company.

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Hongxin will retire
at the 2022 AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-election. Vo2

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Zhiwu and Mr. Yang
Xiaosheng will retire by rotation at the 2022 AGM and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

The retiring Directors, if re-elected, will hold office from the date of re-election
to the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be held in
2025, subject to earlier determination in accordance with the Bye-laws and/or
any applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Note 1:  Subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this annual report, certain changes to the Board and senior management of the
Company have taken place. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.

Note 2:  Mr. Chen Xinguo and Mr. Ren Liyong have been appointed as non-executive Directors on
8 April 2022. They will also retire at the 2022 AGM and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election in accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws.
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Report of the Oirectors

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election or election at the 2022
AGM has or will have a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions”
in this section and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the continuing connected transactions as stated in the section
headed “Continuing connected transactions” of this report of the Directors,
no contract of significance between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021.

TAXATION

Under present Bermuda law, there is no Bermuda income or profits tax,
withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital transfer tax, estate duty or
inheritance tax payable by the Company or its members, other than members
ordinarily resident in Bermuda. Further, no such tax is imposed by withholding
or otherwise on any payment to be made to or made by the Company.

STAMP DUTY

Under present Bermuda law, the Company is exempt from all stamp duties
in Bermuda except on transactions involving “Bermuda property”. This term
relates, essentially, to real and personal property physically situated in
Bermuda, including the shares of local companies (as opposed to exempted
companies). Transfers of shares and warrants in all exempted companies are
exempt from stamp duty in Bermuda.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and/or chief executive of
the Company has any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which will be required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and chief executive were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or taken to
have interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO:

Capacity/Nature
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%18 G198 HmiE i &8 R B 2L

China General Nuclear Power Corporation Interests in controlled corporation 3,101,800,000 72.29%
(“CGN”) (s (long position)

REEZEEBRAR (THEZ) @ REEEEDR (FR)

CGNPC International Limited Interests in controlled corporation 3,101,800,000 72.29%
(“CGNPC International”) (/213 (long position)

FREZERBERAB (THEZBERE) 2 ZREEEED (FR)

CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited Beneficial owner 3,101,800,000 72.29%

(“CGN Energy International”) (/2
FElEZ A REI R IER B RS
(TR E i AR IR B PR ) 12
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Notes:

(1) CGN, through its wholly-owned subsidiary CGNPC International, indirectly holds 100% of
the issued share capital of CGN Energy International, which directly holds approximately
72.29% of the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, CGN is deemed to
have an interest in all Shares held by CGN Energy International.

(2) CGNPC International directly holds 70.59% of the total issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, which directly holds approximately 72.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and indirectly holds 29.41% of the issued share capital of CGN
Energy International, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Gold Sky Capital Limited.
Accordingly, CGNPC International is deemed to have an interest in all Shares held by
CGN Energy International.

(3) Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, as of the date of this report, none of the Directors is
a director or employee of a company which had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company on 24 November 2015 for the purpose of enabling the Company to
(i) establish incentive and mechanism that is in line with market practice and
satisfies the Company’s development strategy needs so as to facilitate long-
term development of the Company and maximise Shareholders’ value, and
(ii) optimise the remuneration structure of core employees of the Company
such that the competitiveness of the Company’s remuneration system may be
enhanced, which will in turn attract and retain core management and technical
staff to serve the Company for a long period of time. All Options (as defined
below) ever granted under the Share Option Scheme have lapsed. No Options
were granted, exercised nor cancelled during the year ended 31 December
2021.

(1) Eligible Participants to the Share Option
Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant options (the “Options”) to any eligible participants
(the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe at a price calculated in
accordance with paragraph (8) below for such number of Shares as
it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Participants to any Options
shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis of
his/her contribution to the development and growth of the Group in the
opinion of the Directors.
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(2)

(3)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Maximum Number of Shares Available for
Exercise

The total number of new Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other effective share option schemes (if any) of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
same class as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
which is 429,082,400 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The Company may at any time as the Board thinks fit seek approval
from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit save that
the total number of new Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the refreshment of
the Scheme Mandate Limit and the maximum number of new Shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report of the Directors, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was nil.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible
Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted and to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other effective
share option scheme(s) (if any) of the Company to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares of the same class.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons
Pursuant to Rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Any grant of Options to an Eligible Participant who is a
Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company or their respective
associates (including a discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include a Director, chief executive or a substantial
Shareholder of a company beneficially owned by any Director,
chief executive or substantial Shareholder) must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors.

Annual Report 2021

(2)

(3)

AfTEZ&EROEE

1R 45 B8 R A 5t B e A A B AR R B At A 28 A
RSt (NB) MR 2 A B IR 1T 6
AIEESETZMRMNEE aH T EBERER
RiEStEIEHREREETROABEZ10%
BN429,082,40082 810 (TEtBIZHEPRER) » (510
RERBHARBT D ETRABIN0%

FRBREFERRABNERRB I KK
R B BIR IR A R RS
B R FAEMBRESTEE TR ERHOER
B ROBHEASEARRAEEHAIE
EIREER D HITROMBEB10% MATTE
BRES I RENEMBRESEBETHRAD
RUEBHRTENEREMIEZTHNES N
ROHBBEFBBEFTERETRMNBEEIB0% -

RABEFERETAH BRES S T HEST
NESRYERT -

BUSERSEARZERZER
=R #E

PREGER#LES  REM12ME B B M HiR &
fERRES B R A A B EREMA WIS
(A HERAERSEARERBREZ
B (BEETRERERTEZBRE) ET
EMEITRRETZRMEE TEBBRLE
BEETROMBE 1%

mEREA RS ERE
IR EHRAIE17.040% :

(a) BRERFDEE - RETHRABRTE
RE(EER EHRA) RES BB9H
ZA(BE2EES MEHRBEE
MEE RSTHASRTIERTER
BENRBAZEE RETHRASHE
ZREF) NEERSEARDNEME
REREEIIIFNITEE M



(4)

(b)

Report of the Oirectors

Where the Board proposes to grant any Option to an Eligible
Participant who is a substantial Shareholder or its associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include a substantial Shareholder or a company beneficially
owned by any substantial Shareholder) would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options
already granted and to be granted (including Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue; and

ii. having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, over
HK$5,000,000.00,

such proposed grant of Options must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case, the Company
shall send a circular to its Shareholders containing all those
terms as required under the Listing Rules. All connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting at such
general meeting (except that any connected person may vote
against the relevant resolution provided that his intention to
do so has been stated in this circular). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such Options must be taken
on a poll.

No Options were granted during the year ended 31 December
2021.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised at any time during a period of 3 years
from the date after the completion of the minimum period for which the
Option must be held as described in paragraph (5) below.
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(5)

(6)

(7)
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Exercisable Period

Subject to the fulfilment of the exercise conditions as described in
paragraph (6) below, the Options are exercisable (subject as provided
below) during each Exercisable Period specified below for up to the

(5)

AI{T{EHAR

FEITXE(6)RFTMITRKMEE > BRER
TXETRANEATERABAR TR (EAR
TXFEAR) URERZEUTFIRYE

number of Shares specified below:

Maximum number of Shares

R= k5 #E

BB

Exercisable Period

5] 17 {5 23 R

approximately one-third of the Shares fall to be issued on
exercise of the Options*
BIINEREETHERETRITORMN=22—

approximately an additional one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*
N B R EETHERR T ETHRMH SIS

=pz—

approximately the remaining one-third of the Shares fall to
be issued on exercise of the Options*

RN EBREEITEREFETHNRMGONERT
=Hz—

the first business day after 24 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 60th month after the offer date
ENHBREFAEABNE—EEXAEZENHER
Be0ERMEE—EEER

the first business day after 36 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 72th month after the offer date

BEENHIEH6ESBENE—EAEXHEENHERE
FEANERE—EEXH

the first business day after 48 months from the offer date to
the last business day in the 84th month after the offer date

BEENHIRE48EABENE—BAEXHEZNBEHE
FAEANEREBE—EEXA

*Note:  The Board may at its absolute discretion determine the exact number of the

Shares fall to be issued on exercise of the Options.
Exercise Conditions

The Board or its delegate(s) may at their sole discretion specify, as
part of the terms and conditions of any Option, any performance
targets or conditions that must be satisfied before the Option can be
exercised as part of the terms and conditions of any Option.

Offer of Options

The Company and Eligible Participants shall enter into a share
option agreement upon the offer to set out the rights and obligations
of both parties. Share option agreement shall contain information
among others, names, number of identification card, address,
correspondence, and any other matters. Eligible Participants shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as the nominal consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.
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(8) Exercise Price for Shares

The exercise price for Shares issuable under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which
must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date.
(9) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted by the Shareholders, unless otherwise terminated under the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Shareholders on 24 November 2015 and, as at the
date of this report, has a remaining life of approximately 3 years and 7
months.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the Share Option Scheme,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
and no equity-linked agreement subsisted as at the end of the year ended 31
December 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provide that each Director is entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report of the Directors, the Company has
arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into certain
transactions with connected persons. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are as follows:

(A) With CGN and its subsidiaries, excluding
the Group (the “CGN Group”)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements

1(a) Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited
(“CGNPC Huasheng”) and the Company entered into the
financial services (CGNPC Huasheng) framework agreement
(the “Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework
Agreement”) in relation to the deposit arrangement in Hong
Kong provided by CGNPC Huasheng to the Group, which was
effective from 12 September 2014 to 29 May 2015, being
the date of the first annual general meeting of the Company
after its listing. The first renewal of the Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the first
annual general meeting of the Company and the terms of the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement
became effective from 30 May 2015 and would continue up to
and including 31 December 2017. The second renewal of the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 18 December 2017 and the terms of the Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement became effective
from 1 January 2018 and would continue up to and including
31 December 2021.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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The third renewal of the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement, together with certain amendments,
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020 and the terms of the Financial Services
(CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement became effective
from 1 January 2021 and shall continue up to and including
31 December 20283.

CGNPC Huasheng is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng)
Framework Agreement and its renewals were disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 19 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”) and the circulars of the Company dated 20
April 2015, 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

Financial Services (CGN Finance) Framework
Agreement

On 12 September 2014, CGN Finance Co., Ltd. (“CGN
Finance”) and the Company entered into the financial services
(CGN Finance) framework agreement (the “Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement”, together with the
Financial Services (CGNPC Huasheng) Framework Agreement,
the “Financial Services Framework Agreements”) in
relation to the deposit arrangement in the PRC provided
by CGN Finance to the Group, which was effective from 12
September 2014 to 29 May 2015, being the date of the
first annual general meeting of the Company after its listing.
The first renewal of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the first annual general
meeting of the Company and the term of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement became effective from
30 May 2015 and would continue up to and including 31
December 2017. The second renewal of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 December
2017 and the terms of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement became effective from 1 January 2018
and would continue up to and including 31 December 2021.

1(b)
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The third renewal of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement, together with certain amendments,
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020 and the terms of the Financial Services
(CGN Finance) Framework Agreement became effective from
1 January 2021 and shall continue up to and including 31
December 2023.

CGN Finance is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Financial Services (CGN Finance)
Framework Agreement and its renewals were disclosed in the
Prospectus and the circulars of the Company dated 20 April
2015, 30 November 2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided to the Group
under the Financial Services Framework Agreements are
similar, the estimated annual cap for the maximum outstanding
balance of deposits to be placed by the Group with CGNPC
Huasheng and CGN Finance under the Financial Services
Framework Agreements, together with the relevant interest
received, for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
aggregated and amounted to US$610.0 million. The actual
maximum outstanding balance of deposits placed by the
Group with CGNPC Huasheng and CGN Finance under the
Financial Services Framework Agreements, together with the
relevant interest received for the year ended 31 December
2021 were approximately US$559.4 million.
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2(a) Operation and Management Services (CGN

Energy) Framework Agreement

On 20 August 2014, CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“CGN Energy”) and the Company entered into the operation
and management services (CGN Energy) framework agreement
(the “Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to provide, or procure a subsidiary of the Group
to provide operation and management services to power
projects (whether in operation or under construction) in which
CGN Energy had interest. The initial term of this agreement
was from 1 May 2014 to 31 December 2016. The Company
served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 where
the principal terms (other than renewal of the term) of the
renewed Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy)
Framework Agreement remained the same as the original
Operation and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees)
(the “2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement’). The Company
further served a notice to CGN Energy in accordance with
the terms of the 2016 Renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such
agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 where the principal terms (other than renewal
of the term) of the further renewed Operation and Management
Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

The Company further served a notice to CGN Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The principal
terms (other than renewal of the term and certain amendments)
of the further renewed Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (CGN
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation of
the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (CGN Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.
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CGN Energy is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016 and 4 December 2019,
and the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement

On 15 September 2014, Huamei Holding Company Limited
(“Huamei Holding”) and the Company entered into the
operation and management services (Huamei Holding)
framework agreement (the “Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement”’,
together with the Operation and Management Services
(CGN Energy) Framework Agreement, the “Operation and
Management Services Framework Agreements”), pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide, or procure a
subsidiary of the Group to provide, operation and management
services to power projects (whether in operation or under
construction) in which a subsidiary of the group of companies
which were transferred to CGN Energy International as part of
the reorganization of the Group as described in the Prospectus
under which Huamei Holding had interest. The initial term of
this agreement was from 15 September 2014 to 31 December
2016. The Company served a notice to Huamei Holding in
accordance with the terms of the Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement to renew
such agreement for a term of three years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019 where the principal terms (other
than renewal of the term) of the renewed Operation and
Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement (including
the calculation of the management fees) (the “2016 Renewed
Operation and Management Services (Huamei Holding)
Framework Agreement’). The Company further served a
notice to Huamei Holding in accordance with the terms of the
2016 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a
term of one year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
where the principal terms (other than renewal of the term)
of the further renewed Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Huamei
Holding) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement”).
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The Company further served a notice to Huamei Holding in
accordance with the terms of the 2019 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 where
the principal terms (other than renewal of the term and
certain amendments) of the further renewed Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement remained the same as the original Operation
and Management Services (Huamei Holding) Framework
Agreement (including the calculation of the management fees).
Such renewal of the Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 December 2020.

Huamei Holding is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Huamei Holding) Framework Agreement and its renewals
were disclosed in the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2016 and 4 December 2019,
and the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2020.

Operation and Management Services (Solar
Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (solar energy) framework
agreement (the “Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement”’) with CGN Solar
Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“CGN Solar Energy”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide, or
procure a subsidiary of the Company to provide, operation
and management services to power projects (whether in
operation or under construction) in which CGN Solar Energy
had interest. The relevant subsidiaries of the Company would
provide comprehensive operation and management services
according to the requirements of the service recipient, and
may appoint personnel to be responsible for or to be involved
in the operations management, financial management, human
resources management, technical management, information
management, and/or safety management of the relevant
power project or company which held interest in the relevant
power project. The term of this agreement was from 17
June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The Company served a
notice to CGN Solar Energy in accordance with the terms
of the Operation and Management Services (Solar Energy)
Framework Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the principal
terms of the renewed Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement remained the same
as the original Operation and Management Services (Solar
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework
Agreement”).
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SRS

The Company further served a notice to CGN Solar Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Save for the
renewal of the term of the agreement and certain amendments,
the principal terms of the renewed Operation and Management
Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.

CGN Solar Energy is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CGN,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Solar Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2015, and the circulars of the Company dated 30 November
2017 and 25 November 2020.
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Report of the Oirectors

2(d) Operation and Management Services (Wind

Energy) Framework Agreement

On 17 June 2015, the Company entered into the operation
and management services (wind energy) framework agreement
(the “Operation and Management Services (Wind Energy)
Framework Agreement”’, together with the Operation and
Management Services (Solar Energy) Framework Agreement,
the “O&M Agreements”) with CGN Wind Energy Co., Ltd.
(“CGN Wind Energy”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to provide, or procure a subsidiary of the Company
to provide operation and management services to power
projects (whether in operation or under construction) in which
CGN Wind Energy had interest. The relevant subsidiaries of
the Company would provide comprehensive operation and
management services according to the requirements of the
service recipient, and may appoint personnel to be responsible
for or to be involved in the operations management, financial
management, human resources management, technical
management, information management, and/or safety
management of the relevant power project or company which
held interest in the relevant power project. The term of this
agreement was from 17 June 2015 to 31 December 2017. The
Company served a notice to CGN Wind Energy in accordance
with the terms of the Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement to renew such agreement
for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. Save for the renewal of the term of the agreement, the
principal terms of the renewed Operation and Management
Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement remained the
same as the original Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation
of the management fees) (the “2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement”).

The Company further served a notice to CGN Wind Energy in
accordance with the terms of the 2017 Renewed Operation
and Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework
Agreement to renew such agreement for a term of three
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Save
for the renewal of the term of the agreement and certain
amendments, the principal terms of the renewed Operation and
Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement
remained the same as the original Operation and Management
Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and the
2017 Renewed Operation and Management Services (Wind
Energy) Framework Agreement (including the calculation of
the management fees). Such renewal of the Operation and
Management Services (Wind Energy) Framework Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 23 December 2020.
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SRS

CGN Wind Energy is a subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Operation and Management Services
(Wind Energy) Framework Agreement and its renewals were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2015, and the circulars of the Company dated 30 November
2017 and 25 November 2020.

General

As the nature of the services to be provided under the two
Operation and Management Services Framework Agreements
and the O&M Agreements are similar, the annual cap for
the management fees payable under the Operation and
Management Services Framework Agreements and the O&M
Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
determined on an aggregate basis and amounted to US$40.0
million. The actual management fees paid under the Operation
and Management Services Framework Agreements and the
O&M Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
approximately US$28.8 million.

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions subject to
reporting and announcement requirements

3.

Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreements

On 10 July 2020, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology Co.,
Limited (“CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology”’) and
the Company entered into the maintenance services of wind
farms and photovoltaic power plants framework agreement
(the “2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to engage CGN
(Beijing) New Energy Technology to provide maintenance
services (which may include the provision of information
services, two measures services, overhaul services, repairs,
maintenance and upgrading of facilities and equipment, regular
inspection services, and pre-testing services, installation and
replacement of equipment and spare parts services) to certain
wind farms and photovoltaic power plants of the Group. The
term of this agreement shall be one year from 10 July 2020
to 9 July 2021, subject to renewal by way of written notice to
CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology upon its expiry.

On 29 April 2021, CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology and
the Company further entered into the maintenance services
of wind farms and photovoltaic power plants framework
agreement (the “2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms
and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement”’)
to renew the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement for a term of
three years from 10 July 2021 to 9 July 2024.

CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGN Solar Energy, which is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Oirectors

Further details of the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement
and the 2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 10 July
2020 and 29 April 2021, respectively.

The estimated annual caps for the maximum service fee
payable from the Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy
Technology under (i) the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement
for the period commencing from 1 January 2021 and ended
on 9 July 2021; and (ii) the 2021 Maintenance Services
of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework
Agreement for the period commencing from 10 July 2021 and
ended on 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB3.4 million
and RMB80.0 million, respectively. The actual service fees
paid by the Company to CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology
under (i) the 2020 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants Framework Agreement; and (ii) the
2021 Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants Framework Agreement for the corresponding
periods were approximately RMB3.3 million and approximately
RMB45.6 million, respectively.

Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants (as
amended by the Supplemental Framework
Agreement for Equipment Inspection and
Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants)

On 16 December 2020, Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd.
(“Gansu CGN Wind Power”) and the Company entered
into the supplemental framework agreement for equipment
inspection and maintenance services of wind farms and
photovoltaic power plants (the “Supplemental Framework
Agreement for Equipment Inspection and Maintenance
Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants”)
to revise the terms of the framework agreement for equipment
inspection and maintenance services of wind farms and
photovoltaic power plants (the “Framework Agreement for
Equipment Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants”) dated 10 June
2019 as entered into between Gansu CGN Wind Power and
the Company, pursuant to which Gansu CGN Wind Power
agreed to provide equipment inspection and maintenance
services (which may include the provision of power
transmission and transformation equipment maintenance and
pretest services, regular inspection and maintenance of wind
power towers services, photovoltaic power plants components
cleaning services and replacement of equipment and spare
parts services) to wind farms and photovoltaic power plants
of the Group. The term of the Framework Agreement for
Equipment Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind
Farms and Photovoltaic Power Plants (as amended by the
Supplemental Framework Agreement for Equipment Inspection
and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic
Power Plants) shall be three years from 10 June 2019 to 9
June 2022, subject to renewal by way of written notice to
Gansu CGN Wind Power upon its expiry.
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Gansu CGN Wind Power is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of CGN Wind Energy, which is a subsidiary of CGN, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants (as amended by the Supplemental
Framework Agreement for Equipment Inspection and
Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power
Plants) were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2020.

The estimated annual cap for the maximum service fee
payable from the Company to Gansu CGN Wind Power for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB8.5 million.
The actual service fee paid by the Company to Gansu CGN
Wind Power under the Framework Agreement for Equipment
Inspection and Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and
Photovoltaic Power Plants (as amended by the Supplemental
Framework Agreement for Equipment Inspection and
Maintenance Services of Wind Farms and Photovoltaic Power
Plants) for the same period was approximately RMB6.0 million.

Sharing of Office and Administrative Services
Agreement

On 5 June 2019, the Company and CGN Energy International
entered into the sharing of office and administrative services
agreement (the “Sharing of Office and Administrative
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to (i) share the use and occupation of the Office Space
(as defined under the Sharing of Office and Administrative
Services Agreement) with CGN Energy International; and (ii)
share the arrangement of the Administrative Services (as
set out in the Sharing of Office and Administrative Services
Agreement) with CGN Energy International, subject to the due
execution of the deed of guarantee and indemnity (the “Deed
of Guarantee and Indemnity”’) to be entered between the
Company, CGN Energy International and Xipho Development
Company Limited as soon as practicable after execution of
the Sharing of Office and Administrative Services Agreement
in order to allow the Company to share with CGN Energy
International certain areas of the Office Space in connection
with the lease agreement. The term of the Sharing of Office
and Administrative Services Agreement shall be from the date
of the Deed of Guarantee and Indemnity to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive).
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Report of the Oirectors

CGN Energy International is the controlling shareholder of the
Company, directly holding approximately 72.29% of the issued
share capital of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Sharing of Office and Administrative
Services Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 5 June 2019.

The annual cap for the maximum service fee payable from
CGN Energy International to the Company under the Sharing
of Office and Administrative Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$15.2 million.
The actual service fee paid by CGN Energy International to
the Company under the Sharing of Office and Administrative
Services Agreement for the same period was approximately
HK$10.9 million.

Shared Services Agreement

On 30 July 2021, CGN New Energy Investment (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CGN Shenzhen”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy, and
CGN Energy entered into the shared services agreement
(the “Shared Services Agreement”), pursuant to which
CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy and CGN Energy, and
their respective subsidiaries from time to time (collectively,
the “Service Providers”) agreed to provide various types
of shared services, including but not limited to (i) usage of
office and business premises; (ii) human resources support;
(iii) repair and maintenance services; (iv) office and meeting
administrative services; and (v) other operational resources
support, to CGN Shenzhen and its subsidiaries from time to
time (collectively, the “Service Recipients”). The term of the
Shared Services Agreement shall be from 30 July 2021 to 31
December 2023, subject to renewal by the parties thereto in
writing before the expiry of its term.

Each of CGN Wind Energy, CGN Solar Energy and CGN
Energy is a subsidiary of CGN, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Shared Services Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 July
2021.

The estimated annual cap for the service fee payable by the
Service Recipients to the Service Providers for the period from
30 July 2021 to 31 December 2021 was RMB87.2 million. The
actual service fee paid by the Service Recipients to the Service
Providers under the Shared Services Agreement for the same
period was approximately RMB54.5 million.
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(B)

General

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group as
mentioned above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 and have confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better (as defined in the Listing
Rules); and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;
2. were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of

goods or services by the Group;

3. were entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the cap.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed above, none of

these related party transactions constitute discloseable connected transactions

as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In relation to those related
party transactions that also constitute connected transactions as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, they have complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Oirectors

NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Non-Competition
Deed”) with CGN on 15 September 2014 under which CGN agreed not to,
and agreed to procure its subsidiaries (other than the Group) not to, compete
with the Group in its non-nuclear power business (save for the retention of the
existing Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus) of the CGN Group
or any future business which the CGN Group has carried on pursuant to the
terms of the Non-Competition Deed) and granted the Company with a right to
acquire the Retained Business of the CGN Group and a right to acquire any
new business or equity investment opportunity directed to the Group according
to the terms of the Non-Competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from CGN confirming to the
Company on its compliance with the relevant non-competing procedures set
out in the Non-Competition Deed and having protected the right granted to the
Company under the Non-Competition Deed to invest in or acquire the relevant
projects during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the independent non-executive
Directors (the “Disinterested Directors”), being the Directors other than
those who are also directors and senior management personnel of the CGN
Group, had reviewed several business or investment opportunities offered by
or referred to by the CGN Group pursuant to the Non-Competition Deed. The
Disinterested Directors considered the opportunities taking into account, inter
alia, the following:

(a) whether such business or investment opportunities would create or
would likely create competition with the principal business of the
Group;

(b) the business and financial performance and potential of the subject

business or investment opportunities;

(c) the feasibility and viability for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities (in terms of the
availability of management, financial and business resources and
expertise);

(d) the terms and conditions of the acquisition of or taking on the subject
business or investment opportunities;

(e) the financial budget and business plan of the Group for undertaking
the subject business or investment opportunities in the relevant year;

(f) result of a cost-benefit analysis for the Group to acquire, invest or take
on the subject business or investment opportunities, and whether such
subject opportunities are consistent with the business development
strategy of the Group, and whether it is likely to create any strategic or
synergy value to the Group’s existing business;
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(9) the likely risks associated with the subject business or investment
opportunities should the Group acquire, take on, operate or participate
in such subject opportunities; and

(h) the equity internal rate of return and/or the expected internal rate of
return of the subject business or investment opportunities.

As a result, we had not exercised any right to acquire or invest in those
business or investment opportunities.

The Disinterested Directors have reviewed compliance by CGN and confirm
that based on the confirmations and information provided by CGN, CGN was
in compliance with the Non-Competition Deed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As of the date of this report, so far as the Directors were aware, none of the
Directors, and their respective close associates had interest in any business
apart from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

We determined the emoluments of our Directors and employees based on their
respective performance, working experience, roles and responsibilities as well
as market factors. We offer our executive Directors and senior management
members, who are also employees of our Company, various compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension scheme, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other benefits in kind. We provide our employees with
salaries and discretionary bonuses, as well as employee benefits, including
retirement schemes, medical and life insurance schemes, housing and other
benefits in kind. None of our Directors has waived or agreed to waive his
Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” SUMMARY

This section is a summary of the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report”). It outlines the Company’s key strategies
and achievements in sustainable development in 2021. In 2021, the Company
had actively fulfilled its social responsibility and closely cooperated with
customers, employees, and the public to achieve the mission of sustainable
development.

2021 is the opening year of China’s “14th Five-Year Plan”, and “Carbon
Peak” and “Carbon Neutrality” are two main guidelines of the “14th Five-
Year Plan”. As an electricity generation company, the Company adheres to
the principle of “Safety First, Quality Foremost, Pursuing Excellence”, and
accurately grasps the development opportunities for the country to achieve
“Carbon Peak” and “Carbon Neutrality”, continue to step up its investment in
new energy, accelerate the expansion of its business presence and maintain
rapid development momentum in order to achieve the concept of high-quality
development.
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Report of the Oirectors

Governance

Maintaining an efficient, orderly, transparent, and stable corporate governance
mechanism is the foundation to achieve the Company’s sustainable
development. During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”), the Company reviewed its environmental targets and climate risks in
order to enhance the ESG governance, and gradually improved the monitoring
of sustainable development, to steadily achieve our business strategies and
targets.

Environment

With the mission of “Developing Clean Energy and Building a Beautiful
China”, the Company has taken green practices and environmental protection
as its essential development approaches. During the Reporting Period, the
Company’s safety, quality and environmental protection department and
other relevant departments continued to improve and regularly review the
environmental safety management work, organize and implement the annual
safety, quality and environmental performance assessment and evaluation
for each business department, department and branch company. Meanwhile,
relevant departments strive to implement the strict management of the
Company’s projects on air emissions, wastewater and waste to ensure that
the Company’s projects comply with the relevant national environmental safety
regulations and laws. The Company promotes high-quality development and
penetrates into the clean energy market for the purpose of providing safe,
environmentally friendly and economic clean energy to the society. New
energy has a promising prospect for development in the future, the Company
will continue to adhere to its mission to produce high-quality clean energy
for the society and strive for the best to contribute to the country’s carbon
commitments.

Society

The Company takes “Safety First, Quality Foremost, Pursuing Excellence” as
the basic principle of corporate operation and development. While striving to
ensure product quality, the Company attaches great importance to the safety
and personal development of employees. The Company regularly conducts
safety monitoring, distributes personal protective equipment to employees
and provides regular safety training. The Company ensures employees have
sufficient knowledge of occupational health and safety before entering the
production and construction sites, so as to minimize the safety risks of
employees. In terms of employee development and training, the Company
adheres to the concept of “Make the Best of One’s Talent and Create a
Future Together”. It regularly provides employees with diversified vocational
skills training and establishes a clear development path according to the
skills needs of different project positions, which enable employees to not only
create value for the Company, but also obtain opportunities to improve their
professional competitiveness.

For the full version of the ESG Report of the Company, please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” CGN New Energy Holdings
Co., Ltd. 2021 to be published on HKEXnews website (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company’s website (www.cgnne.com) by the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available information and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has sufficient public float
as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to approximately HK$4,174,000 (2020:
HK$2,121,000).

AUDITOR

The Company ceased to engage Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu on 29 June 2020,
and appointed KPMG as auditor of the Company on the same day, details of
which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29 June
2020.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
KPMG as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Sui'*
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022

Note: Mr. Chen Sui resigned as a non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this
annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
considers effective corporate governance is a key component in the sustained
development of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and believes
that good corporate governance practices are increasingly important for
maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor confidence. The
Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its
own code of corporate governance. The Board considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021N¢, The Company notes
that the CG Code has been amended and re-numbered with effect from 1
January 2022. For clarity, unless otherwise stated, the numbering of the
code provisions of the CG Code that were in force during the year ended 31
December 2021 has been adopted in this report in respect of the review of the
Group’s corporate governance for the corresponding period.

External Auditor
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Internal Auditor
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Corporate Governance Framework of the Company

ARBNEFEAER

Note: Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2021, as a result of the changes to
directors and senior management of the Company (including the appointment of Mr.
Zhang Zhiwu as the Chairman and the President) on 8 April 2022 as set out on page 1
of this annual report, the Company expects that, for the year ending 31 December 2022,
there is a deviation from the new code provision C.2.1 (formerly code provision A.2.1)
of the CG Code, which states that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2022.
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EXBORS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company,
including the formulation and approval of all policy matters, overall strategies,
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring of the
performance of the senior management. The Directors make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises seven Directors, including two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Members
of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to 22 March
2022, the date of this report, are as follows:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen SuiMer
Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Yilun (President)"oe
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu°*

Non-executive Directors:"o®

Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Minhao
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick

Biographical details and relationships among members of the Board as at the
date of this report are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing day-
to-day operations, business strategies and management of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

During the year, the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) provided the Company with a diverse range of expertise
and a balance of skills, and brought independent judgments in issues pertinent
to strategic direction, development, performance and risk management through
their contribution at the Board meetings and committee meetings.

Note: Subsequent to 22 March 2022 and before the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this annual report, certain changes to the Board and senior management of the
Company have taken place. Please refer to page 1 of this annual report.
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Chairman and President "°o*’

As at the date of this report, Mr. Chen Sui is the chairman of the Company
and Mr. Li Yilun is the president of the Company. The roles of the chairman
and chief executive are served by different individuals to achieve a balance
of authority and power, which is in compliance with the code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code. Mr. Chen Sui is principally responsible for overall corporate
strategies planning and business development of the Group, while Mr. Li Yilun
is principally responsible for leading and managing all the activities of the
Group to achieve the goals and objectives set by the Board, identifying and
recommending the short, medium and long-term business strategies, directing
and executing the Group’s plans and budgets, directing and organizing the
Group’s material, human and economic resources to deliver the corporate
results, identifying and developing business opportunities for the growth of the
Group.

Appointments, re-election and removal of
Directors V¢ 2

Each Director has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with
the Company for a term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). In accordance with bye-law
83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Wang Hongxin will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election. Mr. Zhang Zhiwu and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election, in accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-
laws.

Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals
with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication.

Board meetings in each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of Directors.

Note 1:  Mr. Chen Sui resigned as a non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 April 2022. Mr. Li Yilun resigned as an
executive Director and the President on 8 April 2022. Mr. Zhang Zhiwu, who is a current
executive Director, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 8 April 2022. Please refer to page 1 of this
annual report.

Note 2:  Mr. Chen Xinguo and Mr. Ren Liyong have been appointed as non-executive Directors
on 8 April 2022. They will also retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with bye-law
83(2) of the Bye-laws.
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The calendar of regular Board meetings (the “Board Meetings”), Board
Committees meetings and general meetings for the year ended 31 December

2021 is shown below:

Jan Feb Mar Apr May

BE2021F12AMALFENEZEERGR (ES
BEE)) EECZE0RBURRRERARGAERN
T

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

18 2H 38 48 58 68 78 8H 98 108 118 128

Board BExg v v v v
Nomination Committee RHEER 4 4
Remuneration Committee ¥ MZEES 4 4 4 v/
Audit Committee BREER v v 4
Investment and Risk CEBREREE

Management Committee ~ ZEE v/ v/ v v J/
General Meeting REAE 4

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has held four Board

Meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has held an annual
general meeting (the “2021 AGM”).

The table below sets forth the number of meetings of the Board and Board
Committees (as defined below) and general meeting attended by each Director
who held office during the year ended 31 December 2021:

REE2021F 12831 HIEFE EEZGERTHRE
EEgE-

REE2021F12831HIEFE ARBEEET XK
BEFEARE (M2021FERFEBFERE)) °
TREVWNREE2021F12831BLFESETESH
FEERERNETELEY (EEOT) gEUERR
BAGZRHK .

Attendance/Number of meetings

GHEHEE/RY
Investment
and Risk
Board Nomination Remuneration Audit Management General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
REHRR
Name of Director EREES EEiE R&EEE HMEEE BRRET ERREY RRAEY
Chairman and Non-executive Director: TERIFHTEE:
Mr. Chen Sui BRELE 4/4 2/2 11
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Li Yilun (President) FMELE (BF) 2/4 0/1
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu RERLE 3/4 0/1
Non-executive Directors: FRTES:
Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on TR 44 (7h20214E3 8 248 11 11 11 11 N/A
24 March 2021) (Note i) BHE) (H12ti) ~ER
Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on 24 March ~ EMRTAE (7220214 2/3 2/3 112 4/4 171
2021 and resigned on 24 December SEUAEZERR
2021) (Note ii) 2021125 24 B E)
(Hratii)
Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on FRIMELE (R2021F128
24 December 2021) (Note iii) UBERE) (W)
Independent Non-executive Directors: B JFHITES :
Mr. Wang Minhao IRERE 4/4 2/2 4/4 1/1
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRELE 3/4 2/2 4/4 3/3 5/5 11
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick RIERE 4/4 3/3 5/5 1/1

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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Note i: Mr. Xing Ping resigned as a non-executive Director, the chairman of the Investment

and Risk Management Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee on 24 March 2021. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2021. During the year ended 31
December 2021, no general meeting was held before his resignation took effect.

Note ji: Mr. Xia Linquan appointed and resigned as a non-executive Director, the chairman of

the Investment and Risk Management Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 24 March 2021 and 24 December
2021, respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
24 March 2021 and 24 December 2021, respectively.

Note jii:  Mr. Wang Hongxin was appointed as a non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 24 December 2021. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2021. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, no Board Meeting, Investment and Risk Management
Committee meeting, Audit Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting and
general meeting was held after his appointment took effect.

Corporate Governance

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in code
provision D.3 of the CG Code including the development of policies and
practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct applicable to the employees
of the Company and the Directors, the compliance with the CG Code of the
Company and the disclosure in this report.

Training and support for Directors

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code with regards
to continuous professional development, all Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Upon appointment to the Board, all newly appointed Directors have been
provided with necessary induction training and materials to ensure that they
have proper understanding of the operation and business of the Company and
their responsibilities under the relevant laws, regulations and rules.

To further ensure that all Directors are adequately informed about the
Company’s business and operations as well as their responsibilities under
relevant laws, rules and regulations, the Company Secretary regularly
provides all Directors with information regarding the Company’s most recent
performance as well as updates on latest amendments and developments to
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from
time to time. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
organised training in respect of the latest updates with the Listing Rules.
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The Directors who held office for the year ended 31 December 2021 received
the following training during the same period according to the records

provided by the Directors:

Attendance
trainings/se
meetings in

of the Company’s

RFBERRMNLEH B E2021F12831HIEFER
FEFNEREZIEINDOT :

TYPES OF TRAINING:
REIEE

Reading of materials

in respect of updates
for on the Company’s
minars/ business, duties
respect and responsibilities
of Directors

Visit to power
plants and
facilities and
their respective

business or duties and regulatory management
of Directors requirements personnel
EYWNSTE SN
HEFMEAATEEN ESHBERBEUAR BHRERK
EEBENEN EERTEHEMN REAREBEH
Directors ] it BHER EEAS
Chairman and Non-executive FERENTESE .
Director:
Mr. Chen Sui PR E v v v
Executive Directors: WITESE .
Mr. Li Yilun (President) FfadftE (RF) v 4 v
Mr. Zhang Zhiwu RSEALE v 4 v
Non-executive Directors: FEHITESE :
Mr. Xing Ping (resigned on B E (FR20215E3F24H v 4 v
24 March 2021) FHE)
Mr. Xia Linquan (appointed on EMREE (FR2021FE3824H v v/
24 March 2021 and resigned on EZERP2021F128241
24 December 2021) B1T)
Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on FRI&EE (R2021FE12824H v v/
24 December 2021) EEM)
Independent Non-executive BUEHITES .
Directors:
Mr. Wang Minhao FRERE 4 v
Mr. Yang Xiaosheng BRELE 4 4
Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick RFIEEE v 4

Directors’ insurance

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has arranged for
appropriate liability insurance for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising

out of corporate activities.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
securities transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Company Code”), which are on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”), as a code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Company Code during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), a nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and an investment and risk
management committee (the “Investment and Risk Management
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
respectively. Members of the Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

EEEERS

EFXEZLET

ExgeRuszzae (B89 #iNEES
(T#HNEEE) RLEEE (REZEET)) KRE
HEREEZE Y ((RELAKEEEZEE)) RES
EXEZE]) EFELZEGNHEEED I TIH
RERBDREBMEZZAERRE (THAZFR)) A4
EFEEZEENERERTRERCERERAER
W EBEBR ML BERE SRELEER
R BRAHERTAE-

Investment and

Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk Management
Committee Committee Committee Committee
ERZTES HHMZES RELES REHNE RSP
P
Audit Committee BZEET

As of 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee of the Company was chaired
by Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick (independent non-executive Director), and
the members are Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021 as a
non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive
Director).
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The majority of the members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Relationship with the Company’s external auditors

(a)

(b)

(e)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to consider the plan for each year’'s audit submitted by the external
auditors and discuss the same at a meeting if necessary;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership or management
with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee
should report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

Review of the financial information of the Company

()

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and annual
reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. In reviewing these reports before
submission to the Board, the Audit Committee shall focus particularly
on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(ii) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in

relation to financial reporting.

| Annual Report 2021
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(9) in regard to (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors; and

(ii) the Audit Committee shall consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the reports and
accounts and should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, internal
auditors or external auditors;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal control systems

(h) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems ;

(i) to discuss the internal control systems with management to ensure
that management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
This discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

() to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

(k) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(N to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

(m) to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to management about accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response;

(n) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

(o) to review arrangements which employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The Audit Committee
should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-
up action;
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(p) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor;

(q) to review the continuing connected transactions to ensure compliance
with the terms approved by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”);

(r) to establish whistleblowing policies and systems to allow employees
and others who have dealings with the Company (such as customers
and suppliers) to raise their concerns in secret to the Audit Committee
about any possible improper matters regarding the Company;

(s) to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(1) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Company are
in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, three Audit Committee meetings
were held, inter alia, to review the 2020 annual results, the 2021 interim
results and the internal control of the Group. The attendance records are
set out under the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report. A recent meeting of the Audit Committee was held
on 15 March 2022 to consider the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity, the effectiveness of the audit process and the Group’s
internal control system, which covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Remuneration Committee

As of 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr.
Wang Minhao (independent non-executive Director) and the members were Mr.
Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021 as a non-executive Director)
and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng (independent non-executive Director).
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The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

(e)

(9)

(h)

(k)

to assess, review and make recommendations once a year or as and
when required, to the Board in respect of the remuneration packages
and overall benefits for the Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board in relation to all consultancy
agreements and service contracts or any variations, renewals or
modifications thereof, entered into between the Company and the
Directors or any associate company of any of them;

to consider what details of the remuneration/benefits of the Directors
should be reported in the Company’s annual reports and accounts
in addition to those required by law and how those details should be
presented;

to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for remuneration of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment);

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities as well as employment conditions of other
positions in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management of the Company for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and reasonable and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four Remuneration Committee
meetings were held, inter alia, to review the remuneration structure and
packages of the Directors and senior management, and consider the
emoluments of executive Director. The attendance records are set out under
the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this
report. A recent meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on 15
March 2022 to consider and review, among others, the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, the current
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Company and consider the emoluments of non-executive Directors.

Nomination Committee

As of 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr.
Chen Sui (chairman and non-executive Director) and the members were Mr.
Wang Minhao (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
(independent non-executive Director).

The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company;

(b) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship, including but not limited
to assessing the balance of skills, knowledge and experience as well
as diversification of Board members, and based on the assessment
results, to prepare a description of the roles and capabilities required
for individual appointments;

(c) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and to select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(d) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
(e) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the president of the Company;

(f) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
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(9) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may from
time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the Bye-laws
or imposed by the Listing Rules or applicable law; and

(h) to review the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board’s diversity policy.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the Company
are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a copy of which was posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will carry out
a selection process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations, and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates for directorship.

The Board has also adopted a Board diversity policy. Below is a summary of
the policy:

“The Board recognizes that board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company and enhances
Board effectiveness and corporate governance. In determining the optimum
composition of the Board, all Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board aims to
maintain a Board which has an appropriate mix of diversity, skills, experience
and expertise, as well as a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) so that
there is also independent element on the Board.”

The Company has an unwavering commitment to talent as a prime resource
for development. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, industry experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service in related business areas.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held, inter alia, to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and to consider, nominate and recommend appointment
and reappointment of Directors. The attendance records are set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.
A recent meeting of the Nomination Committee was held on 15 March 2022 to
consider and review, among others, the composition of the Board, succession
planning for the Directors, the Board’s diversity policy, and consider and
recommend the change of director and member of board committees of the
Company.
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As at the date of this report, the following table and paragraph illustrates
the composition and diversity of the Board in terms of four objective criteria,
namely (i) age group, (ii) cultural and educational background, (iii) professional
experience and (iv) industry experience, skills and knowledge.

RARE B UTFREREERBAR 5 0 EFEE
EMSEESNBREME L b BI)EBAR - (i)
XIERBEB S (INVSELRR(IVITELR A
F5H o

Age group Cultural and educational background Professional experience
FEMR XEREEFER b
Accounting,
Bachelor’s Master’s Doctoral Economics
degree degree degree and
40 to 49 50 to 59 60 to 69 holder holder holder Engineering Finance Legal
LN
40E 495 50E595% 60E695% 2t Bt fit I% R R
14% 43% 43% 14% 2% 14% 57% 29% 14%

In addition to the above table, each of the Directors has at least one of the
following industry experience, skills or knowledge:

(a) Experience of electric power or energy-related industries;
(b) Engineering and Mechanic;

(c) Strategic planning;

(d) Investment and risk management;

(e) Corporate management (including internal control, operations, assets
and other aspects);

(f) Legal and compliance;

(9) Financial (including accounting, finance, corporate finance, tax, etc.);
(h) Negotiation and execution of commercial contracts;

(i) Public management and venture management;

(J) Environmental protection;

(k) Experience in management of listed companies;

()] Familiarity with the business environment of China; and

(m) Familiarity with the business environment of Hong Kong and the

international business environment.

The Nomination Committee considers that the existing composition of the
Board is diversified, taking into account the nature and scope of the Group’s
operations, specific needs as well as the different background of our Directors.
Furthermore, the Nomination Committee recommends that the diversity of the
Board in terms of (i) cultural and educational background, (ii) professional
experience, and (iii) industry experience, skills and knowledge should be
maintained, and that the Board should adopt these criteria as the basis for
the selection and assessment of candidates for Directors by the Nomination
Committee in the future.
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Investment and Risk Management Committee

As of 31 December 2021, the Investment and Risk Management Committee
was chaired by Mr. Wang Hongxin (appointed on 24 December 2021 as
a non-executive Director), and the members were Mr. Yang Xiaosheng
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick
(independent non-executive Director).

All of the members of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
are non-executive Directors. The major duties of the Investment and Risk
Management Committee are as follows:

(a) to review major investment and strategy and objectives of project
financing of the Company;

(b) to review any major investment, financing proposal and operating
project matters of the Company that are subject to approval by the
Board in accordance with the “Board of Directors Delegation of
Authority Manual”;

(c) to review the development and objectives of the Company’s risk
management system;

(d) to supervise the soundness, reasonableness and effectiveness of
the risk management system, and instruct the comprehensive risk
management of the Company;

(e) to study the risks of significant matters in major investment and
financing activities and operation management of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board;

(f) to study the significant investigation results and feedbacks from the
management concerning the risk management of the Company; and

(9) to handle other matters in relation to investment or risk management
as delegated by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
adopted by the Company are in line with the provisions of the CG Code, a
copy of which was posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, five Investment and Risk
Management Committee meetings were held to review the proposed
investment project of the Group. The attendance records are set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance” in this report.
A recent meeting of the Investment and Risk Management Committee was held
on 15 March 2022 to consider and review, among others, the Comprehensive
Risk Management Report and the Risk Management Evaluation Report of the
Group.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Lee Kin, the company secretary of the Company, is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Lee Kin
was appointed as the Company Secretary on 26 January 2015. Mr. Lee Kin
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during his term of office in the year ended 31 December
2021. The biographical details of Mr. Lee Kin is set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2021, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards amendments to standards and
the related interpretations, made adjustments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
in this report.

xternal auditor’s remuneration
Ext I ditor’ t

KPMG has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor since 29 June
2020. The Audit Committee has been notified of the scope, nature and the
service charges of the audit and non-audit services performed by KPMG and
considered that these audit and non-audit services have no adverse effect
on the independence of KPMG. There was no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of KPMG.

The remuneration paid to KPMG in respect of audit and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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Amount of fees

Type of services provided by KPMG EERN M ERFIRUENRERELE ERTEE
HK$'000

FETT

Audit services BEIZIRTS 3,762
Non-audit services IEBZRTS 500
Total “ast 4,262

The non-audit services provided by KPMG mainly include tax advisory
services.
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Risk management and internal control

The Board has the responsibility of evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and overseeing
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, and management should provide a
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems on an ongoing
basis. The Board should ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems has been conducted at
least annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
and risk management systems. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and the implementation and
continuous review of an internal control manual. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual reviews on the Group’s internal control system
and make recommendations for strengthening such systems. The results of
the review for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board. No material deficiencies have been identified
so far and there were no significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders.

A framework has been established for prudent and effective controls to enable
risks to be identified, evaluated and managed. Procedures have been designed
for the management of financial, strategic and operational risk management
functions. The procedures provide reasonable assurance against material
untrue statement or losses and to monitor the risks existing in the course of
arriving at the Group’s objectives.

The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on its own
observations, the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

The Company is aware of its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and has put in place the proper procedure to ensure that any perceived inside
information would be announced to the investing public on a timely basis.

The Company has an internal audit function.

The Audit Committee, inter alia, reviews the financial controls, risk
management and internal controls systems of the Group and any significant
internal control issues identified by the internal audit department, external
auditors and management. The Audit Committee also considers the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting functions and internal audit function and their training
programmes and budgets.

The Investment and Risk Management Committee reviews the development
and objective of the risk management system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with the Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enable the Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company’s public
relations firm and share registrar, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make any query that
they may have with respect to the Company.

Shareholders or investors can contact the public relations firm of the Company,
Wonderful Sky Financial Group, to make enquiry or to provide suggestions, of
which the contact details are as follows:

Tel: (852) 3970 2111
Fax: (852) 3102 0210
Email: cgnne@wsfg.hk

In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, if they have any enquiries about
their shares of the Company and dividends.

The members of the Board and the Board Committees and KPMG are
expected to be present to answer the Shareholders’ questions at annual
general meetings of the Company (the “AGM”). Meeting circulars are
distributed to all Shareholders before AGM and special general meetings of
the Company (the “SGM”) in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid
down in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group maintains
a website where information on the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has published on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange its Bye-laws.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no amendments were made to the
Bye-laws of the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels of communication with
its shareholders. It provides an opportunity for shareholders to communicate
face to face with the Directors about the Company’s performance and
operations. The 2021 AGM was held on 25 May 2021 at Boardroom 6,
Mezzanine Floor, Renaissance Harbour View Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Resolutions passed at the 2021 AGM

=2
=S

Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2021 AGM on each substantive SEEZEBEHR2021ERETBEART LU RE

P01 RRBFRG LIBBAIR

issue and the percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions is set out ZEREZ > MIBEBZEREEZNEHLEEINT :

below:
Percentage of

Resolutions proposed at the 2021 AGM Votes in Favour
R2021FERRBEFARE LIREWRE KREERBE DL

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company, the Report 99.36%
of the Directors and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2020
BAREEARRBEHE2020F 12831 HIEFENRBEZAGVBRR - ESHRER
B ZEENRS

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 100%
SMEE2020F 12831 HIEFENRIARE

3.(a) To re-elect Mr. Xia Linquan as a non-executive director of the Company 99.51%
BEEMRAERRATFNITES

3.(b) To re-elect Mr. Wang Minhao as an independent non-executive director of the Company 99.56%
BETRELERNABEBIUIFNTES

3.(c) To re-elect Mr. Leung Chi Ching Frederick as an independent non-executive director of the 99.62%
Company
BERTEREARABBEIIIENITES

3.(d) To authorize the Board to fix Directors’ remuneration 99.62%
EHESGETESNS

4. To re-appoint KPMG as auditor of the Company and authorize the Board to fix its remuneration 100%
ENMEEEER S EBMAR R RERESEETHMS

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase Shares 99.62%
ETESHELRM N —RITE

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue Shares 97.93%
BETESHRTRON—RITE

7. To extend the Issue Mandate by adding thereto the number of Shares repurchased by the Company 97.95%

pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate

BBIMALTABREBRREELDNRNDMEBAETREE

Accordingly, all resolutions put to shareholders at the 2021 AGM were passed.  #EIb > 2021 ERFBEAT LAREFIRZRZNFAE RS

The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of the FEHEEBRB BELREDITIENETAT KER

Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively. 4Bk o
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Dividend Policy” in the Report of the Directors in this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of SGM and requisition by the
Shareholders

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s
policy on shareholders’ rights.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at Victoria Place,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. The written requisition
must state the purposes of the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the shareholders concerned will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested.
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Procedures for making proposals by the
Shareholders other than a proposal of a person
for election as director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s
policy on shareholders’ rights.

The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general meeting
known as a special general meeting whenever necessary. Shareholder(s) of
the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not
less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request stating the resolution
intended to be moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting. The written request/
statements must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the Company’s registered office at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong Kong at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Company Secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks before the
AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than one week before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.
If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
(i) to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and/
or circulating the statement submitted by the shareholder(s) concerned in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purposes, the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws, the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, applicable legislation and regulation and the Company’s
policy on the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director.

1. If a shareholder of the Company who is duly qualified to attend and
vote at the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other than
the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a director (the
“Candidate”) at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

2. In order for the Company to inform all shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

3. A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the
shareholder(s) for such proposal can be found from the website of the
Company.

4. A sample form of the notice to be executed and signed by the

Candidate can also be found from the website of the Company setting
out, amongst other things, his/her willingness to be elected together
with the information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules as follows:

(i) full name and age;

(i) positions held with the Company and/or other members of the
Company (if any);

(iii) experience including (i) other directorships held in the past
three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, and
(ii) other major appointments and professional qualifications;

(iv) length or proposed length of service with the Company;
(v) relationships with any directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders (as

defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company, or an
appropriate negative statement;

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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(vi) interests in shares of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or an appropriate
negative statement; and

(vii) a declaration made by the Candidate in respect of the
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)
(h) to (w) of the Listing Rules, or an appropriate negative
statement to that effect where there is no information to be
disclosed pursuant to any of such requirements nor there are
any other matters relating to that Candidate’s standing for
election as a director that should be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company.

The period for lodgement of the written notice will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and end no later than seven (7) clear days prior to the date
of such general meeting. If the notice is received less than fifteen
(15) business days prior to that general meeting, the Company will
need to consider adjournment of the general meeting in order to (i)
assess the suitability of the proposed Candidate; and (ii) publish an
announcement or circulate a supplementary circular in relation to the
proposal to the shareholders at least fourteen (14) clear days and not
less than ten (10) business days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the Company Secretary at
15/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor's Report
BB RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN New Energy
Holdings Co., Ltd.(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 138 to 266, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

B ZEEIRS

FREELSEE

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of RAEEZEEIZREASHANBENE  HEHRES
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the BIHBHRERNBELEAEEMNEIE - RSB INAEHH
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the BRRLEAUBREZBERHEEREEERE KSR
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion FAIAEGHZEEIRMHEBBNER-

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

B2 R E

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting — 75 2455 IR Z M 16X K & 51 LR M1 72(1)

policies on note 2(f).

The Key Audit Matter
FEZER

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2021, the Group has goodwill of
approximately US$168,798,000 relating to groups of cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) comprising subsidiaries engaged in
generating and supplying electricity through solar energy and
wind energy in the Peoples’ Republic of China (the “PRC”),
which are tested for impairment annually.

MUNER B M BRI sT16FTH > 1220218128310 E&EE
HEH#168,798,000E TN E LM BHN PR EARKME
(THhEL) REBBKRGEREIZEERMEEHNE LB MR
NWIReESSEA (FREEEE M) ARERF > UEFETRE
A o

In performing impairment assessments, management engaged
an external valuer to assess the recoverable amounts of
the relevant CGUs using value in use method by preparing
discounted cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial forecast approved by the management. Management
compared carrying value of each of the separately identifiable
CGUs with their respective recoverable amounts to determine if
any impairment loss should be recognized.

EETHETGHR  EEEZEIIBEEMRIESIERHE
NEMMBRAGRITRERESREEA UERBBEETGE
HEERESESX BN KE &E - EIEE &S @5 0 #5318
SELEMNEDEAEZEN KD EEEEH LR LUR
R EERERBEEE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEFANEZNAEEMEEREER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of goodwill included
the following:

R EEERENEZEFEENATRE

. assessing the management’s identification of CGUs, the
allocation of assets to each CGU and the methodology
adopted by management in its impairment assessments
with reference to the requirements of prevailing accounting
standards;

. 2ERTEHAEINER THEEEBHREELB UMD
E-EBEEEARSELSBUZENYEUKREERERIEST
BEFT GBS ZE

. evaluating the competence, experience, capability and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by management to
perform the valuation of the relevant CGUs;

. HEEEEMZEAHEMARESEEBETHENINBG
BEMNERE &5 ENMEEE ;

. evaluating the assumptions adopted in the preparation
of discounted cash flow forecasts for the purpose of the
impairment assessment of goodwill, including projected future
growth rates for income and expenses, with reference to our
understanding of the business, historical trends and available
industry information and available market data;

. SERMHEEBNIER FLBBNRATEERKRIREET
SE B T EAEERETEMARITRRES RETAERFK
ARRES BIERARBEZNESTRIEERSE ;
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B ZEEIRS

The Key Audit Matter
AT IXEIE

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized an impairment loss on
goodwill of US$4,335,000 as at 31 December 2021.
RSB RMET16PTIRE > BHEEF2021F12831
H 7 50 7 25 (B 8518 4,335,000F 7T ©

The recoverable amounts are based on value in use
calculations using discounted cash flow model, which require
significant assumptions and estimates with respect to the
discount rates and the forecasted cash flows, in particular the
budgeted sales and gross margins, taking into account the
management expectations for the power industry in the PRC.
AREEEUEAEEHEAER RARERENFEL
AR ETEERNTRERFARESRE (CEEERHESR
BEFZE) EHEABR kMG Ut REBBHPEE DT
FEMTER-

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments performed by management involve certain critical
judgments in respect of the assumptions made which are
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
EMBETEEENETREN AMBEERZSE AAEEE
ETHRETE I RMFAEENBRRIEEHETEZHE M
ZEBRABABIREN U EZHRERENRRE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

TEFFHNEZNAEEMEERER

involving our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
management’s valuation methodology adopted in the
impairment assessment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards; and assess whether the
discount rates applied in the cash flow forecasts prepared
for the purpose of assessing the impairment of goodwill were
within the range adopted by other companies operating in the
same industry;

HREHEEX —E2RBITEFENNER - HEEZR
BETEPRANGEL ZETTE ; T EATEEER
EMAMNRERERAMRANITREZSERITERM
REIFTRANESBER ;

comparing the significant assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and actual results for the current year
with management’s forecast in the previous year in order to
assess the reliability of historical accuracy of management’s
forecasting process and whether there is any indication of
management bias;
RAFERERENBEBAMAZEERRAERERN
BEE F—FENFAETLEE LFIHEEBRENBEN
EEERERESASEUAREEAANREBREEEFTR
8

evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by management
for each of the key assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecast and considering the possibility of error or
management bias; and
FHEEEMTRRERERAAMKRANSEEIERRME
HNHRAESH TEEBEIRERNEEBRENTAEM. ;
4

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of impairment testing of goodwill with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

SRFTEFENNER TEAERENAN GRS BER
RAZHE-
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

B ZEEIRS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Maggie L.T. Lee.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

moBmRE

R ICE =G T

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes Us$’000 Us$’000
iok:3 28T FET
Revenue Y ON 4 1,694,658 1,149,892
Operating expenses: KR
Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet YRR~ B RARA K
NEFERL 771,190 492,510
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BERREITE 265,029 193,031
Repair and maintenance HERRE 37,684 30,447
Staff costs BT 96,680 85,835
Recognition/(reversal) of loss allowance of MR B 5 K
trade and other receivables and contract E@F%Llﬁ( NIB R &[5
assets BEEBEERS 36(a) 20,292 (99)
Others Hith 5 83,869 60,701
Total operating expenses KSR ARER 1,274,744 862,425
Operating profit =Sl 419,914 287,467
Other income HAUTA 6 41,307 26,318
Other gains and losses H i K E5 18 7 44 (11,089)
Finance costs M% &R 8 (188,216) (145,005)
Share of results of associates BB E AR EE (37,551) 29,342
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KWBRE W= 37 - 18,135
Profit before taxation F&F A E A 235,498 205,168
Income tax FriS 9 (33,774) (37,533)
Profit for the year Fia A 10 201,724 167,635
Other comprehensive income for the year FEREMEEmE G
Items that will not be reclassified to T EEN D IEE B
profit or loss: EHH
Remeasurement of net defined benefit ugE%fEﬁiE%%f%i‘J%fEE
retirement scheme obligations FEENTE 13 599 (1,328)
Items that are/may be reclassified subsequently B, H#ESJE#H 7 EE
to profit or loss: EmbyEH
Exchange difference arising on translation of Tﬁ% BINEBELEN
foreign operations RER (24,552) 132,650
Effective portion of changes in fair value of EWE@E?EZ%?‘?IE
hedging instruments recognized NABEZ
during the year BREFHI D 12,580 (2,159)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited arising from HATERAAREEES
fair value change in hedging instruments EXRRERIE
(ZH) iER (3,044) 522
Reclassification adjustments for amounts HEAB@mRIE
transferred to profit or loss ETEMDERAE
- release of hedging reserve — O R REE (124) (120)
— deferred tax credit arising on release of — R REEESE
hedging reserve BYIEIEFR IR 30 29
- release of accumulative gains of —RHE—KHE
translation reserve to NEEEDIER
profit or loss upon disposal of REEBRTWRE
a subsidiary B 37 - (2,198)
Other comprehensive income for the year FRHEMEE TG (14,511) 127,396
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EWBEARZE 187,213 295,031

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per Share
- Basic (US cents)

- Diluted (US cents)

Other Comprehensive Income

moEmRAMEBEREmEK

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes USs$’000 US$°000
iok:3 28T FET
FELERRA
KNB)ERRER 184,762 162,087
JEERR S 16,962 5,548
201,724 167,635
FEERNE U EAREE .
KNB)ERRER 168,801 283,170
JEERREm 18,412 11,861
187,213 295,031
sSREF 12
— &K EM) 4.31 3.78
— 858 (EA) 4.31 3.78

The notes on pages 146 to 266 form part of these financial statements. Details 51462266 BB ZEMHFRETN —3 D o F
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the — PIFE(T A& A 5] # 2 I& B8 FE 1d i 7] B9 A% S 5% 1B 8 5 5L BT

profit for the year are set out in note 36(b).

5£36(b)°
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

in e M BRI

at 31 December 2021 f22021512531H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Interests in associates
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Other non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Tax recoverable

Derivative financial instruments
Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
— due within one year

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due within one year

Loan from the ultimate holding company
— due within one year

Bank borrowings — due within one year

Lease liabilities — due within one year

Government grants

Tax payable

Derivative financial instruments

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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Notes

mat

14
15
16
17
26
19

18
20

21
22
23
24
25
19
26
27
27
27

28
34
29
25

25
30

30
31
32
33
19
26

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 Us$°'000
28T FET
6,195,027 4,747,312
100,315 86,637
168,798 169,241
149,238 206,083
8,645 5,445
23,322 21,794
5,238 -
363,664 505,065
7,014,247 5,741,577
54,209 24,445
744,471 430,273
186,735 146,637
123,141 91,946
6,321 6,229
214 216
8,454 1,832
157,730 134,527
3,137 -
374,999 398,850
1,659,411 1,234,955
129,505 70,704
4,719 2,717
614,581 398,024
108,806 8,738
2,153 7,365
1,162,467 521,268
= 295,790
763,503 721,579
6,899 3,900
212 207
12,299 9,081

= 63
2,805,144 2,039,436




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
- due after one year
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
— due after one year
Loans from fellow subsidiaries
- due after one year
Loan from the ultimate holding company
- due after one year
Bank borrowings - due after one year
Lease liabilities — due after one year
Government grants
Net defined benefit retirement scheme obligations

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 22 March

2022.

Chen Sui
Rz
Director

EBEE

The notes on pages 146 to 266 form part of these financial statements.

Notes
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2021 EERE

ine BRI

at 31 December 2021 F220215 12831 H

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
28T FET
(1,145,733) (804,481)
5,868,514 4,937,096
3,835 -
1,183 1,085
856,821 533,482
= 122,607
3,482,388 2,889,265
28,648 27,022
9,345 9,548
1,683 2,792
49,415 53,914
4,433,318 3,639,715
1,435,196 1,297,381
55 55
1,313,497 1,213,100
1,313,552 1,213,155
121,644 84,226
1,435,196 1,297,381

BETR2022F3F 22 HE T B T o

Li Yilun
FIr R
Director

EFE
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| HEEENERERERAE

141



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mOEmEE)R

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

At 1 January 2021

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized during the year

Deferred tax charged arising from
fair value change in hedging instruments

Release of hedging reserve

Deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve

Remeasurement of net defined
benefit retirement scheme obligations

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividend declared and paid to equity shareholders
of the Company in respect of previous year
(note 35b(ii)
Dividends declared and paid to non-controlling
shareholders
Transfer of other non-distributable reserves
Deregistration of a subsidiary
Acquisition of additional equity interest in a subsidiary
Capital injecton from non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2021

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

20211518

KEEER
BESNEBELNERER

ENBAZHATEARBEZ
RREDYD

HATAARBELHELN
EERERH

BEHAEE

BEHAEEEL
EERELR

RERERAHARMEIE
EffitE

KEERENEHAE

ARAREERRE IR

T LEERS
(Ha2350(i)
BERISAEERRENRS

BREMAT DGR
ZH-RZHEAR
WE-RHBATNRIMRE
FEREDTE

120214126318

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAREERREN
Other non- Non-
Share Share distributable Hedging Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total equity
At RF
k& RiERE Nkt Hinle ERGE iR it EERES B2
(note 35(d)(i) (note 35(d)(ii)) (note 35(d)(iii))
(Hias(d)i))  (Wa3s(d)(ii) (Hiit3s(a)ii)

US$'000 Uss$'000 Uss$000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
55 250,406 22,269 5,520 75,663 859,242 1,213,155 84,226 1,297,381

- - - - - 184,762 184,762 16,962 201,724

- - - - (26,002) - (26,002) 1,450 (24,552)

S o = 12,580 o o 12,580 = 12,580

- - - (3,044) - - (3,044) - (3,044)

- o = (124) - - (124) - (124)

- - - 30 - - 30 - 30

- - - - - 599 599 - 599

- - - 9,442 (26,002) 185,361 168,801 18,412 187,213

- - - - - (68,300) (68,300) - (68,300)

_ _ - - o - - (6,657) (6,657)

- - 3,881 - - (3,881) - - -

_ _ - - o - - (1,414) (1,414)

- o = - - (104) (104) 104 =

- - - - - - - 26,973 26,973

55 250,406 26,150 14,962 49,661 972,318 1,313,552 121,644 1,435,196

Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mOEmEE)R

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising on translation of
foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in fair value of
hedging instruments recognized during the year

Deferred tax credited arising from fair value change
in hedging instruments

Release of hedging reserve

Deferred tax credit arising on release of
hedging reserve

Release of accumulative gains of translation reserve
upon disposal of a subsidiary (nofe 37)

Remeasurement of net defined
benefit retirement scheme obligations

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends declared to non-controlling shareholders
Transfer of other non-distributable reserves
Adjustment due to change in interests in

an associate from share dilution
Disposal of equity interests in a subsidiary
Acquisition of additional equity interests in a subsidiary
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2020

The notes on pages 146 to 266 form part of these financial statements.

202061818

REEEF
BESHNEBELNERER

ERBIZHATANABEZ
RREHND
HATAAABEEESZ
BERBES

BOHDEE
HEHAREELL
BERBES
HE-FHBARKED
ERGE 2 Rl (W2s7)
REXDEAHEEEFE
BitE

FEERENEAR

CERFERRRNRE
BREMFIDRERE

ARBEIEHN-FEEARNRE

2HMEdHOEE
HE-FKNBARNRE
WE—-FNBARNRINRE
FERREITE

120208125318

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAFRTRRER
Other non- Non-
Share Share distributable Hedging Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
H AT
RE R EE PikGEE HipE ERER Rt et EERER i
(note 35(d)fi))  (note 35(d)(ii)) (note 35(d)ii))
(rztas(ayy)  (WiaEssra)i)  (Wztss(ain))

Us$'000 US$000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$000 Uss$'000 Us$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
55 250,406 12,813 7,248 (48,476) 708,069 930,115 79,332 1,009,447

- - - - - 162,087 162,087 5,548 167,635

- - - - 126,337 - 126,337 6,313 132,650
- - - (2,159) - - (2,159) - (2,159)

- - - 522 - - 522 - 522
- - - (120) - - (120) - (120)

- - - 29 - - 29 - 29
- - - - (2,198) - (2,198) - (2,198)
_ - _ - - (1,328) (1,328) - (1,328)

- - - (1,728) 124,139 160,759 283,170 11,861 295,031
_ N - - - - - (4,618) (4,618)

- - 9,399 - - (9,399) - - -

- - 57 - - - 57 - 57
- - - - - - - (3,990) (3,990)

_ - - - - (187) (187) 187 -

- - - - - - - 1,454 1,454

55 250,406 22,269 5,520 75,663 859,242 1,213,155 84,226 1,297,381

2021 EERE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flaws

noREMmER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of deferred connection charges

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Finance costs

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill

Interest income

Recognition of government grants

Recognition/(reversal) of loss allowance on trade

and other receivables and contract assets

Share of results of associates

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in other non-current assets

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in contract assets

Increase in other receivables and prepayments

Increase in amounts due from/(to)
fellow subsidiaries
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
accruals

(Decrease)/increase in net defined benefit
retirement scheme obligations

Increase in contract liabilities

Increase in government grants

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |
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Notes

mat

10
10

37

10

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 Us$°'000
28T FET
235,498 205,168
- (72)
265,029 193,031
7,161 13,533
188,216 145,005
(3,982) 409
= (18,135)

= 4,384

4,335 8,995
(2,579) (2,847)
(995) (1,278)
20,292 (99)
37,551 (29,342)
750,526 518,752
(75,261) (38,080)
(32,212) 3,810
(325,777) (84,422)
(40,925) (56,978)
(30,409) (22,055)
8,433 (700)
65,198 (20,765)
1,726 (11,769)
(510) 1,694
1,917 737
573 627
323,279 290,851
(37,637) (33,971)
285,642 256,880




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Placement of deposits for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment
Proceed from sales of non-current assets
classified as assets held for sale

Payments for right-of-use assets
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets
Dividends received from associates
Interest received
(Placement)/withdrawal of
short-term bank deposits
Payment for acquisition of interest in
a new associate
Payment for purchase of financial assets

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings raised

Interest paid

Repayment to fellow subsidiaries

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Repayment of lease liabilities

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Loans from the ultimate holding company

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Cash paid to a non-controlling shareholder
upon deregistration of a subsidiary

Repayment to the ultimate holding company

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR

noREMER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE
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The notes on pages 146 to 266 form part of these financial statements.

2021 2020
20214 20204

Notes Us$’000 us$’000
st 28T FET
(1,198,766) (1,323,111)

(162,901) (134,527)

- (65,010)

= 23,916

(11,429) (4,303)

37 - 20,891
128,121 136,933

7,118 41,594

9 239

25,568 29,723

2,579 2,847

(3,137) 2,476

(3,564) -

(5,238) -

(1,221,640) (1,268,332)

(993,161) (705,630)

1,619,923 1,510,446

(188,216) (145,005)

(526,330) (765,872)

(68,300) -

(6,657) (6,305)

(4,938) (6,313)

1,471,938 724,490

41,878 395,991

26,973 1,454

(1,414) -

(465,307) -

906,389 1,003,256

(29,609) (8,196)

398,850 384,141

5,758 22,905

374,999 398,850
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

1.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

GENERAL

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in October 2014. The registered office of the
Company is at Victoria Place, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is at 15/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its immediate
holding company is CGN Energy International Holdings Co., Limited
(“CGN Energy International”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, and its ultimate holding company is China
General Nuclear Power Corporation (“CGN”), a state-owned enterprise
established in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in the generation and supply of
electricity and steam, construction and operation of power stations and
other associated facilities in the PRC and Republic of Korea (“Korea”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
dollar (“US$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (the “Companies Ordinance”).

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these amendments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in its associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- investments in equity securities (see note 2(g)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
US$1,145,733,000 as at 31 December 2021. CGN
Finance Co., Ltd. (“CGN Finance”) and CGN Wind Energy
Limited (“CGN Wind Energy”), the fellow subsidiaries
of the Company, have confirmed in writing that despite
the loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,100,000,000
(equivalent to US$172,530,000) and CGN Wind Energy of
RMB6,300,000,000 (equivalent to US$988,127,000) which are
due for repayment within twelve months from 31 December
2021, they will not cancel the existing loan facilities within
twelve months from 31 December 2021 and that the loans
will be extended upon expiry. Furthermore, taking into account
the financial resources of the Group, the Group has unutilized
general facilities of US$846,123,000 as at 31 December
2021 for the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. In addition, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by the
management of the Group. The cash flow projections cover
a period not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for at least the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

. Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021

. Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 186, Interest rate benchmark reform - phase 2

None of these amendments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes
2(f) and (I)(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate (after applying the ECL model
to such other long-term interests where applicable (see note
2(1()).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not measured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence is
recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(l)(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(h(i)).
On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any

attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Equity investments

Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL") for which transaction costs are recognized directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 36(e).

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognized in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(v)(iii).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on the remeasurement to fair value is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge of
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged (see note 2(i)).
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge its risk of foreign exchange forward
contracts.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective
portion of any gain or loss is recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset such as inventory,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost of the non-financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such as when a
forecast sale occurs or interest expense is recognized).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
(including when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated
in the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and it is recognized in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the amount that has been accumulated in the
hedging reserve is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss
immediately.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(1)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs(see note 2(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognized in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows except for freehold land in Korea:

Over the shorter if the term of
the lease, and 5-50 years

— Buildings

- Electric and steam
generating facilities

5 to 25 years, or over the
relevant operating license

period

- Office and electronic 3 - 10 years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 - 6 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group, are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalized are recognized as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Annual Report 2021

2.

FES

(k)

stEER ()

HEEE

RERRER 2EEETHRERE
ERABSHE - HEREEE—RE
I B 5 & 2 B R R DU
BRE - AZeaRAHEEHE - HE
FERETEHINEENERREZ
EAPEGEARBO QLN BB
SEFIE -

(i) EREBEA

HEReEsBEAMEB D KIE
HEMANED  AEEDEE
o3 B IR B 4B A 5B 0 I6 B PR
FHERXEEMERS D RE

AR FHEER B O ERE
—HEEME D AR

REERBEH AEEES
ERAREEREEAR  EHR
ABm12@A N THERER
REEERE GIaEEMS
ERBLEBIMAERM) BRI o
EXEEMBEEEET LA
MK AEBRER SIZ @R

BEREEREEEA L -HZ
EHAEXENEERRMNE
ENMREHNRARCESE
BB

HWEEEERE MEEARE
MHPRBRNRECSEECR
WIRERS LEABEERR
TR FETHR REZA
REFKRZGHEE AERERH
B EBEMA K- R P HERE
ﬁa%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ$ﬁ% M
) BB BUGE A | IR A oK 5
Ho NBURNIEH A KB A
BHENREAHABRERR
Wst8 W EELEN G H
BB Rk e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

B PSR < U EE

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(1)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease
is capitalized is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 2(j)
and 2(1)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as
a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and recognized the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the statement of financial position, the Group
presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognized in accordance with note
2(v)(v).

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits, trade receivables and other receivables and
prepayments) and contract assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial instruments and financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof where the effect of
discounting is material.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
based on its historical observed default rates which is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognized as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

2. FEGSHEX (@

(1

2021 EERE

FEBEREERE (B8

(i)

HthER#BEERE (&

StEEWEEEE

BEEZAREBSESA
AEBEREDERE
HERBEEZBRSE-
PR EER A
REBEREZRRIR
ERTSEHEERHREE
BEREERERR T
2 BRI T IR IR
EHRBE - HEEME
EHRERAKRE DAL
WU EMEEFE
ERREIRA  BIDEE
BUYUEXRERAZER
NEEMR (BREE
LB BEETWRE S
BHoMAERER—®
RERE LETHE 8
NEEE (04K
B N—HBoREES
DEFENREELES
i [ADEFERNN
REEFEMAR

HETRERR

HEENHEMBREE
LR REERBRR
WElEER I E N
BRAREGE - RRE
EEBUEDZRERS
BEFHAE BXHA
BEDEEZRTEE
B (RZAEMW B
FEEEEREE HE
R BB EZ B (N
ZAEBEM) nEHMEE
HIREE EEERE
ERTREEREER
RAABEREHEMAE
(el st &) RNEEA
BE WMAIED -

HEEZERIERARAE

163



164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ne M R M 5t

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognized.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract
liabilities

A contract asset is recognized when the Group recognizes
revenue (see note 2(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(l)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognized when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognized
the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A contract liability would
also be recognized if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognized (see note 2(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2(v)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognized before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2(n)).

Receivables are subsequently stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(I)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value.
Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortized
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrow
costs (see note 2(x)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations

(i)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement schemes is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior
years; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)
(i)

(iii)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement scheme
obligations (continued)

Service cost and net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognized in profit or loss
and allocated by function as part of “staff costs”.
Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current year. When the
benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is
curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related
to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognized as an expense in profit or
loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognized. Net
interest expense for the year is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to
the net defined benefit liability. The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement schemes are recognized in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately in
retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) and any change in the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognized restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilized, are recognized. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(1)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilized.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognized for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognized for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognized when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sale of electricity or
steam and tariff income

Revenue from the sale of electricity or steam and tariff
income are recognized based upon output delivered.
Under the transfer-of-control approach in IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”),
revenue from sales of electricity or steam and tariff
income is generally recognized upon transmission of
electricity and steam to the customers, which is the
point of time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the output and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits of the output.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from capacity charges,
connection charges and management
service

Capacity charges are payments from independent
power purchasers for maintaining availability of some
of the Group’s power generators for dispatch of
electricity, regardless of actual dispatch. Connection
charges are one-off charges to new customers for
connecting into a heat supply network approved
by government. Management service fee income is
recognized when the service is provided. The revenue
from capacity charges, connection charges and
management service are recognized over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues under the
effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognized in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognized as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognized in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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2.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Revenue and other income
(continued)

(vii) Revenue from sales of renewable energy
certificates (“REC”)

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when
customer takes possession of the REC.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction dates is the date on which the Group initially
recognizes such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into USD at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong,
are translated into USD at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related party
includes a person and entity as defined below:

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third entity.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y)

(2)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Company or to the

Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

In addition, government refers to government, government
agencies and similar bodies whether local, national or
international. A government-related entity is an entity that is
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by a
government.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 16, 36(a) and 36(e) contain information about the assumptions

and their risk factors relating to impairment of goodwill,

impairment

of trade and other receivables and fair value of financial instruments.
Other key source of estimation uncertainty is as follows:

(a)

Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced
to the recoverable amount.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and goodwill,
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value less costs of disposal because quoted
market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgment relating to items such as level of
electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as electricity generation, selling price and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or, except for goodwill, reversal
of impairment in future periods.

3. BRI

MzE16 -~ 36(a
R E At FE U 3R

V36(e) BN EERE -B5
REREREMIARNRBENR

RMEABREENER - HME5t ARERRD
FERROT :

(a)

2021 EERE

IEREEERE

HIERERIEREEENIRE(ER S
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BIR-MERBR TR REEZR
ErYEEEE-
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B KRR E (BIEERAREE) ULEHE
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the generation and
supply of electricity and steam, construction and operation of
power stations and other associated facilities in the PRC and
Korea. Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed in note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

goods and service and by the timing of revenue recognition is
as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers ElFEEAF5IR &S % BIE 1558

within the scope of IFRS 15 BEANKREELERN
Wz
Disaggregated by types of goods RERMRBERAS
and services
- Sales of electricity —HEEN
- Tariff income ”FW)\
- Sales of steam —HEEAR
- Capacity charges —-REE
- Connection charges and others —EREREAM
- Management service income —BERBWA
- Sales of REC —HEBEERES
Disaggregated by the timing of WA SRR A D
revenue recognition
- Point in time —HRE R
- Over time —RE R

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

4. WARDHER

(a) WA
FEEBNFEEBATFERERHZ
’fﬁ&ﬁi\ﬁ’%‘ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ By i B
Btk HEMEBRERE ERAAEREE
EBNE—TF BT FE4(b)IRE
WAL
REFEFPEANK@RZE R KRRBEU
R AEREE2IFAT ¢
Power Power
plants in plants Management 2021
the PRC in Korea companies Totfl
HENER BENERK EEAT  2021F 45t
Us$ ’002 uss ’002 uss ’002 us$ ’002
ET ETT FET FET
413,990 695,758 - 1,109,748
280,255 - - 280,255
106,829 - - 106,829
11,047 123,557 - 134,604
- 3,785 - 3,785
- - 42,411 42,411
- 17,026 - 17,026
812,121 840,126 42,411 1,694,658
801,074 712,784 - 1,513,858
11,047 127,342 42,411 180,800
812,121 840,126 42,411 1,694,658
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers Bl FREA 7SR & %85 1558

within the scope of IFRS 15 HENKEZFERAB
W=
Disaggregated by types of goods BERMRFENA DY
and services
- Sales of electricity —HEE
- Tariff income —BEKA
- Sales of steam — A
- Capacity charges —REE
- Connection charges and others —EBREKREM
- Management service income —BERBEKA
Disaggregated by the timing of B A FESR R R Al

revenue recognition
- Point in time —RE— R B
- Over time —RE—BFRE&

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of electricity or steam

Revenue from the sales of electricity or steam are recognized
based upon output delivered. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in IFRS 15, revenue from the sales of electricity or
steam is generally recognized upon transmission of electricity
or steam to the customers, which is the point of time when the
customer has the ability to direct the use of the output and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the output.
A receivable is recognized by the Group when the output is
delivered to the customers as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
The Group allows a credit period from 30 to 90 days to its
customers.

WA R ERE R (B)

— -
(a) WA #)
WAL (4E)
Power Power
plants in plants  Management 2020
the PRC in Korea companies Total
FEMBER BENE®R EENE)  2020F 485t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$°000 Us$'000
FET FE FET FE7
239,448 470,436 - 709,884
188,508 - - 188,508
88,398 - - 88,398
10,331 123,154 - 133,485
- 2,737 - 2,737
- - 26,880 26,880
526,685 596,327 26,880 1,149,892
516,354 473,173 - 989,527
10,331 123,154 26,880 160,365
526,685 596,327 26,880 1,149,892
ERERENEE
tHEBE TS
HEBNHEAAZBATEBERGEH
Eep=RiE TE?F@I‘ﬁﬂﬂ‘ZiﬁiﬁﬂlJ%w
SR EEE AL HEBHHERZ

2021 EERE

LN %BAF‘]%}E%%J N E AR
B MEREENTEHHEZBR
REBEmEE R FHRAR T MmN
FE rERRBHEXNERRF
SRR RERERBEE AR
ARRBRE A=A REZ RN
BREEREZEBR - AEEREERE
HENFI0EIORNEEH -
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4.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Tariff income from government authorities for sales of
electricity

Tariff income is recognized at the same time as the relevant
revenue from the sales of electricity is recognized, that is, upon
the transmission of electricity to the customers.

Certain amounts of tariff income are subject to the approval
for the registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy
List (the “List”), pursuant to Cai Jian [2020] No.5 Notice on
the Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
of Renewable Energy (AIB4AEEREBHNEHNESER
#E5% )) jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the National
Department and Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration in January 2020 (the “2020 Notice”). Pursuant
to the 2020 Notice, the List is registered in the National
Renewable Energy Information Centre and approved by the
relevant government authorities.

A receivable is recognized at the same time except for those
which are pending the approval for the registration in the List
from the relevant government authorities, which a contract
asset is recognized. Due to the nature of receivables, there is
no credit period and the directors of the Company expect that
the receivables will be recovered within the Group’s normal
operating cycle from the time they are recognized.

Sales of REC

During the year, the Group’s biomass power plant in Korea
commenced its commercial operation with REC generated
upon output of electricity delivered.

Revenue from sales of REC is recognized when customer
takes possession of the REC. A receivable is recognized by
the Group at the same time when revenue recognized, at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as
only the passage of time is required before payment is due.
The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its customers.

Annual Report 2021
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ne B SRR MY 5

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

(continued)

(a)

Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Capacity charges

Capacity charges are payments from independent power
purchasers for maintaining availability of some of the Group’s
power generators for dispatch of electricity, regardless of
actual dispatch. Revenue is recognized over time when the
relevant dispatch requirements are met. The credit period is
normally 30 days to the independent power purchasers.

Connection charges

Connection charges are charges to new customers for
connecting into an electricity supply network. The charges
are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated service life of the customers which is estimated to
be five years. The charges received in advance from customers
are classified as contract liabilities.

Management service income

Management service income is recognized overtime when the
service is provided. The credit term is normally 30 days.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Contracts for capacity charges and management service
typically have 3 to 20 years non-cancellable terms in which
the Group bills fixed rates by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligations. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
by recognizing revenue in the amount to which the Group has
right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied contracts are not
disclosed.

Contracts for sales of electricity and steam typically have
20 years non-cancellable terms. As the revenue from sales
of electricity and steam as well as the related tariff income
depends on future actual consumption, the revenue arising
from these future sales have not been included in the
transaction price for revenue recognition purposes.

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on geographical location are set out below.

(a)

2021 EERE

WA R ERE R (B)

A #)
BEFARBOEE @)

B

B}

REEBDNBIBNERITUKTE
EEMOBBERDTHBENBE (THE
RIBEKT) 2B - WARFSHERRM
BEREFREERRED - RFEBILE
NEXRNEEH—RBI0K-

ERE

ERBERONERRRER MUER
EHBEE-BARTRETNEFH
HERBER (Bt R EF NREGE
ERED -BAEBEF BN ERT DB
mERAE-

EERBEA

B AR U B IR 3t AR 5 B 4% B ) B
B EEH—MRA30K -

NEERRSRARGFROEE
R Z B

AEEAREERFERBEEAA3IE20
FENFEHMEER > *EBBERHE
THEBEOEENEEREELXH
HERB - AEBEERBERER S
BRAEEARMAHERNSEERY
A REBERYBRESERH 165988
T NEEZERBITERNRZER
NFIREE -
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Segment revenue and segment results

The executive directors of the Company reviews the operating
results and financial information of the Group based on
individual power plant, management companies and on a
location basis. Each power plant and management company
constitutes an operating segment. For certain operating
segments that exhibit similar long-term financial performance
as they have similar economic characteristics, produce
electricity and/or steam by using similar production processes
and all of the electricity and/or steam are distributed and sold
to similar classes of customers, provide similar consulting
services to customers, their segment information is aggregated
into a single reportable operating segment.

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

1 Power plants in the PRC - Generation and supply of
electricity;

(2) Power plants in Korea - Generation and supply of
electricity; and

(3) Management companies - Provision of management
services to power plants operated by CGN and its
subsidiaries.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

7 EBUL A — 5D

Segment revenue - external

A-LIZ ¥”r\

Segment results

RO BECE AU A

Unallocated other income

Unallocated operating ROBKEEE
expenses

Unallocated finance costs RO 7 E A

Share of results of BEHE AR EER
associates

Profit before taxation BRI AT R A

Annual Report 2021

4. WAKRZEER (B

(b)

Power
plants in
the PRC

rh B B9 R
Us$’000
FET

812,121

BENER EEAQT

DEBURA R 73 BB 4R

KABMITESLE R B %ﬂi’&ﬂ
RUBEEEBRAERNEEEXE
MHEER ZEBERRET @T’fﬁﬁi—fl
EENH -MERABBLUSERME E

BEUEERFREEE DR HEA
Fﬁﬁaﬁﬁ&/ﬁ“ BB RIEE T
HENERURBF P REBMUER
REMEREURHVERENET
EESWM O HENMENNEER —EE
—Z2REENIo

FEBMBEAUTZET2HRDE :

xE

(1) PRI E BAMAE;

xE

(2) &2 B Y B R BIIHE;

W¢EH&EW§
B T R R fit B 32 R
() DEEE

L/('Fj%?ﬁ_fziﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁﬂ
EMRAREREDT

BERGER
3 B9

HE2021F128318 L EE

Power
plants in
Korea

Management
companies Total
# st
Us$’000
F=ET

1,694,658

Us$°000
FET

840,126

Us$’000
FET

42,411

266,761

30,476 2,020 299,257

48

(556)
(25,700)

(37,551)

235,498
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHEER #&)

(continued)
=E /55
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEBRMARDERELE (B)
(continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () ZSDEHEE-BERER
(continued) (#)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F128318LLEE
Power Power
plants in plants in Management
the PRC Korea  companies Total
RENER FRENE R BIERT st
Us$’000 USs$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue - external 73 ZBULA —Fh 3D 526,685 596,327 26,880 1,149,892
Segment results DEELE 161,285 45,467 1,280 208,032
Unallocated other income RO B E MU A 48
Unallocated operating RO EEE
expenses (3,976)
Unallocated finance costs K3 FCRf #5 & A (28,278)
Share of results of associates # {5 B & A S 248 29,342
Profit before taxation FR#2 AT R A 205,168
The accounting policies of the reportable segments AE2HRDE ST B R AN
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set CFREAEBMN G T ERMER
out in note 2. Segment results represents the profit DEEBIES DB HIN E
earned by each segment without allocation of certain FoFrEEETEMBA NS
other income, operating expenses, finance costs and HEX MEBEERKREEREAR
share of results of associates. This is the measure BIEENDE LT AE RS
reported to the executive directors of the Company for Fe ke RIFFEME A QBT
the purposes of resource allocation and performance EERSWHEH e
assessment.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHEER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEBRMARDERELE (B)
(continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () ZSDEHEE-BERER
(continued) (#)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and UTARTE2RDIBE DA
liabilities by reportable segments: EEEEREGES T
2021 2020
20214 20205
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Segment assets DEEE
Power plants in the PRC R [ B9 8 7,006,114 5,209,023
Power plants in Korea 52 B0 Y B R 1,477,402 1,532,511
Management companies BEIEAT 4,754 4,156
Total segment assets NIEEEBE 8,488,270 6,745,690
Interests in associates RS AT DR 149,238 206,083
Unallocated Bl
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 3,381 1,441
- Others —HAth 32,769 23,318
Consolidated assets REBE 8,673,658 6,976,532

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results
(continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

WA R ERE R (B)

Segment liabilities nEaR’E
Power plants in the PRC A B B9 E
Power plants in Korea B8 [ 19 2 R
Management companies BIEANT
Total segment liabilities DEE([ELEEE
Unallocated KA
- Bank borrowings —iR1TEE
- Loans from fellow subsidiaries —RERZRMNBABNER
- Lease liabilities —HEAE
- Others —HAth
Consolidated liabilities Ke8a’

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, certain
right-of-use assets and corporate assets of
investment holding companies; and

. all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than certain bank borrowings,
lease liabilities and loans from fellow
subsidiaries of the Company and unallocated
corporate liabilities.

(b) DEBRMARDERELE (B)
() ZSDEHEE-BEERAER

#)

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
5,526,998 3,944,793
894,997 926,266

958 645
6,422,953 4,871,704
100,000 100,000
700,000 700,000
3,381 1,552
12,128 5,895
7,238,462 5,679,151

2021 EERE

MEENBERRERDES D E
BERME :

H

PREBEERNREZE
DB (R E QBRI
mA ATHERREERK
REZRABDNATEA
ERRIN 5 &

FREBRHIEEEE
NEEFRETEE
HESERKREELRF
BRIBABNERNU
R R DB RA B A ER
5h) o

BT AETRIER A IR AR
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WARSHEER #&)

(continued)
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEBRMARDERELE (B)
(continued)
(ii) Other segment information iy HthoEER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F128318LLEE
Power Power
plants in plants in Management
the PRC Korea companies Unallocated Total

TENER BREANEE EEAF KNE 5t
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Amounts included in the measure of stEDHIBRADBEE K
segment profit or loss or segment BERFANSE
assets and liabilities:

Depreciation of property, ME -BERREITE

plant and equipment 194,927 69,239 34 829 265,029
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,876 668 167 1,450 7,161
Net gain on disposal of HENE BER

property, plant and equipment REW R FE 3,970 12 - - 3,982
Interest income FEWA 1,943 578 10 48 2,579
Finance costs BRER 140,225 22,291 - 25,700 188,216
Impairment losses recognized in  FLEEMR ZRIESSE

respect of goodwill 4,335 - - - 4,335
Amounts regularly provided to THRTEEEARERM

the chief operating decision maker BREFAFEHHER
but not included in the measure ~ HABEEREEH
of segment profit or loss or E3C

segment assets and liabilities:

Interests in associates REEATMNER 149,238 - = = 149,238
Share of results of associates BEMEARER (37,551) - - - (37,551)
Income tax T8 27,344 6,430 - - 33,774

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 & E2021F12831HIEFEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WA RSIEFR (43)
(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEUA R D EREELE (5B)
(continued)
(ii) Other segment information (continued) iy HthoaER )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F128318LLEE
Power Power
plants in plants in  Management
the PRC Korea  companies Unallocated Total
TENER BENER EEQAA RO 4@t

Usgooo  US$'000  US$000  US$'000  US$000
FET FET FET FET FET

Amounts included in the measure of St 2QBEBXDDEER
segment profit or loss or segment BB AR L
assets and liabilities:

Depreciation of property, ME -BERREITE

plant and equipment 136,316 55,886 32 797 193,031
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 11,315 565 204 1,449 13,533
Net loss on disposal of property, ~ HEWE -HRERK

plant and equipment REGEFH 409 - - - 409
Interest income FIEWA 1,949 845 7 46 2,847
Finance costs HHER 98,050 18,678 - 28,277 145,005
Impairment losses recognized i~ FE BRI ZHEEE

respect of goodwill 8,995 - - - 8,995
Impairment losses recognized in  F¥IE \-BERRERIZ

respect of property, plant and REEBE

equipment 4,384 - - - 4,384
Amounts regularly provided to THRTEEEARERM

the chief operating decision maker BREAFEHHER
but not included in the measure ~ HAHEEREENEE:
of segment profit or loss or

segment assets and liabilities:

Interests in associates REEATMNER 206,083 - - - 206,083
Share of results of associates BEBMEATEE 29,342 - - - 29,342
Income tax T8 25,087 12,446 - - 37,533
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b)
(continued)
(iii) Information about major customers (i)

Revenue from customers from segment of power plants
in Korea of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group is as follows:

Korea Electric Power

Corporation (“KEPCO”)

Korea Power Exchange

(iv)

location

The Group operates in three principal geographical
areas — the PRC, Korea and Hong Kong. The Group’s
information about its non-current assets (Note) by
location of assets and its associates by location of the

Non-current assets by geographical (iv)

WA R ERE R (B)

DEBR AR 53 EREEAE ()

BEREEFZRNEHN

REMEEALEBRBHER
AR10% M B R A 52 B B R

PBEFWANT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET

Korea Electric Power

Corporation (TKEPCO J) 266,974 188,457
Korea Power Exchange 573,152 407,870

IR BRI 5 BIEREN
BE

FERE=ZEFEHEUEL
E-E -BEREB AEM
RIERBEE (W5 REERR
M BRI E R R E D

relevant associates’ business operations are detailed HaE -
below:
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$’000
F£75 FET
PRC FRE 5,820,789 4,413,557
Korea F2[E 1,153,776 1,294,521
Hong Kong 55 7,715 6,260
6,982,280 5,714,338
Note:  Non-current assets excluded derivative financial Kzt éFﬁﬁJzﬁiT\@%ﬂﬁiﬁ
instruments and deferred tax assets. MTAEREERBEE-

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 5.

Operation support expenses

Fuel, chemicals, electricity and water
Other maintenance cost

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15)
Transportation and entertainment expenses
Outsourcing expenses

Tools and consumables

Consultancy fees

Insurance expenses

Other taxes, surcharges and duties
Miscellaneous operating expenses
Expense relating to short-term leases
Office expenses

OTHER INCOME

Income on sales of generating rights (Note)
Compensation from insurance companies
Equipment rental income

Government grants (note 33)

Income on sales of scrap materials
Technical service income

Interest income

Income on sale of carbon emission quota
Others

KEXIERX

PR ERYERKE
HAh#EE R 4
CREEERE (Wit15)
ERRENER
SNELE A
THRKHFEmR
B E A

e R
HAiRE MM E IR E
MIREERX
HIZHIEE AR
WMAERX

6.

HEEBREYA (W)
R ABEEE
REBHEERA
BB (M17233)
8 BE LR
FAMTARFE WA
EUESTVON

S B R TR A
HAth

Note: One subsidiary of the Group sold its power generating rights for 2021 and
2020 to third parties during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as

the power plant ended its operation in 2019.

2021 EERE

&t

HthWESER%
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
14,712 2,638
11,685 9,153
10,512 3,822
7,161 13,533
7,107 2,721
6,992 4,039
5,303 4,309
5,142 6,180
4,480 3,516
3,678 3,324
3,139 4,428
2,216 1,635
1,742 1,403
83,869 60,701

HthkA

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
9,277 12,433
985 118
479 468
6,841 4,953
1,098 1,097
7,385 1,713
2,579 2,847
2,306 -
10,357 2,689
41,307 26,318

AEBM—KHBASREE2021F %2020
F12A31HIEFEERE2021F K2020FH
BERLEETFTE=FH ARAEBHKN20195F

ribgEo

| HEEENERERERAE
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
property, plant and equipment (note 74)

Impairment losses recognized in respect of
goodwill (note 16)

Net foreign exchange gain

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:

Bank borrowings

Loans from fellow subsidiaries

Loan from the ultimate holding company
Lease liabilities

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

T E BB RRERDZ

BIERE (Bat14)
FhEERERZRERSIE
(Htzt16)
SNEE YR 25 7P BB
tljﬁ%% BB K sk 1
mw/ (B518) P58

MTF&EEZHE

R1TEE

KERRMBABTMNER

JEE BRI ABIMNER
286
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Hithim R g518

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
= (4,384)
(4,335) (8,995)
397 2,699
3,982 (409)
44 (11,089)
BiEEHR
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
131,818 99,753
42,508 41,575
11,988 2,259
1,902 1,418
188,216 145,005
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9. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
represents:

Current tax: BPHAFR 1A :
Provision for the year FREBE
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEEEBELE/
(HBRE#EH)

fREFRIN-—FFE

Dividend withholding tax — current year

IEIEFRIA (HaF19)
TEE

Deferred tax (note 19):
Current year

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda.

Current tax provision represents provision for the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT”) and Korean Corporate
Income Tax (“KCIT”).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards, except for those subsidiaries
described below.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are under the
Western China Development Plan and a preferential tax rate of
15% is granted for an extended period from 2020 to 2030. As
a result, the tax rate of 15% is used to calculate the amount of
current taxation.

Pursuant to KCIT law, the statutory income tax of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries was calculated at a rate of 24.2% of the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

n\l-F

(a)

mARAZFRSH

RAEERANZIRE

2021 2020
20214 20204
USs$°000 US$'000
FET FET
34,031 31,597
207 (92)
34,238 31,505
4,009 4,836
(4,473) 1,192
33,774 37,533

2021 EERE

FRBFEREHMBERERE

BIHRTR BB EIE PRS2SR (TR E
EERESR) KBEEEXEFMER (T8E
EFREBR) #HE-

RigPEAREMBECEFRESRZE (TR
E¥FRBRE) REEMBRIZBHK
> 22008 F1A1HE FEIWE R E
MR Z 225% > M T AT AY BT & A 3]
BRIN o

FEBEFESENE THEB AR
BAEMAMESE IZR15%2EE
MEH2020FERE20304F o H 1L > 5F
HENHARIBRRA15% 2R E -

RIEBECERERE HE202158K
2020F12B31HIEE  AEE &
Bl M /B A B BV B R 8 1R Th 3% 1k 5 A8
RIREFIB24.2%5 E o

| HEEENERERERAE
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9.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
represents: (continued)

Pursuant to Hong Kong tax law, the statutory income tax was
calculated at a rate of 16.5% for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020. Pursuant to the tax laws in Republic of Malta
and in Mauritius, the statutory income tax was calculated at
a rate of 35% and 15%, respectively, for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020. However, subsidiaries of the Group
operating in these jurisdictions have not generated taxable
income during both years and therefore, no tax provision has
been made by the Group in relation to these subsidiaries.

The Group’s subsidiaries and associates that are tax residents
in the PRC are subject to the PRC dividend withholding tax
ranging from 5% to 10% for those non-PRC tax resident
immediate holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions, when and if undistributed earnings are
declared and to be paid as dividends out of profits that arose
on or after 1 January 2008.

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax residents in Korea are
subject to a 15% Korean dividend withholding tax for the
immediate holding company incorporated in the Republic of
Malta when and if undistributed earnings are declared and to
be paid to non-PRC or non-Korea residents as dividends out of
profits.

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the profit for the current year of the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries and certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Annual Report 2021

9.

|\7F

(a)

mRAZFREH (18

EEEERAZIRIE
(#B)

RIFBFER L B E2021F K20204F
12B31HIEFEZEAEMBRLE
16.5%:T H - RIBEFEMBENEKER
RE L B E2021F K2020F 128
SIHIEEEZ AEMERD %&%%
16% 2 MEFHE R NERMEZ
E%%@@%ZW%@E%%@EW
W fE A FEER AR UR A > B A [0 4 R
ZEMBRABMELRIERE

i EMBER2008FE1B1EBRZBESE
HaMEFNRDIRKBFELRKEIK
T HREETEREMBE A MR
lm&£ﬁ¢lﬁ$E§E&ﬂW“
M EATERBERNPEN B
T&W#JV?E%%5%tm%Tﬁ¢
ER% S B o

BB fim R D IkE T KB EF P
AFFPEIFEEAERRE R
ERBERNAEENRE QAT ERN
BEMAEMEEMBRINEZEZERR
Bl 5% R B E AR B FEINAR

FR B 7 & [ BT £ 6 B 2 R B9 B B
B MILEREREARERRRAME
FERE B ERNNEEELEDN
FEERENBRADRETHEWE
AEIZHNELNETREERGESH
BERRFHIELER AR
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

|v'F

mRAZFAEIR (&)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) FRiEMRMAZE G5HEF#
and accounting profit at applicate tax FRAREFEZEHRN
rates: T

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 USs$’000
TFE7T FET
Profit before taxation FR R A i A 235,498 205,168
Notional tax on profit before taxation BEMEZRBRAERE
calculated at the rates applicable to HEBRRANEFIN S E
profits in the countries concerned RIE 60,712 50,409
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RO RN RE T E
for tax purpose 9,084 10,351
Tax effect of non-taxable income TEZRRMANRE T E (6,166) (2,091)
Tax effect of share of results of BEHMEADEENRE
associates o 9,435 (7,330)
Tax effect of preferential tax rates ETHERBAR
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries EREENENREXLE (51,272) (28,930)
Utilization of tax losses previously not fE B ARl R FEER R IE R 18
recognized (759) (187)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized [ RHESRAIIRIBE B
METE 10,991 8,191
Withholding tax on distributable profits  H{BA B K& A7
of subsidiaries and associates Aok B FEINR 1,542 7,212
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEEFHEIE
(HBEER ) 207 (92)
Income tax expense for the year FRNRERES 33,774 37,533

Details of deferred tax movement are set out in note 19.

2021 FERE | HE

B

RIETR RS BNV SE B TIPS M EE19 0

AR AE

RERBRAR
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FAEF
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 USsS$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived at ERBMEBNR GEA) -
after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)¥ R KRR HEITE 265,029 193,031
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEEINE 7,161 13,533
Recognition/(reversal) of loss allowance of trade &R, () B 5 K E
and other receivables and contract assets EWHRIEBEREREERIE
(note 36(a)) 5 (Wat36(a) 20,292 (99)
Staff costs BT RA
- salaries and allowances — ¥ gL 83,011 74,794
- contribution to retirement benefits scheme, — BB EHE
including directors’ emoluments BIEESENE 13,669 11,041
Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 428 T4 > BlIEEHBIS 96,680 85,835
Auditors’ remuneration TZ S EM BN &
- audit services —EZ 621 520
- non-audit services —JEEZ 64 164
Total auditors’ remuneration 4BIZ BEM BN & 685 684

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021



11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ne B SRR MY 5

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments

2021

Name

Chairman and
Non-executive Director

Mr. CHEN Sui

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yilun, President

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
Non-executive Directors

Mr. XING Ping
(resigned on 24 March 2021)

Mr. XIA Linquan

(appointed on 24 March 2021 and
resigned on 24 December 2021)

Mr. WANG Hongxin

(appointed on 24 December 2021)

Independent
Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick

Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

iz

IRRIUITES

RITES
Ffekt B
REERLE
FHTES

BFLE
(202153824 A EHT)

EMREE
(P2021E38 24 AESR AR
2021 E 12824 HEHE)

IRMEE
(R2021F12B24HERF)

BUFHTES

RFERE

BRERE

IRELE

1. EFMERESFHM

EFME

20214

Performance Contributions

Salaries related to retirement

Directors’ and incentive Benefits in benefits
fee allowances payments kind schemes Total

REHERA RIKIEF
EZRE  HEREM HBER BNRERH B e At
US$’000 Us$’000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
32 - - - - 32
27 - - - - 27
27 - - - - 27
86 - - - - 86

2021 FERE |

HEEZERIERARAE
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11.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

2020

Name

Chairman and
Non-executive Director

Mr. CHEN Sui

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Yilun, President

Mr. ZHANG Zhiwu
Non-executive Directors

Mr. XING Ping
(resigned on 24 March 2021)

Independent
Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Chi Ching Frederick
Mr. YANG Xiaosheng

Mr. WANG Minhao

e

IRERFUTES

BEEE
HTES
FheRE £%
RSREE
FRTES

BFEE
(1220213824 H B T)

BUFHITES

RYERE
BRESE
ERESRE

| Annual Report 2021

1. EEMERESFHFM (&)

EEHE (&
20204
Performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
Directors’ and incentive  Benefits in benefits
fee  allowances payments kind schemes Total
R O BMER
BEE0E HekEl  HBER  BYWEN  EHE st
US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
52 - - - - 52
52 - - - - 52
52 - - - - 52
156 - - - - 156
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services as directors of the Company.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries, so the payments of their emoluments were borne by CGN
and its subsidiaries for both years.

Neither the President nor any of the directors of the Company waived
any emoluments during both years.

No emoluments were paid to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join for both years.

Individuals with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals did not include any directors of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The
emoluments of the five individuals for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follow:

s KR Rh
BARTEH 5T B HR

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes
Performance related incentive payments (Note)

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined by the board of

directors of the Company based on the Group’s performance.

11.

RIRERBBER (W)

2021 FERE |

EFNERESEHM &)

EFME &

ERAGTEEWNS A REAETRDREER
EEEHEBZRBMA -

FHIFRTEEME D MREFEELRALRTDIAE
M@ QR EFEERBM A o LM IFHA
TEENEDHMRFREEARTDEEHMRE
Mmszfy

ETEETRERPEZRENBAT  HHE
B 22 M8 6 B9 7 B Bl o s AR s EL B BB 2 B K
?%O

BEARAARINENEENZMEEERE
W ERAE AT B =

BERZMEFERRLARDESZAMEIES
MAERBBIFHE

REFMNES

HE2021FE K2020FE 12831 B IEEE > #H M
BEeAiAEALFOERARERES -HE
2021FE K2020FE 1283 1B EEERS RS
ANTHEFOT :

2021 2020
202145 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
F=ET FET
1,832 1,783
56 23

577 704
2,465 2,510

Mat . RREMHBERADHARDEFTGREAL
EEPRREE

HEEZERIERARAE
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11.

12.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 11.

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

Individuals with highest emoluments
(continued)

No benefits in kind and compensations of loss of office were paid to
the individuals and no emoluments were paid to the individuals as an
inducement to join for both years.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2,000,001%7% (&) &
2,500,00038 70 (FHER
257,001E 7L E321,000%70)
2,500,001 75%3,000,00058 7T
(HHER321,001ETE
386,000 7T)
5,000,0017875%5,500,000787C
(tHHER642,001ETE
707,000%7T)
6,000,001875%6,500,00087T
(HER771,001ETE
836,000 7T)
8,500,001875%9,000,00087
(HHE1,092,001 7 E
1,157,000 7T)

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") 2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000 (Equivalent to US$257,001
to US$321,000)

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(Equivalent to US$321,001 to US$386,000)

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
(Equivalent to US$642,001 to US$707,000)

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
(Equivalent to US$771,001 to US$836,000)

HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000
(Equivalent to US$1,092,001 to US$1,157,000)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company is based on the
following data.

Earnings: BH

Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share (profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company)

B&ER (RABEE
FEAS F P F)

Annual Report 2021

ARt EERERRBERET
B e

EFMERESHFM (&)

mE#NES (&)

1 0 R B £ E R E A ST B A o K R
BE TEAEAINTMESESMAETRTH
FH-

RENME N F AT EHE :

No. of employees

EEAZ
2021 2020
20215 20204
1 1
3 2

SiEF

FRABEBRRREEESRERREEEF TS
RIFLA T BURE E -

2021 2020
202145 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
F=ET FET
184,762 162,087
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

13.

Number of shares:

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of

[avy =

BRstESRER K

12. SREF (@)

calculating basic and diluted earnings per share #EZ AL BB E

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, and therefore, diluted earnings per
share are the same as basic earnings per share.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

Hong Kong

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Employees
contribute 5% of their relevant income to the MPF Scheme and
the Group contributes 10% of each employee’s monthly base
salary. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss were approximately
US$215,000 (2020: US$209,000).

The PRC

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations of the
PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the retirement fund administered by the PRC
government ranging from 10% to 22% of the total monthly
basic salaries of the current employees. In addition, the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required by law to contribute
2% to 15% of basic salaries of the employees for social
insurance in relating to staff welfare, housing, medical and
education benefits. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the costs charged under such arrangements for the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries amounted to approximately US$10,320,000
(2020: US$9,282,000).

2021 2020
20214 20204
000 000

Fhe FR
4,290,824 4,290,824

HE2021FE K2020FE 12831 HIEEE» I FE i
HEELER Rt SR#ERFESRER
B MEE -

13.

(a)

2021 EERE

BEEF

E Faft R
TR

rEBEERAMECEREESR
RIFREIE ATt ENEH (554855)
RIUMRESTE - EEREMBE KA
Bs%AEseES T EEHER mMAER
ReLEESAERFEMNI0%IEHHE
RoBBEHEEENBIINAERE
ERBISTEAZENNESRFEE R
HE2021F12831HEEE  BRES

STEELBRETRINBNBRAEH

sHEMERA A215,000E 75 (20204

209,000%7T) ©

A

RIBFPEBARE LR ZEBNF

IMTJ%’&?EWEPIBZH 8RB K

BEE&EHHITO HABEAREREREER

)ﬂéﬁw%’EZm%izz% o FEET
B ER - BERAERMNEEMNT

BRE REENFEKEASBKE
EHEEN EEEARFHF S Z2%E15%2
W R EE2021F12831HIEFE >
RIEARERE P E A SR ERZH
M E AL %10,320,0005 7T (2020
1 9,282,000FE7T) °

| FEEZMERERERAR
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(a)

(b)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Defined contribution plan (continued)

Korea

The Group’s Korean subsidiaries are required by law to
contribute 0.06% to 4.5% of the average salaries of the
employees for national pension, national health insurance,
unemployment insurance, industrial accident compensation
insurance and wage claim guarantee fund. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the cost charged under such
arrangements for the Group’s Korean subsidiaries amounted to
approximately US$1,309,000 (2020: US$1,139,000).

In the PRC and Korea, the Group cannot reduce the existing
level of contributions by the forfeited contributions made by the
employers on behalf of the employees who leave the defined
contribution schemes before the vesting period. As such, no
forfeited contribution was used to reduce both years’ level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 to reduce future years’
contributions in the PRC and Korea. In Hong Kong, the Group
has utilized nil forfeited contributions to reduce the current
year’s level of contributions for the year ended 31 December
2021 (Nil for the year ended 31 December 2020). As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, no material forfeited contribution
was available to reduce the contribution payable in future years
in Hong Kong.

Defined benefit retirement scheme

Korea

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Korea,
all employees with more than one year of service are entitled
to lump-sum severance payments equal to one month’s pay of
service for each year based on their rate of latest salary and
the length of service upon termination of their employment or
retirement.

The scheme is funded by contributions from the Group’s
Korean subsidiaries in accordance with an independent
actuary’s recommendation based on annual actuarial
valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
scheme was at 31 December 2021 and were prepared by the
qualified staff of Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd, who are members of
the Society of Actuaries of the United States of America and
Institute of Actuaries of Korea, using the projected unit credit
method.

Annual Report 2021

13. EE4EF (@)

(a)

(b)

EFEMRREE (@)
L

AEBZEERBASIRBEERTE
BAEHEEFHEH£0.06%E4.5% 1
FOEAERE®RE BERBERE
RERE - ITHERIIBERBETIER
ﬁﬁﬁgﬁoﬁéﬁzizomfﬂzﬁma
LEE BEAEERENRBATRZE
BT HEINBRBI AL AN 49 %1,309,000% 7T
(20204 : 1,139,000% %) ©

EHERER AEBTEURBERSE
ﬁéﬁ%’%ﬂﬁﬁm&ﬂj%iﬁiﬁ%%‘m@@%
EH BB IR R EIR B HEUK T o

1tt:jrma*xuizﬁ\mmi‘m"\ﬂﬁflfﬁrﬁ‘
B ERK T > Bt20214F %2020 12
A1 ESRWHEHINAT AR ELD &
REEFEARBENER - ESFE A
EEMAEE2021F12831HIEFEET
EENVA BB UINHERR (B E2020F128 31
HIEFE | &) > UREBREEM/RIK
T o 20214 &20205FE 128318 » &=

ERERWERTBR AL RREE
BB R

R E R m RIS E
LEE]

BB EAERMMR A RRG > PRE RF
BE-—FNEEHBRNEILERN
BUE REBEHARBHERERFFEE
SEESHEFN—EARBHN—X
MEME-

ZotBNEERBEAERZHNEA
BREBIGEMREEEREMGE
RHEHNEZMEENER - ZE RO
—RBIUBEGEERE2021F12831
H > E#Shinhan Bank Co., Ltd&B1KE

T (AEMNBREREBEM B KRR
EEMBEE8) EAEAEUGEEE
T
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(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme (b)
(continued)

Korea (continued)

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as
investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk. Information
about the plan is disclosed below:

(1)

(ii)

The amount recognized in the consolidated statement

13. EE4EF (@)

REXmBAEE (&

wRE (@)
ZitBEAEEEREEAR ML E
LB ~ U 2 L DR RO 2 LB © 75 B A B
BNERREMT

() REEMBRAERPEINE

of financial position is as follows: FEOTF -
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Present value of wholly or partly Z2ZEyBHERSEZIRE
funded obligations 14,589 17,327
Fair value of plan assets FEEENANEE (12,906) (14,535)
Net defined benefit retirement REZmBAKRTEEMEFEE
scheme obligations 1,683 2,792
A portion of the above asset is expected to be TEEN—BoEARE—

recovered after more than one year. However, it is
not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts recoverable in the next twelve months, as
future contributions will also relate to future services
rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions
and market conditions. The Group expects to pay
US$845,000 (2020: US$2,757,000) in contributions
to defined benefit retirement schemes during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Plan assets consist of the following:

Cash Re

FELBWE AT HZEEE
BRER+ZEBERATKREH
EEOMLAAIT > JTHEEKRK
B 3R 78 R B R R 4R 89 AR
BURKRFEBEERRLZMTIE
BENECER AEBTEH
REZE2021FE12831 8 1EE
ERAREZTHEKTE A
#F845,0005= 75 (20204
2,757,000 7T) ©

(ii) EEEGEUTEE:

2021 2020
202145 20204
US$’000 US$'000
FET FET
(12,906) (14,535)

There were no asset-liability matching strategies used
by the scheme of the Group.

2021 EERE

FERNFI U ERBEESR
fRUCEC SR B o
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)
Korea (continued)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations:
At beginning of the year REY
Reclassification BN
Remeasurements: EMFE
- Actuarial (gains)/losses from  —#SESEABHTE R
changes in experience BE (Ws) B8
- Actuarial (gains)/losses from  —BH#RBEFE K2
changes in financial B8 (k&) K8
assumptions
Benefits paid by the scheme EIZ Az EF
Current service cost IR R AR 75 A A
Interest cost ) B R
Exchange differences fER =R
At end of the year REXR

Annual Report 2021

13.

BERF &)
(b)

Y

RERZ R

Rst8l (&

EE &)

(iii) RESHETNREZS
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 Us$’000
TE7T FET
17,327 -
= 13,758
(450) 609
(599) 992
16,278 15,359
(2,250) (734)
1,683 1,410
309 226
(1,431) 1,066
14,589 17,327
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

)
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for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

13. EE4EF (@)

. . . e EW ES =
(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme (b) HREZmBIRE &)
(continued)
Korea (continued) BE #)
(iv) Movements in plan assets: (iv) STEIEENEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
uUs$’000 US$’000
SFEm FET
At beginning of the year REY (14,535) -
Reclassification EERiaR - (12,660)
Group’s contributions paid to AEBR MBS ZABH
the plan (1,756) (1,575)
Benefits paid by the plan A 2 EF 2,235 720
Return on plan assets greater SRITIREM T8I & E LR
than discount rate 258 152
Administrative expenses paid FEEESANITERES
from plan assets 35 33
Interest income ] E WA (368) (328)
Exchange differences EERELR 1,225 (877)
At end of the year REXR (12,906) (14,535)
(v) Amounts recognized in the consolidated profit or loss (v) E? EEEAEMEERKREF
and other comprehensive income are as follows: RHUERBEUWT -
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$’000
FET FET
Current service cost IR AR S Al A 1,683 1,409
Net interest on defined benefit  REZ & = ERIF) B 548
obligations (59) (101)
Administrative expenses paid A EELAMNTEREX
from plan assets 35 33
Total amounts recognized in PRI FEER
profit or loss 1,659 1,341
Actuarial (gains)/losses BE (k&) K8 (1,049) 1,602
Return on plan assets less than BT BRI 51 81 & E DR
discount rate 258 151
Total amounts recognized in REMEEW aERIARRE
other comprehensive income, BRI A
before tax (791) 1,753
Tax expenses/(credit) RIERsE (KR) 192 (425)
Total amounts recognized in PR EAM 2 m W R
other comprehensive income (599) 1,328
2021 FERE | WHEEZMERERERAF

201



202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ne M R M 5t

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement scheme
(continued)

Korea (continued)

(vi) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Discount rate FIR=E
Future salary increases RERFELEH

The below analysis shows how the net defined benefit
retirement scheme obligations as at 31 December
2021 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of
1% change in the significant actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate FIR=K
Future salary increases KK E LT

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum
of the returns on individual asset categories. The return
is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the
year, for returns net of administrative costs, over the
entire life of the related obligations.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

13. EE4EF (@)

(b) RERmBAEE &

EE &)
(vi) 20214 2020128318 1#
ANEEFEERIOT :
2021 2020
20215 20204
3.24%-3.25% 2.72%2.74%
5.00% 5.00%

LR ERR 2021412831
HHNRESHmBATE ST
EERBEABERRMNI%EL
Mg,/ Ceb) :

Increase Decrease

in 1% in 1%

1 01% B 1%

Us$’000 Us$’000

FET FET

(1,046) 1,215
1,182 (1,040)

E SR E D AT FT R R YR 3R
B RERRNVEMEILEARE
oAb EEBEBEERR
2 ERIERA R g o

SEEENTAMRALEEXZE
ERBEKREAS  MmIFEHR
EEHHNERZM - BHRD
REBEFVNHSHAMEBEE
HRAHRTHRERRROLER
TRt E -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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14. Y% BB R

Electric
Freehold and steam Office and
land in generating electronic Motor Construction
Korea Buildings facilities equipment vehicles in progress Total
AR ERER BNRES WAZRK
KAERLTH BF EERIE BrmfE RE ERIR it
US$°000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
cosT BA
At 1 January 2020 1202051518 72,684 665,420 2,780,046 14,727 5,234 1,015,736 4,553,847
Exchange differences ERESR 4,910 57,339 306,253 3,241 740 88,531 461,014
Additions RE - 18,354 49,053 2,506 2,531 1,128,688 1,201,132
Disposals RE - (179) (67,964) (1,472) (592) (2,557) (72,764)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE—RKBAR (Hz237) - (8,024) (32,454) (197) (178) (212) (41,065)
Transfer 23 - 148,351 632,061 266 - (780,678) -
At 31 December 2020 1R2020E12B31H %

and 1 January 2021 2021£151H 77,594 881,261 3,666,995 19,071 7,735 1,449,508 6,102,164
Exchange differences ERER (6,812) (4,922) (19,784) 119 159 8,862 (22,378)
Additions HE 9 36,232 47,274 2,753 1,125 1,704,256 1,791,649
Disposals RE (6,173) (172,350) (241,490) (6,748) (560) - (427,321)
Transfer E 3,262 351,585 1,793,276 1,259 76 (2,149,458) -
At 31 December 2021 2021128318 67,880 1,091,806 5,246,271 16,454 8,535 1,013,168 7,444,114
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND B3t E R

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 20201 518 - 241,396 811,293 7,189 2,289 - 1,062,167
Exchange differences ERES - 26,117 122,364 2,563 481 - 151,525
Charge for the year ERRAT - 38,440 151,330 2,278 983 - 193,031
Impairment losses recognized RIBRAHRNHERSE

in profit or loss - 1,814 2,570 - - - 4,384
Disposals RE - (45) (28,811) (1,352) (553) - (30,761)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE—RKBATE (Ha£37) - (5,587) (19,770) (40) (97) - (25,494)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020E12831H %

1 January 2021 2021%151H - 302,135 1,038,976 10,638 3,103 - 1,354,852
Exchange differences ERER - (3,471) (6,080) 94 152 - (9,305)
Charge for the year ERRZ - 41,471 219,394 2,852 1,312 - 265,029
Disposals BE - (137,951) (216,670) (6,318) (550) - (361,489)
At 31 December 2021 1#2021F12A31H - 202,184 1,035,620 7,266 4,017 - 1,249,087
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December 2021 #2021512831H 67,880 889,622 4,210,651 9,188 4,518 1,013,168 6,195,027
At 31 December 2020 #2020£128318 77,594 579,126 2,628,019 8,433 4,632 1,449,508 4,747,312

At 31 December 2021, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates of certain buildings with carrying values of US$15,891,000

(2020: US$8,229,000).

During the year ended 31

December 2021, borrowing costs of

US$37,412,000 (2020: US$32,772,000) were capitalized into the cost
of construction in progress. The capitalization rates used to determine
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are ranged

from 4.0% to 5.0% (2020: from 4.1% to 4.9%).

2021 FERE |

R2021F 128318 AEE W AREE TIRE
E715,891,0005 77 (20204 : 8,229,000 7T)
HIEFHER S

HZE2021FE12A31HEEE  BER X
37,412,000 70 (20204 : 32,772,000E7T) &
SMEAEEIRMA ARBEEEMRAER
E2ENEREENT4.0%E5.0% (20204 :
NF41%FE4.9%) ©
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14.

15.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain amounts of the property,
plant and equipment have been pledged as securities for the
borrowings. Details are set out in note 31.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 1 January 2021 2021F181H

Carrying amount BREE

As at 31 December 2021 2021F12831H

Carrying amount BREE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #F2021F12831HALEE
Depreciation charge TERX

Additions to right-of-use assets ERAEEEZIEM

As at 1 January 2020 #2020F181H

Carrying amount EREE

As at 31 December 2020 /42020 12831H

Carrying amount EREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #/Z2020F12H31HLEFE
Depreciation charge EMx

Additions to right-of-use assets EREEEZIEM

For both years, the Group leases land and buildings (including offices
and rooftops) for its operations. Other than the lease contracts of land
use rights which are entered into for 17 to 30 years, lease contracts
for other assets are entered into for fixed term of 3 months to 20
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its
operating facilities are primarily located with office buildings. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties have been presented separately.

Annual Report 2021

14. YE--BERKRSE (&)

75%021@&2020&12%31 B - &EFTWE -BE
RECEOHBEFEABEER SFBHMN
Ffﬁuf:ﬂ °

15. EFHAEEE

Leasehold Land and
lands buildings Total
HELTH T R IEF st
Us$’000 USs$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET
52,768 33,869 86,637
62,734 37,581 100,315
4,193 2,968 7,161
19,420
49,841 35,985 85,826
52,768 33,869 86,637
9,659 3,874 13,5633
10,445

FEERMEFESEHETHRIETF (B

MAERKA) BIELER®R- Bfiﬂ’m@m&m

HESRABI7TE0F HMEENHEE

H&IEH}WMJ AHMER E20FE R % o
ERARNDRENERZ-BEEE TEEE

BRENER R & T ER SRR TG

FO AR AEBERSRNEZ T #
EREEFaF TR -

o REBRBHRTERT HEERKT
BURPMABTFR -FEBBZEYERT (B
EEREE M) NEMES A - BRAEE—
RENRUBBEZEERD - ZFCERY
ENEELIHENEEBEY]
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GOODWILL

COST
At 1 January
Exchange differences

At 31 December

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January
Impairment losses recognized in
profit or loss
Exchange differences

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
or group of cash-generating units as follow:

Wind Energy Subsidiaries
(as defined below) (Note)
Solar Energy Subsidiaries
(as defined below) (Note)
Multiple units without significant goodwill

16. B2
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
D%
W1B1H 178,744 167,236
PE R ERE 4,164 11,508
®12831H 182,908 178,744
REtRERE
M1B1H (9,503) -
Ri8m NI R E RSB
(4,335) (8,995)
PE R ERE (272) (508)
(14,110) (9,503)
BREE
R12831H 168,798 169,241

BRI

BERENHEEEERMZR

BENEREUTREELEL ((REEEE
fii) RS EEEMAER

2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$'000
FET FET
BEHBAE

(BER T (H:2) 122,956 120,954

XIGREM B A E]
(FER T (H732) 44,351 46,810
WHEBEBAHENZEEU 1,491 1,477
168,798 169,241

2021 EERE
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16.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Note:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the subsidiaries
under CGN Wind Energy Limited acquired in 2015 (“Wind Energy Subsidiaries”) and
subsidiaries under CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd. acquired in 2015 (“Solar
Energy Subsidiaries”) which are considered as group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amounts of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
have been determined based on value in use calculations. Goodwill impairment testing
has been assessed for the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
individually. These calculations are based on the present value of the cash flow
projections covering the operation period of each individual cash-generating unit. The
cash flow projections derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management which cover operation periods ranging from 8 to 24 years. The cash
flow projections are discounted using discount rate ranged from 10.00% to 11.52%
(2020: from 8.73% to 10.17%). Other key assumption for the value in use calculations
relate to the budgeted electricity generation volume, which is determined based on the
installed capacity, past performance of the Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy
Subsidiaries and management’s expectations for the market development. The estimated
annual average growth rates in electricity generation volume ranging from -9.6% to 7.4%
(2020: -3.0% to 8.1%).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, due to a general increase in discount rates
adopted in the projected cash flows and a decrease in the operation periods as the time
elapsed, impairment losses of US$819,000 and US$3,516,000 were recorded in “Other
gains and losses” in relation to certain CGUs of the Group’s Wind Energy Subsidiaries
and Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively. Two cash generating units, Angiu
Taipingshan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (Z F &K LR E EBE AF])and CGN Solar Energy
(Dachaidan) Development Co., Ltd. (FREZ A (K& B) FEE AR AE) have
been reduced to their recoverable amounts of US$44,291,000 and US$187,288,000
respectively and adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculations of
recoverable amounts would result in further impairment losses.

A reduction in annual average growth rate in electricity generation volume of 5%
will result in additional impairment losses of US$15,542,000 and US$7,105,000 to
the CGUs of the Group's Wind Energy Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries
respectively. An increase in discount rate of 0.5% will result in additional impairment
losses of US$5,787,000 and US$4,317,000 to the CGUs of the Group's Wind Energy
Subsidiaries and Solar Energy Subsidiaries respectively.
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BE (B

@ﬁ%EMEEEEEEZH
BRI &)

et -

AEENEFTR2015FWB2IEZASERA

mméﬁiﬂmﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂmmEW%z¢
ERZKRGEERERR AR NKE AR (MK B
81 ERRARSELBUARLUETRERS -
B, 5B M a8 /A B e K B AE BT /&8 A B BT Uk (o] & B Th B R
AEBEGEET REWNBARRAGENBAZTE
BUETEHESRAENATG ZRSTBERATERE
ESENRcELENEEHENESREB/ANER
EmMEH ZRENEFARBEEBHENRIH
MHBEE RESEUFNKEH -HeREB/AHR
#10.00%%E11.52% (20204 : 8.73%E10.17%) Z TR
ER -HMsEEAEENIZERREBELES
BRI -REABMNBAEKRAGENBATDREBAE
BEZREREEBHMTIBERIBHETE - Gt

EEFHERERNF-9.6%ZE7.4% (20204 -3.0%F
8.1%) Ao

HE2021FE 12831 HILEE > AR TEARS R E R
BHWIMRELERS BEERBNHEE ,i%'.%?ﬁﬁm
R B DA EASEEREME A F K& AR
BABMETRSEELEUN THthRE RSB Rk
B ER518819,000% 7T &2 3,516,000 75 © B 9 Bl #%
MEREEFEMNTEAFURAEEGRATRFEZ
KIGAE (K4EB) HEARATAAREH T KL EEE
44,291,000% 75 % 187,288,000 75> Mt BRI W@ &
BEEAAERN AN EEEERE— P RERE

BEETFIFEIEEREME5%E D B E B A £ E R B H
BABIRAGAENBATNIEGEEBEMBINAES
$815,542,000% 75 K& 7,105,0003 7T © #T BRE 1 MN0.5%
BORERAEERERBATRABAEKBACE
YMNBI1E #5185,787,000% 7T 52 4,317,0005 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of unlisted investment in associates
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profit net
of dividends received, and exchange

realignment

The following list contains the particulars of associates of the Group,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose guoted market price

is not available:

REERABNIF LT REZMAE
PRSI SR (B548) a

ne B SRR MY 5

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

GNRREWR B K ERRE)

by ‘1/-\ -~ A_L
17. REE QBN
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$°000 Us$'000
== i FET
150,569 147,005
(1,331) 59,078
149,238 206,083

TR AEHABEQATDNEN (KFELTY
BIELTRABER ST HRELFEA) :

Place of
establishment
and principle Proportion of ownership
place of Registered and interest and voting right
Name of associates business Legal form paid up capital held by the Group Principal activities
P33 B R FEEFBREEEEG R
I-UNCiEY TEEEMAE  AERA SRS R A BRERLLA TEEY
2021 2020
20214 20204

Hubei Huadian Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign equity joint Renminbi (“RMB”) 49% 49% Generation and supply of
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Huadian") venture 950,000,000 electricity
BLEERELEEERAT FE FHEERERE AR TAER)) LERMBEESN
(THs6ER)) 950,000,0007%

Hubei Xisaishan Power Generation The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB945,000,000 49% 49% Generation and supply of
Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Xisaishan") joint venture electricity
ALEELZBERAT TE A EAELY AR 1£945,000,0007 LERBEEN
(AR L)

Jiangxi United Energy Co., Ltd. The PRC Sino-foreign cooperative RMB76,328,972 6.55% 6.55% Generation and supply of
(“Jiangxi United”) joint venture (Note (i) (Note (i) electricity
IEEEERERAR (NIAKSE)  FE FHEERERE AE¥76,3289727C (i) (Hritn) £ERMBEEN

Inner Mongolia East Electric The PRC State-owned holding RMB242,688,994 9.34% - Operation of electricity
Power Trading Center Co., Ltd. enterprise (Note (i) trading platform
(“Inner Mongolia East Electric Power")

AEERBENRZROERA FE EEEREE AR ¥242,688,9947T (a2 (i) BEENRFTA
(TARERBESN)

Notes: Mzt

(i) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over (i) EEERATERHIAHSEEARE

Jiangxi United as they have nominated a representative on the board of T RAREERLEETE LR KSHA
directors and participated in policy-making processes. REBIE

(ii) The board of directors considered the Group has a significant influence over (i) EEEREAAERHATHEREHLEEKR

Inner Mongolia East Electric Power as they nominated a representative on the FEH RARHERAEETT —HAERK
board of directors and participated in policy-making processes. ZHEARIBRE

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method LA EBME AR KBRS AN EEMHR

in the consolidated financial statements. EIN

2021 FERE | PEEZWERZRERARE
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

Summarised financial information of
material associates

Summarised financial information of the above associates, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

(a) Hubei Xisaishan

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue

REE AT ZHBER
nEEE

IEREEE

neam

IFREERE

e

B

WA

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive A (8518) & F KR 2@

income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Group’s effective interest

W 25 4B 2R

FRNEBEABKRIRNKRE

SXEENMEAT D 2 HIR
HERNTBEE P ERHE
AERBEZHEATDEEFE

AEEZER#ED

Carrying amount in the consolidated iz &M FHRE ZREE

financial statements

Annual Report 2021

REEQRNED (&)
FEMEATRMBENBE

LHBEADNHBERZREDT (B
EREABERNERERFRBERE TRRS

B mMERMNEEMELHER) ¢
(a) HAIEAEELWL

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FZET
129,541 79,724
132,517 154,073
(138,945) (65,510)
(333) (773)
122,780 167,514
197,985 163,206
(30,893) 17,590
7,812 9,477
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
122,780 167,514
49% 49%
60,162 82,082
60,162 82,082
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b) Hubei Huadian

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

Revenue

ne B SRR MY 5

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

17. REEQATN#ED ()
(b) HAICEE

(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive £ (E518) /HEF R 2E

income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Group’s effective interest

Goodwill

Carrying amount in the consolidated 7%

financial statements

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$'000
FE7T FET
REE QAT 24258
MENEE 137,685 60,630
ERBEE 461,951 475,779
mEEE (311,165) (212,064)
ERBEE (119,389) (76,209)
g 169,082 248,136
WA 444,811 380,032
Y s 4858 (46,124) 42,245
FENEHEABWERNERE
17,750 20,246
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
BMAEEMRBEEATER ZHIR
ME AT EEFEREE
169,082 248,136
NEFBECHEATDEESE
49% 49%
NEMZ ERER 82,850 121,587
82,850 121,587
= 1,591 1,591
MR EMBHRERZIREE
84,441 123,178
2021 FERE | WHEEZMERERERAF
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(c) Jiangxi United

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividends received from the
associate during the year

Reconciled to Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Non-controlling interests

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate
Group’s effective interest

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

REE AR 2 4%
MEEE

JERBMEE

JEREEE

T i

WA

FREBERATWENKRE

HREENBHEAREE 2 HIR
MENEEEFERE
JRIER D

FEMBECHERTNEEFE
rEBEZERED

Carrying amount in the consolidated RiR & FEMER Z REE

financial statements

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

NDtES to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REEARNED (1B

(c) IFEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$’000
== 2 FET
21,858 6,473
112,730 51,605
(28,580) (1,758)
(89,663) (43,755)
16,345 12,565
9,539 1,636
2,941 438
6 —

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
16,345 12,565
(689) -
15,656 12,565
6.55% 6.55%
1,025 823
1,025 823
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(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Inner Mongolia East Electric Power (d)

Gross amounts of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Reconciled to the Group’s interest
in the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of
the associate

Group’s share of net assets of
the associate

Group’s effective interest

Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements

REEARZHBER
MENEE

JERBEE

BN

JEREEE

LON

FrEAREEWABER

HXREERBEATD RS HIR
BE N B EEPEREE
FERBEZHERTDEEFE
AEEZEREDR

RiFEHBRERZIREE

2021 EERE

17. RBEQTN#ED @)

AR ERE
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 18. IEEAUAREESIERA
FVOCI gt AEMME2EWER
ERIEE

2021 2020

20215 20204

Us$’000 USs$’000

FET FET

Investments in unlisted equity securities ELrHmHEETERE 5,238 -
The unlisted equity securities are shares in 4 companies established LT RFTEANKPPEKIEKREE N
in the PRC with limited liability and engaged in operating of electricity REGEE72ERABIZEBMH AERBENZ
trading platforms. The Group designated its investments in these ENFZ2REBIEEAUAABESEEEH
companies at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held for AEME2EmKE (RO #0) » BERAZLEKRE
strategic purpose. No dividends were received on the investments FEERBEN FERTEGZEBE NG S

during the year (2020: nil). (20204 : #8) ©

19. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19. ZEMERRERPIEREIR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) “REMFBERRTRPRIRYED
statement of financial position HRFRIEIS :
represents:
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
Tax payable FESTRIE
- PRC EIT — B RS 6,610 3,202
- KCIT — BB EFIER 5,689 5,879
Tax payable FETTRIE 12,299 9,081
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$°000
FET FET
Tax recoverable AU el 18
- PRC EIT — B RS 214 216

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

)

19. n-F

B BRRRFPBFASH

(#)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ETJEW RERBEERE
recognized: g
(i) Movement of each component of (i) BERBEEERBESRMHE
deferred tax assets and liabilities R EB 53 R &S
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/ UTARFERBEFECHE
assets recognized and movements thereon during the REZRLERE (BRE) BE
current and prior years: L/(&Eméﬂ
Fair value
Withholding Revaluation adjustment
tax on Accelerated of of property, Deferred
distributable tax right-of-use plant and connection
profits  depreciation assets equipment charges Others Total
AR "¢ BER
D MEHE B REAAER
8 g  EREEE #E  BERYE Hft o
US$'000 Uss'000 Us$000 Us$ 000 US$000 Us$'000 Uss000
FET 1 FET i1 FET F£r F£7
At 1 January 2020 R2020£1810 (38,696) (1,780) (8,756) 19,215 34 (2,599) (32,582)
Exchange differences EREE (1,895) (108) 1,436 1,886 1 (182) 1,138
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37)  HE—-FWBAT (WFs7) - - - - (35) - (35)
Charged to hedging reserve palE=Eapel-1- - - - - - 551 551
(Charged)/credited to profitor loss  (H1%E) /3t A B (2376) 1,018 1,250 (1,084) - - (1,192)
At 31 December 2020 12020%12831H (42,967) (870) (6,070) 20,017 - (2,230) (32,120)
Exchange differences ERER 35 (225) (2.217) 2,413 - 452 398
Charged to hedging reserve palE=Eapel-1- - - - - - 1,156 1,156
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 3t A/ (M1 E) B 2467 59 569 (1,261) - 2,639 4473
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12831H (40,465) (1,036) (7,778) 21,169 - 2,017 (26,093)

2021 EERE

HEEZERIERARAE
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)

19.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognized: (continued)

(1)

(i)

Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities
(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets IRIEIRIEE B
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE

Deferred tax assets not recognized

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately US$104,516,000 (2020:
approximately US$60,271,000), available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
will be expired at various times within a period of five
years from the year of origination.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

19.

n-F

(#&)

(b)

B BRRRFPBFASH

ERDIEEREEERE

1$o
,\'

(#)

(i) BERBEEERBESRMHE
MER DB ES) (B
MENGEMBERRERMS
ETREERBEBSEREEER
EH - UTAMPEREEN
FREIEEFR IBAL BRI DA

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
TE7T FET
23,322 21,794
(49,415) (53,914)
(26,093) (32,120)

(i) KRERIRERIESE

R2021F12831H > ~&EE
BEXAFHAMRBEEBEED LN
104,516,0005% 7 (20204 © 4
60,271,000%7t) > ] HIEEE &K
A e F) o BB SR 2 E F R B9 R
HAEEME TEMREEIR
MREIERIBEE -MIEEIR
BREEEERAEREATR
EBLESEERCE
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Value-added tax recoverable
Prepaid insurance expenditure and
usage right of electricity
transmission facilities
Prepayment for maintenance
Others

INVENTORIES

Coal and oll

Spare parts and supplies
Wood pellet

REC (Note)

Goods in transit - wood pellet

Note:

REC represented renewable energy certificates
sale.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables - contracts with
customers
Less: allowance for credit losses

EEME BERREBERE

FIUR[E]E AR
fﬁﬁﬁ'—ﬁ‘\ﬁrﬁi&
B R A%

RERNNEA
HAth

S =P
R R it 8E

NE R
AIBEREREE (i)
RV E-KRE B

generated by the Group and held for

BSRPIER—F R &R
W EEBEEE

20. HthIERENEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
69,629 292,757
265,303 187,061
337 538
16,288 16,650
12,107 8,059
363,664 505,065
4=
21. 1#
2021 2020
202145 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
F=ET FET
8,455 5,204
21,565 19,241
4,355 -
17,007 -
2,827 -
54,209 24,445
Jiof=3
EEE RS ER AR ENT B
REEo
£h
22, B FEIERR
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
TF3E7T FET
760,992 430,976
(16,521) (703)
744,471 430,273

2021 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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22.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance
for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the revenue recognition dates.

0 - 60 days 0F60H
61 - 90 days 61F290H
91 - 180 days 91EF180H
Over 180 days 180H L

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$209,315,000
(2020: US$135,178,000) from the sales of electricity and other
services, which are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$535,156,000
(2020: US$295,095,000) from the tariff income receivables. These
receivables are tariff income receivables from relevant government
authorities pursuant to the 2020 Notice (see note 4). The collection
of tariff income receivables is subject to settlement by state grid
companies upon finalization of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC
government authorities to the state grid companies. As a result, the
tariff income receivables are not considered as overdue or in default.
In prior years, expected credit loss rates of these receivables were
assessed to be minimal, as these receivables were from state-owned
entities with sound credit ratings and the aging profile was within
the Group’s normal operating cycle. However, during the year, the
management has noted a significant slowdown of settlement of tariff
income receivables by certain government authorities. As a result,
the management has reassessed the related credit risk based on the
historical settlement records, latest aging profile of those receivables
and forward looking information that is available without undue cost
and effort as at 31 December 2021, and the expected credit losses
of US$15,663,000 and US$4,666,000 were recognized in respect of
trade receivables and contract assets respectively for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade receivables
balance.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in note 36(a).

Annual Report 2021

B SRR (8

UTF&EINPEREPRREZEH RRATESR
HEEE) 29N ESEBEERRRESEEHE
BHERE DT

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°'000
FET FET
221,325 151,034
30,168 12,617
88,368 39,961
404,610 226,661
744,471 430,273

R2021F128318 > AEBENE 57 EUERAS
REEXRBHEE N REMRFNEREMES
209,315,000% 75 (20204 : 135,178,000 75)
HEWER  FER BRAZEH LS 30590
KAZAT o

R2021F 128318 ZEEHNE 7 FEUWERR
EHREOEREENREERANERAES
535,156,0003% 75 (20204 : 295,095,000 75)
BIFEWEBR T - IR 152020 B A (B2 RIMI5E4)

5% 5 FE N BR 7R 23 FE S AB B8 BT 3B P9 AY B & a3 B
WA HERAIEE AR R BB AT & PIE B YW E
RERREANEZNEEOHERERELEET
&EE lﬁ'ﬁ?%&ﬁﬁ%tﬁﬁm_ o EEZEREW
RAARKEERTERAIANEEERB N
E> AR R R EAEENEESE BN
REBAFEEEEBRAZSERIRANTERE
EEBEEFEAARM FANEEEREETH
T 14 R 45 B FE WK BB (B IR A TR B KB TR © R
EEEBEREBEBETEMNCE ZFEBERAM
BHIRE BN KRR2021E12831HEEBSH
ARE SRR EENAE B R BT EER
EERE > WHREZE2021FE12B31HIEEE D
AFMEZERER RSB EERS15,663,000
£ 714,666,000 T TERRE BB

REE W EE 5 FE IR A

=]
om °©

BRI A (R AT 4R

EHAEEEERRKESRURRAEEN
EERBRBE—DFIERNMIEE36(a)



23.

24,

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ne B SRR MY 5

for the year ended 31 December 2021 E ZE2021F 128310 IEFE

CONTRACT ASSETS

Tariff income from sales of HEBEEREMESEERA
renewable energy
Less: allowance for credit losses

(Note 22)

B EERBREE
(Htat22)

The contract assets represented tariff income receivables from sales
renewable energy to the local state grid in the PRC, with such amounts
pending approval for registration in the List by the relevant government
authorities. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the relevant right becomes unconditional, upon the registration of
the Group’s respective operating power plants in the List.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
contract assets are set out in note 36(a).

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

The balance includes value-added tax recoverable of US$104,085,000
(2020: US$61,163,000) and other miscellaneous deposits and
prepayments.

All of the balances are expected to be recovered or recognized as
expense within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all amounts are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and recoverable/(repayable) on demand, except for an
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of US$1,183,000 (2020:
US$1,085,000) which is repayable in 2032 and is therefore shown as
non-current liabilities.

23.

24.

25.

2021 FERE |

BREE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
191,453 146,637
(4,718) -
186,735 146,637

GREEEMAPENMSEKXBEBEEDH
ERERBIFEUR BB WA > 2R IE H 5 AR R BT
T A O A B BB o 1O A RGBS AR
R AEFEESEEBRMAFTER GF
HEEBEEESBIIRR -

EHAERGEERRAGREEMEENGEER
R B — B EF BRI EE36(a) ©

Hfth e R B R FA 4R IR

MR BRI YR (O (E 104,085,000 7T (2020
£ :61,163,0005%7T) UK HEH MM EL S RFEN
RIB o

TRHAPR B AR I — R UREI SR B 5T o

FEl, (FEf) R RMIB AR,
FEIERR AR ERTRIR

R2021F % 2020F 12831 H  FTE A EIR
Rt BERBEREREERE (EE)  E—%F
FEAT IE4E R AE BE RN IE 1,183,000 75 (20204 ©
1,085,000% 75) 7B 2032FE BB T A LSR5
ErEmasde

HEEZERIERARAE
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Derivatives that are designated
and effective as hedging
instruments carried at
fair value

Financial assets at FVPL

Foreign exchange forward
contracts

Analyzed for reporting
purposes as:
Non-current
Current

ol

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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26. THEEMITA
2021 2020
20214 20204
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE af& BE =L
uUs$’000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$°000
T=25T F=25m FET FET
IEERBRIES
BAREEYERMN
HHTENTETAR
17,099 = 7,268 -
BAnBESABEEN
THMEE - - 9 63
ShERFAA R
17,099 = 7,277 63
MERENDITA -
JERE 8,645 = 5,445 _
MED 8,454 = 1,832 63
17,099 = 7,277 63

The major terms of the foreign exchange forward contracts are as

follows.

Notional amounts

HEE

At 31 December 2021
2021F12831H

Buy Canadian dollar (“CAD”) 190,894,795

B A 190,894,795/07¢ (TH07T.))

At 31 December 2020
#2020F12831H

Buy Euro (“EUR”) 1,092,541
EH A1,092,5418 7T (TBRIT.)
Buy US$1,787,372

B A1,787,372%= 7T

Buy CAD 284,119,795

B A284,119,795/0 7%

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Maturity
ZIHA B

Range from 11 Feb 2022 to
13 December 2023

202228 11HE
2023%12813H

Range from 29 January 2021 to
26 February 2021

NF2021F1829HE
2021%F2826H

Range from 29 January 2021 to
30 March 2021

N F2021F1829HE
2021938308

Range from 18 Feb 2021 to
13 December 2023

T F2021F2818HE
2023%12813H

| Annual Report 2021

SNEEBI SR EZ R T

Exchange rate

EZX

Range from CAD1: KRW815.50 to

CAD1: KRW828.67

TFA0TT : 815.5088 T E

1N7T : 828.675& 7T

Range from EUR1: KRW1,362.30 to

EUR1: KRW1,366.64

A T1ERTT - 1,362.308 T F

1BUTT & 1,366.6458 7T

Range from US$1: KRW1,080.11 to

US$1: KRW1,205.00

AF1ETT D 1,080. 1188 T E

1277 © 1,205.0088 7T

Range from CAD1: KRW815.50 to

CAD1: KRW836.28

TFA0TT : 815.5088 T E

1007C : 836.2888 7T
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The amounts recognized for the foreign exchange forward contracts
do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of set-off of the
recognized amounts is only enforceable upon an event of default.

It is the policy of the Group to enter into foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the foreign currency risk associated with certain
committed purchase transactions covering 100% of the exposure.
Basis adjustments are made to the initial carrying amounts of
inventories when the anticipated purchases take place.

For the hedges of highly probable forecast purchases, as the critical
terms (i.e. the notional amount, life and underlying) of the foreign
exchange forward contracts and their corresponding hedged items
are the same, the Group performs a qualitative assessment of
effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the forward contracts
and the value of the corresponding hedged items will systematically
change in opposite direction in response to movements in the
underlying exchange rates.

The Group has entered into contracts to purchases raw materials from
suppliers in Canada. The Group has entered into foreign exchange
forward contracts (for terms exceeding a year) to hedge the exchange
rate risk arising from these committed future purchases.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of gain under foreign
exchange forward contracts deferred in the hedging reserve relating
to these committed future purchase transactions is US$13,127,000
(2020: US$5,104,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the gain in fair value of hedging instrument of forecast purchases
recognized in other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax, is
US$9,536,000 (2020: loss of US$1,637,000). It is committed that the
purchases will take place during the next two years (2020: three years)
at which time the amount deferred in equity will be removed from
equity and included in the carrying amount of the raw materials. It is
anticipated that the raw materials will be consumed for the generation
of electricity and sold within 12 months after purchases.

26.

2021 EERE

TTEEMIA (@)

M EERSARBNS AR AR AL
AHBRRENEHENIEE DEREHDR
52 % BB B0 MR I B A B A0 T 4 5 05 T 3 61 2
e

FAEBPIBEATIIEREERUEEES
FTRARBRZEENIINERE > UBEE100%
RO - EEHRBEER > BEEMNE
IREEETEHRAE

BB RETHNRARBZHTME AR
SNEEMERNEIZERN BRE2E HRR
1289) BEMBENEPEEAEAR REAERS
EMMHETEMS G LRAEREEEER
HEEPRENEEREHEMEXZHMAR
3z [ 2 8 o

AEH BT ILE R LAE NS A A RS R A
HeREBBTUIERBAR (HRBE—
F) UHE P ZERERRRBAELENERR

o

R2021E12831 0 R BB S RHERKKE
REMEFRETREENIIERRERKE
48%E#313,127,0003% 7T (20204 : 5,104,000%
TT) cEE2021F 12831 EFE - REMEE
WERINBHRESFATEZ AR BAEKRS
(O IEIEFR TE) %9,536,000% 7T (20204 ©
/55181,637,000E 75) ° A5 IR BB 1Y R AR 4
(20204 : =4F) W7 BRPEEPELED
SEFEEEDTNG Tt ARMHNNEREE.

ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf BEBWNREER12EH A H
o

| HEEENERERERAE

219



220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

Bl PSR < MU EE

ol

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

(a)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market rates which
range from 0% to 1.55% (2020: 0% to 1.75%) per annum as at
31 December 2021. The pledged bank deposits carry interest
at market rates ranging from 0% to 0.49% (2020: 0.1% to
0.84%) per annum as at 31 December 2021.

Included in the cash and cash equivalents, deposits of
US$40,811,000 (2020: US$34,572,000) has been made to
CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited (“CGNPC Huasheng”).
These deposits are unsecured, interest bearing at market rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.25% (2020: 0.01% to 0.25%) and
recoverable on demand. As the Group can withdraw these
deposits without giving any notice and without suffering any
penalty, the directors of the Company consider that these
deposits made to CGNPC Huasheng qualified as cash and
cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalent of
US$321,856,000 (2020: US$304,762,000) are deposited in
CGN Finance, a fellow subsidiary established in the PRC with
limited liability and a non-banking financial institution subject
to the regulations of the People’s Bank of China and the China
Banking Regulatory Commission, in the PRC.

Pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group (note 31), and it cannot be
withdrawn prior to the approval of the relevant banks.

Short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% per
annum with maturity period for more than three months.

Annual Report 2021

27. HERIREFEY)  EHRIR
TER R BIRRIRITER

(a)

HERBEEEYWN2021F12831H
BEENF0%E1.55% (20204 | 0%E
1.75%) BB K B - BIRIFIRITE
AR 2021F12B3 1 HEEFENF0%E
0.49% (20204 : 0.1%E0.84%) KI5
FEF R

BEREEREESEEY 40,811,000
257 (20204 : 34,572,000 7T) B
EXNFHREZERLERBRAT (T
BERZER)) - ZEERABRIEE 2N
F0.01%%E0.25% (20204 : 0.01%=E
0.25%) WHIZFEst BN EERT
el e AREBEEMBNZETR (B
BEHIAEARA G S 5 F [E
g5 > ARREERA TP EZE
BNEREEREARERREEE
] o

R2021F 128310 B RkREEE
EH)321,856,000% 7T (20204 :
304,762,00057T) EFEAREIZT
HEZMEBEA—IPRPEUEREMT
FERRINBERNBAR  RBIERT
SRR BETHPEARRITRTE
RITEESEEEZEGNRA-

B IRITER DRI FIRIT  LUER
RTAEEBRTHEER (H5E31)  ERE
HERITBISF IR A AT IR E

RHRTERREEERENF1.75%
TR REBERD=MEA MU L.
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows

27. RERMEEFEY - FEHAR
@%ﬁ&aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
e,

as cash flows from financing activities.

(b)

AR EESEENERN
HER

TERHEAEEKXRERETHNERE
28 aFERERIFRTEH -MED
HELEZEEAHEETRBARKRERES
RERRAERGERETREBETD
BAREEDHELZRERE -

Amounts
Loans Loans from Amounts due to non-
Bank Lease from fellow the ultimate due to fellow controlling
borrowings liabilities subsidiaries  holding company subsidiaries shareholders Total
RERA
HEAEN  RARRER EftF% B R
RiTE HERE EE ARMER  WERARE REHE At
Us$ 000 Us§000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$ 000 Uss'000 Us$ 000
F£r T 1 T & £z FEr
(note 31) (note 32) (note 30) (note 30) (nofe 25) (note 25)
(1) (Hse) (Hts0) (Hts0) (H25) (it2s)
At 1 January 2020 1202051818 2,597,897 30,342 1,072,696 - 8412 9,543 3,718,890
Financing cash flows (Nore) RERETE (W) 705,063 (7731) 41,382) 393,732 (41575) 6,305) 1,001,802
Disposal of a subsidiary (noie 37) HE-RIWBAR (Hiats7) (5,651) (820) - - - - (6.471)
New leases entered EiEpE:E - 6,143 - - - - 6,143
Interest expenses recognized BRIHSRY 99,753 1418 - 2,259 41575 - 145,005
Dividend declared BERRE - - - - - 4618 4618
Foreign exchange translation SNERE 213,762 1570 23,436 22,406 3% 504 262,114
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 20205128318 R2021E1R 18 3,610,844 30,922 1,054,750 418,397 8,738 8,450 5,132,101
Financing cash flows (Aote) RERSHE () 494,944 (6,840) 945,608 (435,417) (42,508) (6,657) 949,130
New leases entered FiENE k] - 7,991 - - - - 7,091
Interest expenses recognized BRIHSRS 131,818 1,902 - 11,088 42,508 - 188,216
Dividend declered BEKRE - - - - - 6,657 6,657
Other changes Hit2E - - - - - (5,452) (5,452)
Foreign exchange translation SNERE 8,285 1,572 18,930 5,032 1,202 338 35,359
At 31 December 2021 H2021%12A318 4,245,891 35,547 2,019,288 - 9,940 3,336 6,314,002
Note: ~ The cash flows from bank borrowings, lease liabilities, loans from MaE: RITEERERE-HAEEE KB

fellow subsidiaries and the ultimate holding company, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries, and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders make up the net amount of proceeds and repayments

in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

2021 FER

of

BENBARRREKEZERATNE
RENERKNEREDREREN
FERRRTEEARGETRERE
EANFISRIRFEKLER

HEEZERIERARAE
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 27.

=~

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(C) Amounts in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases
comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows FARSHERE
Within investing cash flows FAREBERERE
Within financing cash flows FAREBERESRE
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 60 days 0&E60H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H U

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 22 days (2020:
26 days) for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure all payables are
settled within the credit period.
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MERIFEFEY R
@%%&Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
e,

(c) HmamenmERnNAENHESEY

THEIE:

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
2,216 1,635
11,420 4,064
6,840 7,731
20,476 13,430

B 5B TERTR

RESHR BEEAR2RNEZBOERER
BIBREC AU T o

2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
TFE5T FET
127,066 58,490
318 1,679
2,121 10,535
129,505 70,704

HE2021F 12831 LEE  BEERMWTY
EBHA228 (20204 : 26H) - AEBEBEHIE
MEAREERR URRAEEARESH
RIEEHRALEE -
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Construction costs payable

Staff costs payable

Accrued interest expense on
borrowings

Value-added tax payable

Others

Analyzed for reporting purposes as:

Current
Non-Current

BUREER
FEfT 8 TR A
FESHEE R B

PRI ER
Hith

PMEHREN DS

nE
FERED

29. HtEMRRREER

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
556,297 335,382
7,366 11,583
4,675 3,904
15,387 11,678
34,691 35,477
618,416 398,024
614,581 398,024
3,835 -
618,416 398,024

2021 EERE

HEEZERIERARAE
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30.

LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
AND THE ULTIMATE HOLDING

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the amounts represent:

Loans from fellow subsidiaries
— due within 1 year:

CGN Finance

CGN Finance

CGN Wind Energy

CGNPC Huasheng

Loan from the ultimate holding company
- due within 1 year:
CGN

Loan from fellow subsidiaries
— due after 1 year:

CGN Finance

CGN Finance

CGN Finance

CGNPC Huasheng

China Clean Energy Development
Limited (“China Clean Energy”)

Loan from the ultimate holding company
— due after 1 year:
CGN

RERRWELABHNER

—T1ERNEE
HEZR
FREZRM
PEZEE
PEZER

REREKEZERAF
—F1EREIE
PEZ

B

ENEICEN )= PNCILES

—I1EFEREIE
FREZ
hEZR
FREZR
REZER
Fh B R BE IR 2

BRRAF

(TR EERAERD)

REREER AT
—FR1FEBEE
FREZ
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iy

£y
I=F7/N

446i
ET

(~S =
B

30. RERRMBABT RRAE
H!/-\EJE"JETFA

Notes

lot=3

i(a)
i(b)

i

i(c)
i(d)
ile)

il

R2021E12831H  ZEHIEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
US$°000 US$'000
F5E FET
172,530 179,313
1,810 -
988,127 91,955
= 250,000
1,162,467 521,268
= 295,790
7,852 6,753
133,284 76,729
15,685 -
250,000 -
450,000 450,000
856,821 533,482
= 122,607
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30. LOANS FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
AND THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(i)(a)

(i)(b)

(i)e)

(i)

(iif)

(v)

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB1,100,000,000 (equivalent to
Us$172,530,000) (2020: RMB1,170,000,000 (equivalent to
US$179,313,000)) is unsecured, interest bearing at 3.45% per annum and
repayable in 2022.

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB11,540,000 (equivalent to US$1,810,000)
(2020: nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.21% per annum and repayable in
2022.

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB50,060,000 (equivalent to US$7,852,000)
(2020: RMB44,056,000 (equivalent to US$6,753,000)) is unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.21% per annum and repayable in 2035.

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB849,782,000 (equivalent to US$133,284,000)
(2020: RMB500,651,000 (equivalent to US$76,729,000)) is unsecured,
interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced by the PRC National
Interbank Funding Center minus 0.39% per annum and repayable in 2040.

Loan from CGN Finance of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to US$15,685,000)
(2020: nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at RMB Loan Prime Rate announced
by the PRC National Interbank Funding Center minus 0.66% per annum and
repayable in 2037.

Loans from CGN Wind Energy of RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
US$156,846,000) (2020: nil) interest bearing at 3.25% per annum,
RMB1,100,000,000 (equivalent to US$172,530,000) (2020: nil) interest
bearing at 3.45% per annum, RMB4,200,000,000 (equivalent to
US$658,751,000) (2020: nil) interest bearing at 3.50% per annum, are
unsecured and repayable in 2022.

Loan from CGNPC Huasheng of US$250,000,000 (2020: US$250,000,000)
is unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months London Interbank Offered Rate plus
1.30% per annum and repayable in 2024.

Loans from CGN of RMB1,930,000,000 (equivalent to US$295,790,000) and
RMB800,000,000 (equivalent to US$122,607,000) in 2020 were fully repaid
during the year.

Loan from China Clean Energy of US$450,000,000 (2020: US$450,000,000)
is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.50% per annum and repayable in 2025.

30.

RERRMB AT REAE

RABINER (&)

(iii)

(iv)

2021 EERE

REPEZMBNERARE1,100,000,000
7t (lBE172,530,000575) (20204 @ A
E%1,170,000,0007t (18E12179,313,0003
70)) 0 AEIEIF R ERFIA5% T EREAR
20224FEIE °

REFEZUTBENERARE11,540,0007T
(tHHE721,810,000%%7w) (20205 1 %) » %
LR R EN KL 21%5t B R AR20225

HiE-

REPEZTENERARBS0,060,0007T
(& 7,852,000%75) (20204 | AR
44,056,00070 (HHE126,753,000%7T)) * &
LR R ENF4.21%5t B R BR20355

HiEo

REFPEZHBENERARES49,782,000
7T (FBE 7 133,284,000% 7T) (20204 : A
R ¥500,651,0007t (HHE1076,729,0003
76)) 0 BEIEE  mPE2EIRTEEBER
BHRLAGHAREERRESNERBEF
F0.39%5T B R ANR2040F HE

REFEZVBHERARE100,000,0007T
(tHE75215,685,000%75) (2020%F 1 &) %
BB -RPEZERTEREREPLA
HEHAREERREEMNEREF X0.66%
TR R BR2037FEHEIE

REFPEZRBEENES25% T ENER
AE1,000,000,0007T (18 E1%156,846,000
E7t) (20205 1 2) “HEERNZH3 . 45%5
EMERARM1,100,000,0007T (HHE P
172,530,000%7%) (20204 | &) R EF)
E3.50%:T BN EMAR4,200,000,0007T
(18 E1658,751,000%7T) (20204 : &) %
SRR R AR 20225 B o

KEFEZERMNENR250,000,000E 7T
(20204 : 250,000,000 7T) » BEIKTF
B=ZERmHIRITEEFRE B M1.30%0F
MZ T B R BR2024FEE o

R2020F REFERZNERARE
1,930,000,0007t (#HE /295,790,000
£7m) RAR¥800,000,0007w (&P
122,607,000%7t) BERZEEBHMEE -

REFREFERERNEM450,000,000E 7T
(20204 : 450,000,000 75) » B EEKIF
HRER] K4 50%1 B BR2025F EiE o

| HEEENERERERAE
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CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
Secured P=Egii 3,188,682 2,979,540
Unsecured IR 1,057,209 631,304
4,245,891 3,610,844
The maturity profile of RITEENZHBEROT :
bank borrowings is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 763,503 721,579
After 1 year but within 2 years —F U EERBBmE 399,027 323,538
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU EERBRAE 1,191,136 951,658
Over 5 years EEME 1,892,225 1,614,069
3,482,388 2,889,265
4,245,891 3,610,844
The exposure of the fixed-rate borrowings is as follows: EEEERRUWT :
2021 2020
202145 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
F=ET FET
Fixed-rate borrowings i%fﬁﬁ
Within 1 year R—FR 483,059 131,812
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEM EEFRBIBERF 32,968 105,789
After 2 years but within 5 years MEN EERBBERF 100,923 273,603
Over 5 years EEME 203,071 479,601
820,021 990,805
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BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the variable-rate borrowings is as follows:

Variable-rate borrowings FEEE
Within 1 year R—FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEM EEFRBE MR
After 2 years but within 5 years MEULEBEFRBREE
Over 5 years EEMUE

All bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entities.
The bank borrowings of the Group carry interest rates which range
from 1.41% to 4.66% (2020: 1.47% to 4.90%) per annum during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the variable-rate bank borrowings
of the Group carry interest at the PRC’s lending rate less certain
margin, South Korean Government Treasury Bond Rate, One Year
Corporate Bond Rate plus 1.2% (2020: 1.2%), or Three Year Corporate
Bond Rate plus 1.2% (2020: 1.2%). The maturities of these borrowings
are ranging from within twelve months from the reporting period end to
2029 and 2030.

Included in the Group’s secured bank borrowings, US$31,369,000
(2020: US$45,978,000) and US$1,846,000 (2020: US$1,893,000) are
guaranteed by the Group’s fellow subsidiaries, CGN Wind Energy and
CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd., respectively.

An amount of US$6,142,000 (2020: US$4,003,000) of the unsecured
bank borrowings is guaranteed by CGN Wind Energy.

31.

2021 EERE

ﬁE 7155 C:E)

FEREERRNT

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
S FET
280,444 589,767
366,059 217,749
1,090,213 678,055
1,689,154 1,134,468
3,425,870 2,620,039

ﬁ"i&iﬁﬁﬂi FrERITESHUREESEN

hAE S st E - B E2021F 1283 1HLEEE
zts%fﬁﬁ EERNF1.41%F4.66% (2020
F I 1.47T%FE4.90%) FEF]ZEH B o

20215 %2020F 12831 H > AERB B0 &)
ERTEBEDNRPAEERMNXBRETEE 5
EBFEGEMNE - —FHLEESMEM.2%
(20204 : 1.2%) @JZEEEHm%%%%U*BD
1.2% (20204 : 1.2%) st B - ZEBEW I
FHRNFHRERRES+ZEA mizozgfﬁ&
2030%F ©

AEBEBIKFIRITBEES 31,369,000 7T
(20204 : 45,978,000% 7t) & 1,846,000% 7T
(20204 :1,893,000%7T) v DRI HAEER
FNBREFPEZEERFPEZKGELEER
fRABIHELR

EIRIPIRITE E6,142,00055 7T (20204
4,003,000%7T) Jh H P EIZE BIER -

| HEEENERERERAE
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. ey Y, ==
31. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 31. RITEE B
The Group pledged the following assets to banks for credit facilities AEBTRAEEERENEEMERRITIER
granted to the Group. UTEE-
2021 2020
20215 2020%
Us$’000 Us$’000
F &7 FET
Property, plant and equipment YN R B Bk 1,414,502 1,249,976
Right-of-use assets FEREEE - 23
Trade receivables B 5 ERBR R 532,293 311,348
Contract assets EREE 98,031 119,086
Bank deposits RITEM 157,730 134,527
2,202,556 1,814,960
1= ==
32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HHE&E
At December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: R2021FE12B  HESGBREEZB RO
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 USs$’000
T 3£ FET
Within 1 year —FR 6,899 3,900
After 1 year but within 2 years —F N EERBBmF 2,594 1,688
After 2 years but within 5 years MEU L ERBEAE 4,390 3,764
Over 5 years AEME 21,664 21,570
28,648 27,022
35,547 30,922

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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33. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The government grants consist of (i) subsidies of RMB15,633,000
(equivalent to US$2,452,000) (2020: RMB14,349,000, equivalent to
US$2,199,000) given by the PRC government to certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC for operating cost and environmental protection;
and (ii) grants of RMB45,300,000 (equivalent to US$7,105,000)
(2020: RMB49,300,000, equivalent to US$7,556,000) given by the
PRC government to a subsidiary of the Group in respect of a project
for the construction of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC received value-added tax refund amounted to
US$5,206,000 (2020: US$3,525,000) from the PRC government,
which are recognized as other income upon receipt.

The movement of the government grants during the year is set out
below:

As at 1 January P1B1H
Exchange differences ERER
Receipt of government grants W E| B AT @ Bh &
Recognition as other income (note 6) FEBAE MU A (H5t6)
As at 31 December M12831H
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: FL2WMENDFA :
Current TRED
Non-current e

33.

2021 EERE

2GS

BRAHEE8E)PEBF M E N A RIRE
RELATFAERMETHIERNBADNBEBAR
#15,633,0007C (FE#22,452,000%7T) (2020
£ ANR#14,349,0007T (FHE 72,199,000
7)) S(NPEBREMESYE BERRXHE
ERTAEER—ZXWEBLADNEHEARKE
45,300,0007% (HBE#7,105,000%78) (2020
£ AR ¥49,300,0007t (18 E 127,556,000
Jo)) °

HE2021F12831HIEFE > AEBMURFE
HNETHEBEAS W FEBFANIEERER
5,206,000% 7% (20204F : 3,525,000 7t) » jAUX
F RS RESR A E MU A o

FAMT MBSO HIIWT

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
F &7 FET
9,755 9,767
224 639
6,419 4,302
(6,841) (4,953)
9,557 9,755
212 207
9,345 9,548
9,557 9,755

| HEEENERERERAE
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Advance payments received from AW EF I8
customers

All contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognized are as follows:

Sales of steam

The Group receives deposits from the customers before the generation
of steam activity commences, this gives rise to contract liabilities at
the start of the contract, until the goods, i.e. steam is supplied to the
customers.

The amount of advance payment received from customers for sales of
steam is expected to be recognized as income within one year.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

34. aFEAaE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$°000
FET FET
4,719 2,717

FEGRAERINAERERCEBERANG

fEo

FEOCHEIARABEZEN —RARFERD
T

HEZER
AEE R EEBG A A KRR

T WERRERARRRELESRER EEE
) (B#ER) HEFER L

MEHERRERAPRBEZHERIN —FR
MR AWA
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

35. B #ERKRS

. . ae g 4=
Movements in components of equity (a) MEABRLER > EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBELGE R D SHERI D B4R
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BHREHRZBNHEEN GEER
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BBIR o LU TN YA A B EH) B FEREE
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of 18 B AR AR SR 0 B 2 B EE IS
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Share Share Capital ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve profits equity
(S RipEE BXE Rt el
US$°000 US$°000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note(i))
(&t (i)
At 1 January 2020 1202051810 55 250,406 78,061 37,608 366,130
Profit for the year and total AEERHREZEWALLE
comprehensive income - - - 57,538 57,538
At 31 December 2020 and #2020E128318 K
1 January 2021 2021F181H 55 250,406 78,061 95,146 423,668
Profit for the year and total AEERFIRZEBALLRE
comprehensive income - - - 52,242 52,242
Liquidation of a subsidiary —ZXMBRAAER - - (7,378) - (7,378)
Dividend declared and paid in ~ EERRKTH EEERE
respect of previous year (Hi5#35(0)(ii))
(note 35(b)(ii)) - - - (68,300) (68,300)
At 31 December 2021 R2021&E12831H 55 250,406 70,683 79,088 400,232
Notes: HiaE -
(i) Capital reserve represented the difference between investment cost (i) EAHBIEEENPEAEHNE

and carrying value of certain subsidiaries arising from internal group
reorganization.

2021 EERE

FHRBARKREMRAHKREEZME
BZEE

| HEEENERERERAE
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the company
attributable to the year

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period
of 0.86 US cents per share
(2020: 1.59 US cents per ordinary
share)

REHRBRIKCRIRE
Fh80.86ED
(2020F : BRREER
1.59%45)

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognized as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

(if) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year
of 1.59 US cents (2020: nil)

REEHERIKAH

FE1.59ED
(20204 : #)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

35.

T —MEREENRARE

B RS (B

(b) KRR

() BERTFENEMERD
B HARRAIAR S

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$°000
FET FET
36,952 68,300
36,952 68,300

REEPFRERORARIN
BEHRTEEDISERE

(i) BB L—MBFEELR
A FEHEERRAT B FE (S
TABEERRAIRE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
68,300 -
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 35. BEX-HERRKRE (&)

(continued)
. L
(c) Share capital (c) B&Z
(i) Issued share capital (i) BBITRAE
Number of shares Share capital
VR =] fi& s
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 cent  SERMEE0.01811Lz @R
each
Authorized: AR
At 1 January 2020, 7220205181 H ~ 20204
31 December 2020 and 2021 F2021%F12831H 250,000,000,000 25,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
At 1 January 2020, 12020518 1H ~ 20206
31 December 2020 and 2021 R2021F12831H 4,290,824,000 429
Us$’000
FET
Shown in the consolidated financial P4z &M FEHREKI]R5S
statements as 55
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ZREERITE AR RUWE TR
dividends as declared from time to time and are BIRMWEE  TEEREAT
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the RKELRER—ENAHNETT
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard RE-PRALNBDNRGEEM
to the Company’s residual assets. SO EZERHUEERSM
fiL

2021 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Reserves

(1)

(i)

(iii)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Other non-distributable reserves

Other non-distributable reserves principally represent
statutory reserves required to be appropriated from
profit after income tax of the subsidiaries established
in the PRC, under the relevant laws and regulations.
Allocation to the statutory reserves shall be approved
by the board of directors of the relevant subsidiaries.
The appropriation to statutory reserves may cease if
the balance of the statutory reserves has reached 50%
of the registered capital of the respective subsidiaries.
The statutory reserves may be used to make up
losses or for conversion into capital. The relevant
subsidiaries may, upon the approval by a resolution
of shareholders’ general meeting/board of directors’
meeting, convert their statutory reserves into capital
in proportion to their then existing shareholdings.
However, when converting the statutory reserves
into capital, the balance of such reserve remaining
unconverted must not be less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
cash flow hedges in note 2(i).

Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in notes 2(w).

Annual Report 2021

35. B RERKS @

(d)

B

(M)

(ii)

(iif)

HA AR A 2k fE

H Ao 5kl EZIERE
FEBRER BRPEHEA
B ZRMEREEFIENZZE
TERE o A ERE Z IR A
BERERMNEBARIzESGH
o fisl 5 TE R G eR E S B R
WEABGEMERZ50% 8l
Pl F LR BUE E 18 o £ T 1#
EURFRHEEEIBIRAE
Ko BRWBABARKRERK
ﬁ/é% ==} D%J:LL/ \u&*
#HEER REER2HEER
BHARBEEZERESERAE
KRN HEEREERAE
$ﬁ MARER 2 FELRT
BOREMEARZ25%

B

HhREECERSREBY TR
FEANHTTENAAEBER

STEEPFENBENHN D HE
HEBWsE2()MIRE R EEH AT
RN ST BRTERE R RER
HHIRERE-

R

ERHEECEREBIINEBY
BREMEENFABSNEE
BoREBREBNF2(wWENG
STERERIE °
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35. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, loans from fellow subsidiaries
and the ultimate holding company and bank borrowings, as
disclosed in notes 25, 30 and 31, respectively, net of pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, comprising issued capital, accumulated profits
and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
from time to time. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, the issue of new
shares, new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has been largely dependent on a small number of
customers which are state-owned enterprises for a substantial
portion of its business. Most of the power plants of the Group
sell the electricity generated to their respective customers
who are the principal grid companies where the power plant
is located. The failure of these customers to make required
payments could have a substantial negative impact on the
Group’s profits. The Group has concentration of credit risk as
93% (2020: 90%) of the total trade receivables was due from
26 (2020: 23) state-owned enterprises as at 31 December
2021. In order to minimize credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. As at 31 December 2020,
expected loss rates of these trade receivables and contract
assets were assessed to be low as the directors of the
Company were confident that all of the Group’s operating
renewable firms were able to be registered in the List in due
course and these receivables were from state-owned entities
with sound credit ratings and the aging profile was within the
Group’s normal operating cycle. However, during the year, the
management has noted a significant slowdown of settlement
of tariff income receivables by certain government authorities
and has reassessed the related credit risk on trade receivables
and contracts assets based on the historical settlement record,
latest aging profile of those receivables and forward looking
information that is available without undue cost and effort as
at 31 December 2021. As a result, expected credit losses of
US$15,663,000 and US$4,666,000 were recognized in respect
of trade receivables and contract assets respectively for the

year ended 31 December 2021.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets during the year is as follows:

$t2020F181H
B LR EFHE
ERER

At 1 January 2020
Impairment losses reversed
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12831H K

1 January 2021 202118 1H
Impairment losses recognized B ERIE
Impairment losses reversed [SEACINEREY oF;-
Exchange difference [ERER

At 31 December 2021 R2021FE12831H

The following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 December 2021.

BRAEE
5 FEUER

Contract assets
Trade receivables

Other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

For other receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
a 12-month ECL unless credit risks has increased significantly
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The credit risk on other receivables is limited
as other receivables are mainly value-added tax receivables,
prepayments and deposits, which are expected to be deducted
from value-added tax payables or recognized as expenses
in the future. The credit risk on amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries are limited as the counterparties are operating
smoothly and with sound collection history.

36. HEEMEERSRTAN
NHEE )
(a) EERE &
BRI RESREE (&)
BRRKERREREENGERR
BERERMEBT
Trade Contract
receivables assets Total
B 5 EUWAR® EEEE “azt
US$’000 Us$’000 us$’000
FET FET FET
536 - 536
(99) - (99)
266 - 266
703 - 703
15,663 4,666 20,329
(37) - (37)
192 52 244
16,521 4,718 21,239
TRIEMTEBR2021FE128318H
BESRKERREREEZEERR
KFEHEEBBZER -
Weighted- Gross Impairment
average carrying loss
loss rate amount allowance
IETYEEE IREAEME WERERE
Us$’000 us$'000
FET FET
2.5% 191,453 (4,718)
2.2% 760,992 (16,521)
952,445 (21,239)

2021 EERE

HAthFEWRIE R IR R M B A BRIE
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MIAM S » AL BREAAER 1218 8 8 E
FEBENSHETBERER RIFE
BER B EEILCREREE M £
ERTAEERIZHBEHRAEERS
B HMtMEWRENEERRBAR T
B EMERRIEE R 2R BIEER
AN RIBE KRR S TR 72 R R 8 g
BERPINREER R - BRE RN
BRABMENGEERBRAR  THEINH
FHEEFREAEARFHNUGREEH -

| HEEENERERERAE

237



238

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

Bl PSR < MU EE

ol

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
and pledged bank deposits

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with sound credit ratings, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents as well
as undrawn banking facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilization of bank borrowings, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders and loans from the ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group finances its operations by short-term and long-
term bank and other borrowings and shareholders’ equity.
The Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
US$1,145,733,000 as at 31 December 2021.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that CGN
Finance and CGN Wind Energy, the fellow subsidiaries
of the Company, have confirmed in writing that despite
the loans from CGN Finance of RMB1,100,000,000
(equivalent to US$172,530,000), and CGN Wind Energy of
RMB6,300,000,000 (equivalent to US$988,127,000) are due
for repayment within twelve months from 31 December 2021,
they will not cancel the existing loan facilities within twelve
months from 31 December 2021 and that the loans will be
extended upon expiry. Furthermore, taking into account the
financial resources of the Group, the Group has unutilized
general facilities of US$846,123,000 as at 31 December
2021 for over the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. In addition, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared
by the management of the Group. The cash flow projections
cover a period not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

Taking into account the above-mentioned considerations, the
directors of the Company are of the option that, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its cashflow
requirements in the next twelve months.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MFEEMEERERMTAN
— =3
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RREE (B
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REIEEZRME (B
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRIAAEBETEEREBBE R
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative SemMEERREBRNGTEEH
financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which BRomEaRAMRRSRE (8%
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including ERFIEN (MBFEHFE) PREHER
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if ’“‘B#E’Jﬂ SEHEF BN REAEE
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting AEBLZNNRERHASE !
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1 year or but less than but less than  More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—FER®  —EME  mENE #12H31H
BER BFEBME EFBBARE REME e REE
Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Uss$’000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET ETm FET
As at 31 December 2021 12021128318
Bank borrowings RITEE
- Fixed-rate ~-E8 500,917 34,814 114,596 243,487 893,814 820,021
- Variable-rate -%8 291,693 388,304 1,251,103 2,056,229 3,987,329 3,425,870
Lease liabilities HE&E 10,790 2,893 4,341 24170 42,194 35,547
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERARMBARANER 1,206,437 16,838 865,834 97,004 2,186,113 2,019,288
Amounts due to non-controlling N2 E TN
shareholders 2,153 - - 1,183 3,336 3,336
Trade payables BEEMER 129,505 - - - 129,505 129,505
Other payables and accruals HiENFERESER 614,895 314 942 5,050 621,201 618,416
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEftEZ M BABZE 108,806 - - - 108,806 108,806
2,865,196 443,163 2,236,816 2,427,123 7,972,298 7,160,789
2021 FERE | WHEEZMERERERAF
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 12020128318

Bank loans RITER

- Fixed-rate -8

- Variable-rate —38

Lease liabilities HEAE

Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZMBLAANER

Loans from the ultimate holding ~ RERXEBRATANER
company

Amounts due to non-controlling M IEERRRAIE
shareholders

Trade payables BREMIRR

Other payables and accruals HEtEATERESER

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Derivatives - gross settlement

ERRRKBARNE

TETA-BNIEE

Foreign exchange forward SEEHEE
contracts
- inflow YN
- outflow -t

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
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HHBEREEREMTIAN

DREE @)

(b) HEEEEKE )

More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years Carrying
1year or butless than but less than More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—FERgE ML mENL R®12A318
RER BFBEME EFBBRE  REME wm KEE
Us$000 USs$'000 US$'000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
136,768 111,812 311,333 576,806 1,136,719 990,805
615,717 232,277 788,346 1,407,002 3,043,342 2,620,039
5,144 2,661 6,429 32,486 46,720 30,922
559,385 23,803 522,424 70,564 1,176,176 1,054,750
307,925 124,376 - - 432,301 418,397
7,365 - - 1,085 8,450 8,450
70,704 - - - 70,704 70,704
398,024 - - - 398,024 398,024
8,738 - - - 8,738 8,738
2,109,770 494,929 1,628,532 2,087,943 6,321,174 5,600,829
1,692 - - - 1,692 1,692
(1,755) - - - (1,755) (1,755)
(63) - - - (63) (63)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate risk profile as monitored
by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk profile

The following table, as reported to the management of
the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

36. MIEEMEEREMTARN
NREE #B)

(c)

) 2= Ja B

MEEBRSETSN XL ERDSR
TENRARBEIRKRREREEE
REE ELRR o A BB F) R AR EE R
BRIEE - LUFBA R REENEE
EREEEAEEDHIARESRE
MERERKRAADBENREAR EEE
PRESEERI A& M A KA Bt it T
MNEB()R

()  FIRERESR
TR(EAFEEEEERE)
BMRER RS AR A EEE
BBFIEARER |

Notional amount

Fixed rate borrowings: EEMBE:

Lease liabilities HEEE

Bank borrowings RITEE

Loans from fellow subsidiaries and REFRMBRABIREL
the ultimate holding company ERATHER

Variable rate borrowings: ZEMEBE:

Bank borrowings RITEE

Net exposure TR Bex e 1 7B B

LETE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$°000 Us$°000
FET FET
35,547 30,922
820,021 990,805
2,019,288 1,473,147
2,874,856 2,494,874
3,425,870 2,620,039
3,425,870 2,620,039

2021 EERE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately US$12,847,000
(2020: US$9,825,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualized impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2020.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily CAD, RMB, HK$, and Japanese Yen. The
Group manages this risk as follows:

(1)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to
manage its currency risk until the settlement date
of foreign currency receivables or payables. The
Group designates those forward exchange contracts
as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges and
does not separate the forward and spot element of a
forward exchange contract but instead designates the
forward exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item is
measured based on the forward exchange rate.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines
the existence of an economic relationship between the
forward exchange contracts and the highly probable
forecast transactions based on their currency amounts
and the timing of their respective cash flows. The
main sources of ineffectiveness in these hedging
relationships are:

(i) the effect of the counterparty’s and the Group’s
own credit risk on the fair value of the forward
exchange contracts which is not reflected in
the change in the value of the hedged cash
flows attributable to the forward rate; and

(i) changes in the timing of the hedged
transactions.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

HHBEREEREMTIAN

nafE

8 #&

(d) BEiEEE 4

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in (i) EHHPERARXRZPRIIMNER
forecast transactions (continued) b (4B)
The following table details the forward exchange TERFINREPREEAK
contracts that have been designated as cash flow EEBAEYENTENRZIIR
hedges of the Group’s highly probable forecast EMEHPNRIAIESH !
transactions at the end of the reporting period:
2021 2020
20215 202045
Foreign Local Foreign Local
currency currency currency currency
sp i P o K
CAD’000 KRW’000 CAD’000 KRW'000
Fiiz F#ET FHlT FéET
Notional amount LEEE
- Buy CAD (sell KRW) —-BAMT (HEET) 190,895 156,984,146 284,120 234,558,222
2021 2020
20215 20204
Us$’000 USs$’000
FE7T FET
Carrying amount (Note) IRTEE (F75E)
- Asset —&E 17,099 7,268
Note: HraE -

Forward exchange contract assets and liabilities are included in
the “Derivative financial instruments (note 26)” line items in the
consolidated statement of financial position respectively.

The forward exchange contracts have a maturity of more than one

year from the reporting date and have an average exchange rate of
825.29 between CAD and KRW (2020: 832.12).
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognized assets and liabilities

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange
contracts that economically hedge monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in profit or loss. The net fair value of
forward exchange contracts used by the Group as
economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December
2021 was US$17,099,000 (2020: US$7,268,000),
recognized as derivative financial instruments.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in United States
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date.

36.

HHBEREEREMTIAN

DREE @)

(d)

S EE (&

(i)

(iii)

EESEERAR

REREE P UIINEFENE
KEERBBENERBIESR
NARABEZFNEZANR
BeR2021F12831H » K&
B A EREE P UINESEN
ENEERGBENEBIES
BBF A REEA17,099,000
%70 (20204 : 7,268,000%
7o) R ATTESRTIA.

MIRIMNESHERNEME 5 B
BEMKENERME A& H
FEfRIB B 50 0 B2 B DUBD R EE =X
A EINELURIZE K
1A fem A % B B M D R
RN AR BIKF

FREEREY S ¥ B

TRENAEBRNBRESHAKRMA
E % LUAE B B AR 2h BE & 1 LUSH
ERSGHENCHEIEENER
MEENEREAKR -LEHRE
WME FEERRRNESE
Mg 45 B B BD AR PE R E B9
ES Tl

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in United States dollars)

FEGNEBAR METHT)

RMB HK$

AR AT

Us$'000 Us$'000

FET FET

Assets BE 32,919 861

Liabilities aE - =
Gross exposure arising DHEAEERGERH
from recognized EENBRRKO

assets and liabilities 32,919 861

2021
20214

JPY

=]

US$'000

FET

(7,293)

(7,293)

EUR
Bt
Uss$'000
FET

612
(572)

40

2020
20204

CAD RMB HK$ JPY
mic ARE AT =]
US$'000 Us$'000 US$000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET
12,956 18,186 4,796 7,676
(2,774) - - (8,214)
10,182 18,186 4,796 (538)

2021 EERE

HEEZERIERARAE
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1L =1
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MBEMEEREMTAN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DREE #)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d)y E¥EkE #E)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (ivy BREDW
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRERNKEERKRBGEN (R
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and REEA) U GEEREAM
other components of consolidated equity that would EREBOERAEBRBRESHER
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group AZTEARROERNZA S
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting L2 (REMEEMITERAR
period had changed at that date, assuming all other AREFAE) BNIBER TAAE
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is BB B o RLUET S > B
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ and 75 7T B 35 7T Y HH 99 0 RO & K
the United States dollar would be materially unaffected THRETREME EWNERE
by any changes in movement in value of the United EEHMELEATE-
States dollar against other currencies.
2021 2020
20215 20204
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit (decrease) Effect on profit

in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and

exchange rates retained profits  exchange rates retained profits

EXEA/ BIRGEGEF EBXEH/ HHREDEF

(FF) o (TF%) iopA

Us$’000 Us$'000

FE7T FET

RMB AR 10% 2,749 10% 1,364
(10%) (2,749) (10%) (1,364)

CAD mrc 10% 772 - -
(10%) (772) - -

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into United State dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2020.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

ER2BANZDHERAREE
EEERESEEERE
B PR AR 18 i A K 1 70 B9 & 51 AD
R g 25 8NmRR
SHRNEZRMERET-

FREDMBRNBIHARE
REBILEEZEHENTELS
SEFMPFAERAEERH I
BERBNEMIA SFEE£H
RRABBULEIFESHE ST
BEE W ST E B FE (Y RRIE K B UL
I Z D ITiR2020F HE &
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorized
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 183, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

36. MIEEMEEREMTARN
NREE #B)

(e)

2021 EERE

AREE R

(M

BRARBESENEHME
EXRERE

DREERR

TRENFAEENRREAREK
KELTEEXAENESHRIAN
AREBE HAESBERYE
BRERERFIBRAREEFE
FIREN=ZMRANBEER
AREEFEEINERHZ
ZERMAER B ABERN
ABEMREZEEENT

. F—MREE  AREE
EERE-—HREAK
BoRMEREERER
REtBRAREERETS
BIRAETHERE

. FMRIEE AREE
A% i A BB
B AT EE BN
FEHERAREEL &
ERAERTAHEHA
BB - FOIBERBAK
BARTHEBERAA
BB A SR ©

. FoMMEE EREX

TR R ASETE
NRREE

HEEZERIERARAE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

36.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognize transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Recurring fair value
measurements

Assets

Financial assets designated
at FVOCI

Derivative financial
instruments

- Forward exchange
contracts

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

REMALEEME

BE

BEERUAREBENS
BEFHAEMEE
WENEHEE

TEEMIA

—BHSMNESR

Annual Report 2021

Fair value at
31 December

2021
20214
12A31HK
AREE
US$°000
FET

5,238

17,099

HHBEREEREMTIAN

DREE @)

(e) AREEE #)

() B2AEBEAENEHE

ERER @&
ARBEEBR @D

HZE2021F K%2020FE12831H

LtFE F—HMEFHH
TEESE TEEANEHSE
=R AEENERAR AR
BEERBRZBNEENEE

FARIBYIR S BAR T LURERD -

Fair Value measurements as at

31 December 2021 categorised into

®2021F 12831 BN AR EBEFEDES

Level 1 Level 2
F— FR
US$'000 US$'000
FET FET

- 17,099

Level 3
BT

Us$°000
TET

5,238
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

36.

HHBEREEREMTIAN

DREE @)

(e)

Fair value at

31 December

NREESE @

(M

BRARBESENEHME
ERaE @

QREERER (B

Fair Value measurements

as at 31 December 2020 categorised into

#2020F 12831 HN AR EBEAZENES

Level 2 Level 3
BT B
USs$’000 US$’000
FETT FETT
7,277 -

63 -

2020
#20204F
1283188 Level 1
RAEE B
Us$’000 USs$’000
FE£57T FE7T
Recurring fair value KREMAREBENZ
measurements
Assets BE
Derivative financial TEEMIT A
instruments
- Forward exchange —RHNESR
contracts 7,277 -
Liabilities a’&
Derivative financial TTEEMTA
instruments
- Forward exchange —=HAINESE
contracts 63 -
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
and Lveve 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of forward exchange contracts in Level
2 is determined by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current forward
price. The discount rate used is derived from the
relevant government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit
spread.
The fair value of financial assets designated at FVOCI
in Level 3 is determined by using the adjusted net
assets method of the financial assets.
Fair value of financial assets and (ii)

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2020 and 2021.

2021 EERE

BRME=RAABEEFE
FRfE AL ERMT KA B

REZRPERSIESRHQ
ABEYEBFTECRENE
HEBEREAERZENESR
EE -FIERMNINRELRE
¥R 5 B R B9 A8 B B U e K dh
BAMTERENEHEES
Yo

REZBRTIEEAULAAEE
StEEEZFF AHRMEE
THEREEZAREBEDR
AERMEENERAEFIEEZE
EE-

HIEARBEYRNER
BEEREBENAREE

AEB LM A T 2N R
TEMREmERAENR2020F &

2021 FE 1283 1AM A RBEL
MEBAER

HEEZERIERARAE

249



250

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

Bl PSR < MU EE

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

37.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

37. HE—ZXWBLE

2020 20205
In May 2020, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in 1202058 » REEER LB EEELZ ST
Shanghai Meiya Jingiao Energy Co., Ltd (“Jingiao JV”), representing HWARBEEFHEENR L EEDEBERE
60% of the total equity interest in the Jingiao JV, through a public RAB (EBEaERE) N2RE HER
tender process of Shanghai United Assets and Equity Exchange at a ETRBEE LXK ERENG60% ﬁﬁﬁf‘:)\ﬁﬁfﬁz
consideration of RMB155,800,000 (equivalent to US$22,023,000). The 155,800,0007T (1HE 222,023,000 7T) © &%
disposal was completed in May 2020, when the Group lost control of ER2020F58 5T/ ﬁ%@ﬁ?“%?&ﬁ*ﬁ%%
the Jingiao JV. S B ENESR

USsS$’000

FET

The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: RHEBBRNFEEN TN :
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,590
Current assets MENEE 2,975
Current liabilities REIEE (8,364)
Non-current liabilities ERsHad (125)
Net assets FEE 10,076
Less: net assets shared by non-controlling shareholder B IR R R R AR E E (8,990)
Net assets disposed of FTHENFEE 6,086

Gain on disposal:

Cash consideration received

Cumulative exchange gains in respect of the net assets
Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

HE W

BEWRERE 22,023
FEENRSERKRE 2,198
FRHENZEEE (6,086)
& W 18,135
HEEENRERAFE !

BWRERE 21,767
FFHENBESRBEEEY (876)

20,891
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COMMITMENTS 38. ik
Capital commitments B KIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for in 12831 HEREMBIRRTIRE GBI E KK
the financial statements were as follow: EWT -
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 US$’000
== 2 FET
Contracted for B4 420,833 1,394,978
Authorized but not contracted for EEEERTN 2,086 7,384
422,919 1,402,362

2021 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. |

TRANSACTIONS

The Company is ultimately controlled by CGN, which is a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC.

Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed in the

39. EKRAE

consolidated statement of financial position and other details disclosed

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
entered into the following significant transactions with related parties

during the year:

Name of related company

[l NSE Y

CGN Energy International
PR JE 1% AR R PR

CGN Finance

R E %R S

CGN Energy Development Co., Ltd.
(“CGN Energy”) and its subsidiaries

FEZERBAERRIEEAT
(THREZAETR)) REWEBAF

CGNPC Huasheng

R R EE RS

Huamei Holding Company Limited

(“Huamei Holding”) and its subsidiaries

Huamei Holding Company Limited
(l'Huamei Holding ) R EMEB AT

China Clean Energy

FREEZAEIR

CGN Wind Energy

FEZEE

CGN Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd.

PEZKGEREARAR

CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology
Co., Limited

FEZ (IR MERMEERAE

Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd.

HEFEZRNDEEERAR

China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd

FEZIBERAR

CGN

REZ

Hubei Xisaishan
A E W
Hubei Huadian
LS

Notes

htaz

the Group also

Nature of transactions

XEHE

Management service income
BIERBWA

Interest expense

MESZH

Interest income

A EWA

Management service income
BIERBUA

Interest income
A EWA
Interest expense
MEZH

Management service income
BIERBUA

Interest expense

MEZH

Management service income
BIERBWA

Management service expense
BERBZH

Interest expense

MEZH

Management service income
BIERBWA

Management service expense
BERBZH

Management service expense

EIRERFEHZ
Management service expense
EIRERFEHZ

Construction expense
EEAX

Technical service income
TR F UL A

Interest expense

MELZH

Management service income
BEIRRBEWA
Management service income

EERBEBA

Annual Report 2021

bR

i

FABREBAPEZES > M E
BhrEkEEZEARE-

A %5 AR U AR P 5 BB 2 R B

mm%?ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%
o AEBMPERTEBB ST LU TERR
L

2021
20214
Us$’000
FET
1,405
6,445
2,225

3,154

a7
3,715

7,269

20,531
21,948
3,963
11,817
8,231
4,493

7,699

927
585,266
41
11,988
76

329

%7 E =

T REEREF B L
D EE 2 HAthEE IS

2020
20204
USs$’000
FZET
1,408
8,772
1,726

2,478

47
5,500

5,018

20,588

18,497

6,716

4,222

4,503

354

2,259
50

206
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(i) CGN Energy International is the immediate holding company of the Company.

(i) CGN Finance, CGN Energy and its subsidiaries, CGNPC Huasheng, Huamei
Holding and its subsidiaries, China Clean Energy, CGN Wind Energy, CGN
Solar Energy Development Co., Ltd., CGN (Beijing) New Energy Technology
Co., Limited, Gansu CGN Wind Power Co., Ltd. and China Nuclear Power
Engineering Co., Ltd are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

(iii) CGN is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

(iv) Hubei Xisaishan and Hubei Huadian are associates of the Group.

The Group has entered into various transactions including deposits
placements, borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks and financial institutions which are the PRC government-
related entities in its ordinary course of business. A majority of the
cash and cash equivalents and 82.2% (2020: 76.2%) of borrowings
of the Group are with the PRC government-related entities as at 31
December 2021.

Also, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government-related
entities include sales of electricity to local power bureau and a state-
owned entity. About 42% (2020: 38%) of its sales of electricity and
capacity charges are to the other PRC government-related entities for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Certain directors have also been employed by CGN and its
subsidiaries and the payments of their emoluments were borne by
CGN and its subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other key management during the
year were as follows:

Short-term benefits f2HRE A
Post-employment benefits B R @A

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by
having regard to the performance of individuals and the Group and
market trends.

39. EXMERS (&)

(0 P B B A% AE
ale

(ii) PEZYHE S PEZEREEMKBAT R
[EZEE R ~ Huamei Holding R EMtEAE ~ &
BB R AR ~ P EA% B B R P B A% K B AE B
?’V‘ﬁﬂﬁ 7 FERZ (ER) MEREEAR
AT HEPEZEAEEFRATD T E
BRIRERAT HASTRIRRMBAR-

RERAEARABDNERERA

(iii) HEZARNBNREER AT

(iv) MEAELURNEEEREAEENBEL
ale

FEBMEREABEFEBRETEBPRAKFE
MERZETROERSMEBIIIIZERS
BREEFA - EEREM—RIETHRE 2021
Fi12A3 A AEBZABIBEERBELEE
) T%282.2% (20204 : 76.2%) & E 9 B EF K
BB T ERE S o

B AEFETEHEMBTERER RS
BiEAXMEBERREBEXHEEET N -NE
E2021F12B31BIEFE > £942% (20204 ©
38%) ZBHHE KRB EE ) HEEM P EBATAE
RAERRER -

REE2021F K2020F12831HIEFEET
BENTERDEZ EHFMIRAPEZR
HItB AT Ao

FTEEE A S

ERNEEREMEEEEAENFHFNOT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
1,180 2,596
85 200
1,265 2,796

BEERTETHAENFHFWND2EBAAKREE
BEXRFLUKRTHBBETE -

2021 FEWE | HEEEMERERERAR
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40.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investments in subsidiaries (Note (a))

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Loan from a fellow subsidiary

FRBEE
M- BB R H
ERREE

KB ABNKRE (#fat(a)

MBEE

HM WA R TR RIE
R EN = VNS
RERBEEFEY

ik =R
HAME T RE R &St & A
EABERNERBRE
FEAS IS B A B R IR
RERRMNEASNEMR

Bank borrowings - due within one year$E T & — X —EREIHA
Lease liabilities — due within one year HE& &N —E R FH

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) SREIEE ~(BE) %

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans from fellow subsidiaries

HWEERRBAER

FFREBAR
RERZRMNEASNEMR

Bank borrowings — due after one year $R{TEE — K —F% 58

Lease liabilities — due after one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

HEERE-RN—FR3H

BEFE
IR A R 1
(RN

#f

s

Annual Report 2021

40. FRF)BENMBIRTER

2021 2020

20215 20204

Notes Us$’000 USs$’000
k=3 FET FET
174 259

3,381 1,441

1,186,987 1,205,945

1,190,542 1,207,645

472 567

4,310 2,164

40,702 34,479

45,484 37,210

6,380 6,310

4,265 4,209

21,768 9,115

- 250,000

- 100,000

3,381 1,516

35,794 371,150

9,690 (333,940)

1,200,232 873,705

700,000 450,000

100,000 -

- 37

800,000 450,037

400,232 423,668

55 55

400,177 423,613

35(a) 400,232 423,668
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes:

Investments in subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal operating subsidiaries at 31

December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

WEAE AR

Indirect

[EE

Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya
Company Limited*

BRERIZTAERAR

Guangxi Rongjiang Meiya
Hydropower Company Limited*
BRAMIZEKEERAT

Guangxi Rongyuan
Hydropower Company Limited*

FRE#RKRARAR

Guangxi Zuojiang Meiya
Hydropower Company Limited*
ERLIZTKEERAF

Haian Meiya Cogeneration. Co., Ltd*

BRXEREARAT

Mianyang Sanjiang Meiya

Hydropower Company Limited*

BHRIIZEAEERAD

CGN Daesan Power Co., Ltd.

CGN Daesan Power Co., Ltd.

CGN Yulchon Generation Co., Lid.

CGN Yulchon Generation Co., Ltd.

Nantong Meiya Co-generation Co,, Ltd*

HEXEARARAA

Place of

establishment/ Date of

operation incorporation
I/ #MET/ I/

EEBE EMmIES
The PRC 15 September 1999
® 1999598158
The PRC 15 September 1999
P 1999F9A158
The PRC 4 January 2011
PE 2011E1848
The PRC 8 October 1998

® 1998410588
The PRC 20 December 2002
HE 2002128208
The PRC 25 QOctober 2002
HE 20026108250
Korea 8 April 2009

#E 200044788
Korea 28 July 2009

#2E 2009£7H288
The PRC 13 March 1997
HE 1997535138

Legal form

iR

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PheaEREL%

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PheEaELE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PhaEaEL%

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BREALE

Sino-foreign
cooperafive joint

venture

PhaEREL%

Joint stock company

RHBRAE

Joint stock company

RNERAE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BREALE

(#)

a. RHBARNKRE

HE2021F K2020F 128310 &R

ANTEREMNBARFBUOT

Registered capital/
issued and

fully paid-up

share capital

HfEs/ BRTRERRE

Registered capital of RMB48,000,000 and paid-up
capital of RMB48,000,000

AR 48,000,000 MEXR
AR 148,000,000 BB A

Registered capital of RMB72,000,000 and paid-up
capital of RMB72,000,000

ARM72,000000 EMEXR
AEH72,000,000 BB RE

Registered capital of RMB38,000,000 and paid-up
capital of RMB38,000,000

AR 38,000,000 BEER
AR 38,000,000 B2 KA

Registered capital of RMB345,596,455 and paid-up
capital of RMB345,596,455

ABH345596 455 T MEAR
AEIE345596 45T R A

Registered capital of US$11,920,000 and paid-up
capital of US$11,920,000

11,920,000% 7oat A E AR 11,920,000% 70
BRRE

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid-up
capital of RMB100,000,000

ARH1000000007EMEAR
AR¥100,0000007C4 2R

Registered capital of KRW3,430,000,000 and
paid-up capital of KRW3,430,000,000

3,430,000,0008 THREAR
3,430,000,0008 TTHIE A

Registered capital of KRW18,044,400,000 and
paid-up capital of KRW18,044,400,000

180444000008 TR MEAR
18,044,400,0008 T BB

Registered capital of US$16,800,000 and paid-up
capital of US$16,800,000

16,800,000% 7 3£ B E A2 16,800,000% 70
BRRE

2021 FER

of

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
FEBMFRERE
2021 2020
2021 2020%
55% 55%
80% 80%
100% 100%
60% 60%
100% 100%
75% 75%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TERH

Investment in dam and other
associated faciliies

RERKBRIAMRE

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERD

Generation and supply of
electricity

SERMEED

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERN

Generation and supply of steam,
electricity and other related
products

LERHEZS-BAR
HtERER

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERD

Generation and supply of
electricity from an oifired
combined cycle power plant

e RRERLER
HEBH

Generation and supply of
electricity from a gas-fired
combined cycle power plant

HERREREEN
87

Generation and supply of
electricity and steam and other
related products

LERHEENEAR
HtERER

HEEZERIERARAE
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Place of
establishment/ Date of
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik
Nanyang General Light Electric Co., Ltd. The PRC 1 January 1997
BEELENERAT e 19971818
Wuhan Han-Neng Power The PRC 11 October 1995
Development Co,, Lid.
REZEENERERAR E 1995108118
CGN New Energy (Dezhou) Co., Ltd* The PRC 29 December 2014
REZHMER (BM) BRAT HE 20145125298
CGN (Zhejiang Xiangshan) The PRC 11 July 2011
Wind Power Co,, Ltd*
TER(DISW BNEBERAT  FE 201174118
CGN (Zhejiang Ninghai) The PRC 19 December 2013
Wind Power Co., Ltd.*
RER (158 BNEEERAR HE 2013E128198
Angiu Taipingshan Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 10 December 2008
ZEATURBARAR hE 2008125108
Yishui Tangwangshan Wind Power Co,, Ltd* The PRC 23 November 2009
TKEIURNEBERAT HE 2009115238
CGN Lingu Wind Power The PRC 29 December 2009
Company Limited Co., Lid*
hER (B8R BNEEERAR hE 2009125298
CGN Lingu Longgang Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 28 June 2013
TERERREENEEERAT HE 2013F6528H
CGN Yishui Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 2 April 2011
TEZAKENEBERAR hE 201154H28

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2021

Legal form

ik

Sino-foreign
cooperative joint
venture

PHEERERE

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture

PheaEREL%

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ERERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
ERERLSE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

(#)

st o (&)

a. RHBARNKRE (&)

Registered capital/

issued and Attributable
fully paid-up equity interest
share capital held by the Group

HEs/ BRTRARRE FEMFFEGRE

2021
20215

Registered capital of RMBA476,667,000 and paid-up 59.5%
capital of RMB476,667,000

R 4766670007 ME AR
AR 1476667000708 2R A

Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid-up 56.8%
capital of RMB100,000,000

AEH1000000007 6 MEAR
ARE10000000074 RRA

Registered capital of US$200,308,891 and paid-up 100%
capital of US$200,308,891

200,308,891 XA MEER
200,308 891 ETHERE

Registered capital of RMB134,610,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB134,610,000

ARE134610000TEMELR
AR 1346100004 R RAE

Registered capital of RMB79,600,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB79,600,000

AE#79,600,0007#MEXK
AR 79,600,000t B KA

Registered capital of RMB187,889,991 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB187,889,991

AR#187889.001 TEME SR
AR1187889.991 T RIRA

Registered capital of RMB71,375,034 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB71,375,034

ARET1,375,034m HEEXR
ARE71,375,034nHERE

Registered capital of RMB75,040,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB75,040,000

AR 75,040,000 MEAR
AR 175,040,000 4 BB A

Registered capital of RMB77,074,180 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB77,074,180

NEH77,074,180 THMEER
AEHT7,074,180 TR KA

Registered capital of RMB91,125,000 and paid-up 100%
capital RMB91,125,000

ARH91,125000 T MERR
AB 191,125, 00074 RR &

2020
20205

59.5%

60%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Generation and supply of
electricity and other related
services

EERBEENR
HEthEBRS

Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMEED
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERBEESN
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERMEED
Generation and supply of
electricity
LEREEESN
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERMEED
Generation and supply of
electricity
LEREEESN
Generation and supply of
electricity
LERMEED
Generation and supply of
electricity
LEREEESN
Generation and supply of
electricity

LERMERD
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (%)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
Yishui Longshan Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 13 August 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB88,546,800 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB88,546,800 electricity
limited liability
TAELENEEERAT HE 2013%8A 138 SMEREN AE 88,546 800 EREAR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 88,546,800 REX
CGN Gansu Mingin Wind Power Co,, Ltd* The PRC 4 March 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB162,200,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB162,200,000 electricity
limited liability
TREERROANEEERAT P 2011E3848 SEREN AR1622000007 2 BEAR LERMERD
BRERLE AR H162.2000007 4R Bk
CGN Gansu Mingin (II) Wind Power Co,, Ltd*  The PRC 24 Qctober 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB549,760,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB549,760,000 electricity
limited liability
TEEHERBE_ANEEERAT  HE 2013F10824H  SMERER B 5497600007t EAR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 854976000041 A
CGN Gansu Guazhou Wind Power Co,, Ltd* The PRC 18 November 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB165,480,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB165,480,000 electricity
limited liability
RREERINENSEEERAT P N1ENFI8E  SHBEREN AE165480 00072 BERR LERMERD
BRERLE AR 1654800007 4 2B A
CGN Gansu Guazhou (II) Wind Power Co,, Ltd* ~ The PRC 15 November 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB287,000,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB287,000,000 electricity
limited liability
TEEZHBINE_ANEEERAT +E 2013F11815H  SMERER B #287000,0007c s R E AR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 2870000007 2
Guazhou Tianrun Wind Power Co., Ltd* The PRC 6 March 2009 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB98,100,000 and paid-up 60% 60%  Generation and supply of
joint venture capital RMB98,100,000 electricity
HNXBREERAT PE 20093H68 PhaBERERE  ARH98,100000mEBEXR LERMEED
AR %98,100,0007 £ 2 &
CGN Solar Dunhuang Co., Ltd* The PRC 8 September 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB97,970,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB97,970,000 electricity
limited liability
RERRBESEERAT) hE 2011F988H SEREN AE#97,970,000 0 RE XK LEREEESN
BERERLE AE 97,970,000 B2 B A&
CGN Solar Jinta Co., Ltd* The PRC 6 December 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB36,360,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB36,360,000 electricity
limited liability
TERRBESEERAD hE 2011£12868 SEREN AR36,360,000EHEER LERMEED
EREFLE B #36,360,0007 6 2 B 4
CGN Solar (Dachaidan) Development Co,, Ltd*  The PRC 15 January 2010 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB492,931,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB492,931,000 electricity
limited liability
RERRRE (ARE) REERAR hE 2010£1A158 SEREN AR #492,931,00070 & AR LEREEESN
ERERLSE AR 492,931,000 BB A
CGN Solar Wulan Co,, Ltd* The PRC 29 August 2012 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB100,000,000 electricity
limited liability
PEEABESHARAT PE 2012585298 SEREN ARH100000 00072 BERR TERMEED

EREELE AEH100,000000741 2R A

2021 FER

of
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (%)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

| Annual Report 2021

a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
CGN Solar (Jiaxing) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 9 July 2013 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB30,500,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB30,500,000 electricity
limited liability
TEEABE (B8 BRAT HE 2013%57A9H SMEREN AE 30,500,000 E AR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 30,500,000 BB A&
CGN Solar (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* The PRC 17 August 2011 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB43,400,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB43,400,000 electricity
limited liability
REEARE (RYl) BRAR P 20114585178 SEREN AR 43,400,000 BEXR LERMERD
BRERLE B #43,400,0007c 4 R B A
Weifang CGN Energy Co. Ltd.* The PRC 26 August 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB153,760,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB80,000,000 electricity
limited liabilities
BHERERERERAT HE 2016%8A 268 SEREN NE#153,760,000tE MERRK EERHEESN
BREELE AR 80,000,00074 BB A
Dezhou Anwu Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 15 November 2016 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB113,530,000 and paid-up 87% 87%  Generation and supply of
joint venture capital RMB113,530,000 electricity
ENEBERARAR PE 2016F118158  PHAELERE  ARH113530000mEMELR LERMERD
AR 11353000074 ZHA
Jiyuan CGN New Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 21 December 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB10,830,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
BRTENNERERAD HE 2016E128218  SMEREN AE%10,830,0007ct E AR LEREEESN
ERERLSE AEH500,000THREE
CGN New Energy (Ledu) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 15 December 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB45,000,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
RERHNER (£F) BRAT hE 2016128158 SBREN ARH45,000000 2 BEER LERMEED
EREMLE AR 500,000 HRER
CGN Wuhai New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 23 February 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB109,860,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB109,860,000 electricity
limited liability
TERSENERERAD HE 2017%2A238 SEREN NEH109,860000 2 E AR LEREEESN
ERERLSE AR 109860000 R E A
Lankao CGN New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 21 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
BENEENERERAR hE 201743A218 SEREN ARH500,0007 BEAR LERMEED
EREMLE AR 500,000 R A
CGN (Hefei) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 27 April 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
RER (B MERERAT HE 201747278 SEREN AEH500,000mEAEER LEREEESN
ERERLSE AEH500,0007TH R RAE
CGN New Energy (Changsha) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 27 April 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB12,300,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB12,300,000 electricity
limited liability
RERHNER (R)) BRAT hE 2017548278 SEREN AR 12,300,000 EMEER TERMEED
ARAMLE B 12,300,007 8 B B &
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (48)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
Shanghai Tongce Yungi Distributed The PRC 5 July 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB50,000,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Energy Co,, Ltd* enterprise with capital of RMB3,000,000 electricity
limited liability
LERRERAHFRERERAT HE 2016E785H SMEREN AR 50,000,000t EER EERHEESN
BREELE AR 53,000,0007 8RB A
CGN (Chahar Right Wing Middle Banner) The PRC 24 November 2017 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB66,800,000 and paid up 66.1% 53.7%  Generation and supply of
New Energy Co., Ltd.* joint venture capital of RMB66,800,000 electricity
TER (EREAEDE HERRE  E N17E11F248  PHAEREELE  ARH66,800,000mRELR LERMEED
BRAF B 166,800,000 4 BB %
Chifeng New Golden Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 14 October 2016 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB100,000,000 and paid up 4% 74%  Generation and supply of
joint venture capital of RMB100,000,000 electricity
HEHEBERARAR HE 20165108148 PHAERELE  ARHI00000000ERERR LEREEEN
K 100,000,000 42 A
Siyang Beichuan Power Engineering The PRC 28 July 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB41,726,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Co, Lid* enterprise with capital of RMB41,726,000 electricity
limited liability

BELEENERERL

il

HE 2016577280 SMEREN ARH#41,726,000 HMELRK LERMEEN
BEREALE AR 141,726 0007 R A

Yuzhou CGN New Energy Co, Ltd* The PRC 6 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
BNTERERERAD HE 2017E3868 SEREN AEH500,000cEAEER LERMERD
BRERLE AR 500,000 BB A
Xingtai Renxian County CGN New Energy The PRC 16 May 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB111,090,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Power Co., Ltd.* enterprise with capital RMB111,090,000 electricity
limited liability
BaRBTEENEREEERAT HE 201857168 SEREN NEH111,090,0000EFERK EERHEESN
BREELE ARE1110900007T8 2R A
CGN Fugou County New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 19 September 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
FERKERTERERAR HE 2018594198 SEREN AEH500,000cEAEER LERMERD
BRERLE AR 500,000 BB A
CGN Shengiu County New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 25 September 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
FEELERTERERAT HE 2018695250 SMEREN AE#500,000EREAR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 500,000 4 2 A
CGN (Horgin Zuoyi Zhongai) New The PRC 12 April 2018 Sino-foreign equity Registered capital of RMB49,740,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Energy Co,, Ltd* joint venture capital RMB49,740,000 electricity
REG RELVERTER) FER PE 2018E45128 PhaBEAERE  ARKOM0000TERESR LERMEED
EBAT AR 49,740,000 8 2 R
CGN (Qianxinan State) New Energy The PRC 25 January 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Co, Ltd.* enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
RER (BEEM FERERAT hE 2018%E1A258 SEREN AE#500,000nEBEAR LEREEESN

BREELE AEH500,0007TH R RAE

2021 FER
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (%)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
Yanan CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 3 January 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
ERRELIERERAD HE 2018F183H SMEREN AE#500,000EREAR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 500,000 4 2 A
Xiangtan CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 27 November 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB15,540,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB15,540,000 electricity
limited liability
HERRENERARAR P 0178118218 SBEREN ARB155400007EREAR LERMERD
BRERLE AR 1554000074 R A
CGN (Zhangpu) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 23 April 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB14,420,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB14,420,000 electricity
limited liability
RER (88) MERERAT HE 201847238 SEREN NEH14420000ERERR EERHEESN
BREELE B 1442000074 R A
Ar Horgin Qi Tinze Agricultural Co., Ltd* The PRC 22 March 2012 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and paid-up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB1,000,000 electricity
limited liability
MENELEXERNEERAT P 20124535220 SEREN AR200,000,0007 REER LERMERD
BRERLE A 51,000,00070 4 BB A
Yunnan CGN Energy Services Co., Ltd.* The PRC 7 April 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB200,000,000 electricity
limited liability
EEPRRERREERAT HE 2016F4A7H SMEREN NE 200,000,000t fE XK EERHEESN
BREELE AR 200,000,007 4 2B A
CGN New Energy (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 1 November 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
REGHMER (17 BRAT HE 2016E11518 SEREN AEH500,000cEAEER LERMERD
BRERLE AR 500,000 BB A
CGN (Wenchang) New Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 1 August 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with RMB45,030,000 and paid up capital electricity
limited liability RMB45,030,000
hEY (X8) MERERAR e 201758A1H SEREN AR 45,030,000t E AR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 45,030,000 BB A
CGN (Datong) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 2 June 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB269,510,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB269,510,000 electricity
limited liability
REG (KR HERERAR P 2017E6828 SEREN AR269,510,0007 REER LERMERD
BREMRLE AR 269,510,000 2 BE
Baoying County Rongbaoda Wind The PRC 21 November 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB285,124,000 and paid up 70.4% 70.4%  Generation and supply of
Power Co., Ltd.* enterprise with capital RMB285,124,000 electricity
limited liability
ARERRERANEEERAT HE 2016F11821H  SMERER AEH285,124,000 EMEXR EERHEESN
BREELE AR 285,124,000 4 2B E
Yanling CGN New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 6 March 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB219,460,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB219,460,000 electricity
limited liability
BREREENERARAR P 2017E3868 SEREN AR219,460,0007 2 REER LERMERD

BEREMRLE AE1219,460,000 T8 R R A

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (%)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
CGN Yiyang New Energy Co, Ltd.* The PRC 18 May 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB182,760,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB182,760,000 electricity
limited liability
FEGZERTERERAR HE 2017%5A188 SEREN NE#182,760,000t s & &K EERHEESN
BREELE AR%182,760,0007T 4 BB A
Yongcheng City CGN New Energy The PRC 13 June 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
Co, Ltd* enterprise with capital RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
XETRELAERERAR HE 2018565138 SEREN AEH500,000cEAEAR LERMERD
BREELE  ARM500,000THRRE
CGN New Energy Cenxi Co., Ltd.* The PRC 17 July 2018 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
FEENERSZERAT HE 2018%7A178 SEREN AE#500,000EREAR EERHEESN
BRERLE  ARH500000THRRE
CGN New Energy (Taigu) Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 22 December 2016 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB259,330,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB259,330,000 electricity
limited liability
RREHER (K2) ARAR P 20165128228 SERERN AR 259,330,000 REA R LERMERD
BRERLE AR 259,330,000 I B
CGN (Dangtu) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 15 April 2019 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB323,800,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB323,800,000 electricity
limited liability
RER (B2) HERERAT HE 201947158 SMEREN NE 323,800,000 MERK EERHEESN
BREELE AR 323,800,000 4 2B A
CGN New Energy (Dingyuan) Co., Ltd.* The PRC 6 September 2019 Foreign investment Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with capital RMB500,000 electricity
limited liability
RERHMER (BE) BRAT HE 201959868 SEREN AEH500,000cEAEER LERMERD
BRERLE AR 500,000 BB A
Dachaidan Haorun New Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 4 December 2017 Foreign investment Registered capital of 100% 100%  Generation and supply of
enterprise with RMB76,000,000 and paid up capital electricity
limited liability RMB76,000,000
REEEBNERERAD e 2017412548 SEREN AR 76,000,000t A AR LERMERN
BREELE AR 76,000,00074 BB A
Qinhai Baoying New Energy The PRC 18 October 2021 Foreign investment Registered capital of 100% - Generation and supply of
Development Co., Ltd* enterprise with RMB85,000,000 and paid up capital electricity
limited liability RMB85,000,000
REEENERREARAT HE 021E108188  SBEREN AR85,000,0007 £ HEXR LERMERD
BRERLE AR %85,000,000 T B2 KA
Qinhai Taizhou New Energy Development The PRC 19 October 20 21 Foreign investment Registered capital of 100% - Generation and supply of
Co,, Ltd* enterprise with RMB105,000,000 and paid up capital electricity
limited liability RMB105,000,000
RERNTAERREARAT HE 2021E10819H  SMEREN AE 105,000,000t fERK EERHEESN

BEREALE AR %105,000,0007 4 R &
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (%)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
CGN New Energy (Lianshui) Co, Ltd* The PRC 9 December 2016 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB131,960,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB131,960,000
limited liability
REEAER (B4 BRAR HE 2016%12598 SEREN AE#131,960,000cs M EXR LEEN
BREELE AR 131,960,000 R A
CGN (Hengfengxian) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 2 November 2016 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB133,086,700 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB133,086,700
limited liability
PR (RER) FERERAT P 2016511528 SEREN AR133,086,700 T EREAR £EEN
BRERLE AR 133,086,700 2R A
CGN (Anshan) New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 19 June 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with capital of RMB500,000
limited liability
REH @) FERERAT HE 2017865198 SEREN AE#500,000EREAR LEEN
BREELE AR 500,000 4 2 A
Liaoning Golden Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 29 September 2014 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB200,000,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB200,000,000
limited liability
ERLBERERAT P 20145£95298 SEREN AR200,000,0007c REER £EEN
BRERLE AR 200,000,000 2 B &
CGN (Shengshi) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 5 July 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB1,268,054,900 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB1,268,054,900
limited liability
REH (B0 FERERAT HE 2017457858 SEREN NE#1,268,054 900 &R K LEEN
BREELE AR 1,068,054 900704 B B A&
CGN Juzhi New Energy Solar Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 7 August 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB139,200,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB139,200,000
limited liability
PREREMERSRERAD P 2018F8A7H SEREN ARM139,200,0007 REERK £EEN
BREMRLE AR 139,200,000 2 B A
Zhixing CGN New Energy Co., Ltd.* The PRC 6 December 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB325,590,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB325,590,000
limited liability
BRPEEIERERAT HE 2017412568 SEREN NE 325,590,000 ERK LEEN
BREELE AR 325,590,000 4 2B A
CGN (Dongzhi) New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 19 August 2016 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB122,072,400 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB122,072,400
limited liability
PR RE) MERERAE P 2016585198 SEREN ARH122,072,4007 # REER £EEN
BRERLE AR 122,072,400 R R E
Gaoyou Ruixuan New Energy Technology Co,,  The PRC 3 March 2017 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB285,124,000 and 70.4% 70.4%  Generation of electricity
Ltd* enterprise with paid up capital of RMB285,124,000
limited liability
BBRENERNRERAR e 2017453438 SEREN AEH285,124,000 EMEXR EEEN
BREELE AR 285,124,000 4 2B E
CGN New Energy Nantong Co., Ltd* The PRC 6 November 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB1,836,516,400 and 88.1% 88.1% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB1,836,516,400
limited liability
PREAERERERAE P 2018511568 SEREN AR™%1,836,516,400T HEXR £EEN

BEREMRLE AR 1,836,516,400TH ERAE

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021
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40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) (#E)

Notes: (continued) Wizt o (%)
a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued) a. RBATNKRE (&)
Place of Registered capital/
establishment/ Date of issued and Attributable
i ion/ i fully paid-up equity interest
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation Legal form share capital held by the Group Principal activities
HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik AERR HMEE/ BETRBZRE FEAMFRERE TEER
2021 2020
20215 20205
CGN New Energy (Huaian) Co., Ltd* The PRC 14 August 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB146,710,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB146,710,000
limited liability
REEAER (%) BRAR e 201887148 SEREN ARE146,710,000 EME AR LEEN
BREELE AR146,710,0007 4 2B A
CGN New Energy Zhongxiang Co., Ltd* The PRC 27 July 2018 Foreign investment ~ Registered capital of RMB40,500,000 and paid 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with up capital of RMB40,500,000
limited liability
PRI ARAE P 2018%78278 SEREN ARM40,500,0007#HEXR £EEN
BRERLE B #40,500,0007c 8 R B A
CGN New Energy Cogen Zhangjiakou The PRC 29 October 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB132,440,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
Zhangbei Co., Ltd.* enterprise with paid up capital of RMB132,440,000
limited liability
FEEAEREERXORIARAT e 2018F10820H  SMERER AEH132,440,000m EME AR LEEN
BREELE AR132,440,0007T 8 BB A
Dezhou Shangtang New Energy Co., Lid.* The PRC 6 November 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB188,774,400 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB188,774,400
limited liability
ENHERERERAT P 2018511568 SEREN ARM188,774,400 2 REAR £EEN
BRERLE AR 188,774,400 EIRE
CGN New Energy (Daishan) Co., Ltd. The PRC 2 September 2019 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB500,000,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB500,000,000
limited liability
RERHER (L) BRAT HE 201959828 SMEREN AE 500,000,000t fE KK LEEN
BREELE AR 500,000,0007 4 2 KA
CGN New Energy Zaoyang Co., Ltd.* The PRC 9 August 2019 Foreign investment ~ Registered capital of RMB144,200,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB144,200,000
limited liability
PREAEEREARAE P 2019F8A98 SEREN ARM144,200,0007 REEK £EEN
BREMRLE AR 144,200,000 8 BB &
CGN (Ganzhou) New Energy Co,, Ltd.* The PRC 12 October 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB213,290,400 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB213,290,400
limited liability
R @) MAERERAR e 2018108128 SBRERN ARH213,200,4007 R E AR LEEN
BREELE AR213,290,4007T 4 BB A
Xingye CGN New Energy Co,, Ltd* The PRC 31 October 2018 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB165,500,000 and 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB165,500,000
limited liability

BERRENERERA

o

HE 2018F10831H  SMEREMN NE#165,500,000THMERR EEEN
BEREMRLE AR 165,500,000 R R &

CGN New Energy Clear Water Co., Ltd.* The PRC 28 June 2019 Foreign investment  Registered capital of RMB249,350,000 and 100% 100% Generation of electricity
enterprise with paid up capital of RMB249,350,000
limited liability

PRI RAKERAT HE 201956/ 288 SMEREN NE 249,350,000t &R K LEEN
BREELE AR 249,350,000 4 2B A

Lengshuijiang CGN New Energy Co., Ltd* The PRC 26 July 2017 Foreign investment ~ Registered capital of RMB56,500,000 and paid 100% 100%  Generation of electricity
enterprise with up capital of RMB56,500,000
limited liability

AKTPEEAERERAS P 20174575268 SEREN AR™56,500,0007# BEXR £EEN

BREMRLE B 156,500,000 4 BB &

2021 FER

of

| HEEENERERERAE



264

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

B PSR My 5

for the year ended 31 December 2021 H E2021F 128310 IEFEE

40. THE COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 40. ZASE@MNEIEIR IR
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Notes: (continued)

a. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

establishment/ Date of
Name of subsidiaries operation incorporation

HI/#MET/ I/
WEARAHE EEhE ik
CGN New Energy (Tianjin Ninghe) Co., Ltd* The PRC 9 December 2016
REEAER (K2R BRAT P 20164512898
Xiangxiang CGN New Energy Co,, Lid* The PRC 25 December 2017
RBERTERERAT HE 20175128258
CGN New Energy Haiyan Co., Ltd* The PRC 29 March 2019
FEEATERERERAT e 2019437298
CGN New Energy (Jianza) Co., Ltd* The PRC 8 December 2017
RERER RK) BRAR HE 2017£12588

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company
in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would,
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

which,

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

English names are for identification purpose only.

| Annual Report 2021

Legal form

ik

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BREELE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BREELE

Foreign investment
enterprise with
limited liability

SEREN
BRERLE

in the opinion of the

(#2)

bitaE  (4E)
a. B2
Registered capital/
issued and
fully paid-up
share capital
HMEE/ BETRBZRE

Registered capital of RMB500,000 and paid up
capital of RMB500,000

AE#500,000#BEER
AR 500,000 B R A

Registered capital of RMB279,240,000 and
paid up capital of RMB279,240,000

NE 279,240,000 ME XK
AB1279,240,0007 & BB A

Registered capital of RMB191,302,300 and
paid up capital of RMB191,302,300

AE#191,302,300#MEER
AR191,302,300TH 2R A

Registered capital of RMB63,220,000 and paid
up capital of RMB63,220,000

NE 63,220,000 EBEER
AR 63,220,000 B2 KA

%o

BIEERR

BNKRE (&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

HEMAFRGRE
2021 2020
20215 20205

100% 100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100% 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

Generation of electricity

EEEN

Generation of electricity

£EEN

ERBIARBDNETEMB AR AR
ZEMBRADETZLE
EENEEREE-EERR %ﬁUﬁ
M EARNFBERLE/BRT

BENE AR NERETERANEREE
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COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures related to recognition/(reversal) of loss allowance
of trade and other receivables and contract assets have been
adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed for first time in
2021.

IMPACTS OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Since the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (the
“Outbreak”) nationwide in January 2020, the Group had strictly
implemented various epidemic prevention requirements of the central
and local governments to ensure the safe and stable operation of
power generating units in operation.

The Group has normalized the measures to prevention and control
the Outbreak and will continue to monitor the overall impact of the
Qutbreak, control the relevant operational and financial risks and
assess its impact on the financial status and operating results of the
Group.

41.

42,

2021 FERE | HE

EEEBEF

ETERER(BE) 7Sk AMERRIER
CREERERFEEBENLREFEFHE
BOURAAFENZI AN LiR#R2021
FERBEBENEENTERHET -

MR e BT E

H2020F 1B MABEKFEMK (MEH) £2
B %0 (] P9 8 &% DA 2R > A 5 [ BR AR TR B A AT
FHRENZEREER BERTESEHMAR
EREET

FEEER B EREERE G LREERT
EENEEZE EHRERKEMNT AR 57
HENAERMBRINEEXENZE -

AR AE

RERBRAR
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 43. #HZE2021F12831HILLFE

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a number of amendments and a new standard, IFRS 17,
Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2021 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These amendments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

B8R {E s R E X HMERT 25
Kefis] 2R R sz RE R BEEE E
HRE

HELSMBRETIESAH ERGHELE
EGEEME TESTA KR — BT %R EE
MHREENFI7TREARSE BHREREE
2021F12B3 1B IEFEHKRENB L BN ILE
MEREREM ZEEBIEEIEEAAERE
BN TRIE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RIUTHERZEMAR
& AR X

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to
the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to |IAS 37, Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to |IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as

current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,

Disclosure of accounting policies

PREF B IR 5 B 58358 (IBRT 4X) »
H R RIB A

EIPR & st R B 1658 (BETA) »

YFE BERRE - FHREHBEH I EHE

B PR & 5HAERIE375E (BFT &) »
B SF]— BT & [RHI A

B[R FE RS % B2018FE E2020F B HINY
FEBE

EFR & st AR 198 (BRI ) »
BT D 2 7% 7t B I e 8

ERESHERB IR ARERMBREEIBEHR
CELEACHE VRS- &k

1 January 2022
2022F1H81H

1 January 2022
2022%181H

1 January 2022
2022%181H

1 January 2022
2022%181H

1 January 2023
2023%181H

1 January 2023
2023%181H

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets BIFS & sH#ERE12%E (B5T4A) »
HE X GELENEEREERBIELERE

and liabilities arising from a single transaction

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. | Annual Report 2021

e st #ERISE8% (1BFT4) »
estimates B 15ETHIEZE

1 January 2023
2023%181H

1 January 2023
2023%181H

FEBEENEERZE BTN ERERRMD
HEELABZE -FBEARAL BEHERBL
MEBBFRBEHRYBRERELEATE -



Revenue

Operating expenses:

Coal, oil, gas and wood pellet

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Repair and maintenance
Staff costs
Recognition/(reversal) of loss

allowance of trade and other

receivables and contract
assets
Others

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Gain on deconsolidation/
disposal of a subsidiary

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share, basic and
diluted (US cents)

LN

KEmRX:
R B RARR K
NE R
ME- BB RREBITE

EERRE

BT

HEED, (BE) B 5K
BN RIER SR
BEEBRRH

Hth
KEm ML

EES=prar

HAhg A
Hithizm K B 18
MBER

BEBMERBEEA

RREFERR HE—R
i)=Y &

PRAR Al A
Frigin

FRa

FRREER, (B8
ERABEmRER
JRIERED

SRERN BRREE
e

Financial Summary

MM E

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20214
Us$°000 us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET T=2ET
1,108,560 1,358,487 1,276,281 1,149,892 1,694,658
619,829 829,596 698,265 492,510 771,190
134,299 144,473 159,831 193,031 265,029
40,179 44,742 40,675 30,447 37,684
76,389 67,652 76,524 85,835 96,680
- - - (99) 20,292
71,634 72,843 69,368 60,701 83,869
942,330 1,159,306 1,044,663 862,425 1,274,744
166,230 199,181 231,618 287,467 419,914
14,459 41,337 23,157 26,318 41,307
(7,521) (22,141) (25,093) (11,089) a4
(101,708) (110,158) (122,120) (145,005) (188,216)
19,268 16,819 32,807 29,342 (37,551)
3,825 - 548 18,135 =
94,553 125,038 140,917 205,168 235,498
(28,587) (33,767) (41,564) (37,533) (33,774)
65,966 91,271 99,353 167,635 201,724
61,872 88,211 111,207 162,087 184,762
4,094 3,060 (11,854) 5,548 16,962
65,966 91,271 99,353 167,635 201,724
1.44 2.06 2.59 3.78 4.31

2021 FERE |

HEEZERIERARAE
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Financial Summary

B2

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20214
Us$'000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$’000
FET FET FET FET T=2ET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

Total assets MEE 3,740,617 4,139,068 5,379,167 6,976,532 8,673,658
Total liabilities FS=E 2,780,242 3,184,784 4,369,720 5,679,151 7,238,462
NET ASSETS BEE 960,375 954,284 1,009,447 1,297,381 1,435,196

Equity attributable to equity KADER NELED
shareholders of the Company 875,894 865,830 930,115 1,213,155 1,313,552
Non-controlling interests JEERR = 84,481 88,454 79,332 84,226 121,644
TOTAL st 960,375 954,284 1,009,447 1,297,381 1,435,196

CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2021
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